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CH-1 machine designed and made by Dr. Chiang Chen was launched in 1972 in Hong Kong
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Forever in Remembrance: Our Beloved Founder and Honorary Chairman
Dr. Chiang Chen

EFHAIMARLETFEEEE LN -_E -4 The founder and Honorary Chairman of the Group, Dr. Chiang Chen,
“At=HEHERE B8 T ABHEB  passed away on 13 March 2022, and all the staff members of the Chen
TR LGFEI A IEGR - R EHELEELIE  Hsong Group deeply mourn his passing. We shall forever take Dr. Chiang’s
BEBLENETNIGE - AFELEEMBIE  guidance and teachings to heart. Chen Hsong will continue its mission
D0 UM - B2 0AE JREE - BB of making contribution to our country, our community and our industry;
R Aol RREENERELEE - 4  in that we shall persist and persevere.
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Lifetime Achievements

Dr. Chiang Chen was born to a poor family in Heze Municipality, Shandong
Province, China. He was industrious and soon proved himself to be a
talent mechanics. In 1958, he founded “Chen Hsong Machinery Shop”
in Hong Kong, the humble beginning to what was to be a legend in the
plastics machinery industry.

The first major success for Chen Hsong came when Dr. Chiang created
a new dual-color blow moulding technology that used two types of
plastics with different densities to produce a “watermelon ball” with
alternating white and red stripes. The new technology was inspired by his
observations of how the turbid and clear water met at the confluence of
the Yangtze River and Jialing River but stayed unmixed. The low-priced
watermelon ball became the most popular toy for children of the 1960s
and 1970s and is deeply ingrained in the collective memory of that era.

Dr. Chiang Chen spent his entire life on developing and perfecting
machinery technology, starting with a breakthrough in 1966 of the first
10-o0z in-line plastic injection moulding machine which earned him the
prestigious “New Product Honour” from The Chinese Manufacturers’
Association of Hong Kong. Under the leadership of Dr. Chiang, Chen
Hsong grew by leaps and bounds, eventually becoming one of the largest
manufacturers of plastic injection moulding machines in the world, with
products distributed worldwide. Dr. Chiang soon earned the respect of
the industry as the “King of Plastic Injection Moulding Machines.”

For a patriot at heart, Dr. Chiang’s vision had always been on the
development of Greater China Region. In the early 1980’s, Chen Hsong
became the first from Hong Kong to establish a production base “Chen
Hsong Taiwan” in Taiwan, followed by “Chen De Plastic Machinery” in
1986 which was the first Sino-foreign joint venture in Shunde, Guangdong
Province, Mainland China, having been in operation for over 30 years.
Chen Hsong Holdings, the undisputed industry leader, was listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange in 1991. Dr. Chiang Chen further expanded
his investments in Mainland China through a new, 560,000 m? flagship
facility - the “Chen Hsong Industrial Park” in Shenzhen, Guangdong
Province in 1999; and a 70,000 m? facility in Ningbo, Zhejiang Province
in 2003. Chen Hsong is now firmly rooted in Mainland China and is the
only enterprise in the industry to have facilities throughout the Greater
China region.

“Our Customer’s Need is Our Command” is Dr. Chiang Chen’s business
motto. He believed in affordable quality, and encouraged all Chen Hsong
staff to strive towards the ultimate goal of achieving “Japanese quality at
Chinese production costs.” Dr. Chiang Chen will be forever remembered
by all staff members of Chen Hsong Group and we shall forever take his
guidance to heart and continue to foster and enhance his vision.

EREBLRE  RENKENBEES o

May his soul rest in peace, and his legacy lives on.
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Year ended 31 March 2022

2022 2021 Change

EERE(EEFL) RESULTS HIGHLIGHTS (HK$'000)
W ek Revenue 2,728,763 2,360,553 16%
B 35 A& A Profit before tax 238,568 270,802 -12%
RArE=FEA Profit attributable to equity holders

JEAE 3 A of the Company 213,309 203,021 5%
BEBE Total assets 4,429,327 4,378,438 1%
% 2R fE 2 Shareholders’ funds 3,209,049 2,996,532 7%
BESITIR A Issued share capital 63,053 63,053 0%
MENEEFE Net current assets 2,042,490 2,024,300 1%
BREE PER SHARE DATA
GREEARBFICEN) Basic earnings per share (HK cents) 33.8 32.2 5%
BB R ECENL) Cash dividends per share (HK cents) 16.8 16.0 5%
EREEFBEET) Net assets per share (HK$) 5.1 4.8 6%
FEHELER KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS
TR R RS EIER R (%)  Return on average shareholders’ funds (%) 6.9 7.2 4%
FHEEMERRE(%)  Return on average total assets (%) 4.8 5.2 8%

Hﬁi E -
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Shareholders’ Calendar
BREAFAE Annual General Meeting (AGM)
20228 A26H (EH T ) N URSIE 26 August 2022 (Fri) at 4:00 p.m.
R R AT Register of Members
FEHERMN B EL(EEMABIEEN) Closure of Register (both days inclusive)
HEREEFEASEA - 2022F8H23HE26H For attending AGM . 23-26 August 2022
(EH—Z=EHHA) (Tue — Fri)
KEANS BiE A . 20229 A1 HELH For Final Dividend . 1-5 September 2022
(EHU=E28—) (Thur — Mon)

BRE(8R) Dividend (per Share)
AR B . BHE5.2(0 Interim Dividend . HK5.2 cents
K H Hf . 2022%F1 A12H(EH=) Paid on : 12 January 2022 (Wed)
RHIRE & - I Final Dividend : HK11.6 cents
JEREE B HIL R . 2022%F9H 198 (EH—) Payable on or about : 19 September 2022 (Mon)
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Corporate Information

HETE Honorary Chairman
EMEBEREL - xznnE The late Dr. Chen CHIANG, GBM
z5 Directors
HITESE Executive Directors
BRI T (FEFEEES) Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
BWME A Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG
BIFHITES Independent Non-executive Directors
PRES B E Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN
Anish LALVANIZ A4 Mr. Anish LALVANI
MFESTE Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE
PR 5T A& Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN
EREE® Audit Committee
Anish LALVANISE A (F/%) Mr. Anish LALVANI (Chairman)
PRES B E Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN
MFEFZE Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE
PREE ST A Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN
FMEE® Remuneration Committee
fREBIEE(ERE) Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN (Chairman)
Anish LALVANIZ 4 Mr. Anish LALVANI
MFEFZE Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE
PBREE St 5o Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN
BRI Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG
REZEE Nomination Committee
FREE S5 () Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN (Chairman)
R Bt Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN
Anish LALVANIZ A4 Mr. Anish LALVANI
MFEFLE Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE
TtEEREER Corporate Governance Committee
MFEREERE) Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE (Chairman)
FRES Bt Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN
Anish LALVANIZ: A4 Mr. Anish LALVANI
B S St e A Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN
NEWE Company Secretary
FRERTE Mr. Chi Ngai CHAN
RERR Authorized Representatives
BEMLT Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG
FRAESR T AE Mr. Chi Ngai CHAN

4 EHEEABR AR 2021/22 Fik CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22
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Corporate Information

Auditor

Ernst & Young
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor

Principal Bankers

China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

Principal Share Registrar

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
4th Floor North

Cedar House

41 Cedar Avenue

Hamilton HM 12

Bermuda

Branch Share Registrar

Tricor Tengis Limited

(before 15 August 2022)

Level 54, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

(on or after 15 August 2022)
17/F, Far East Finance Centre,
16 Harcourt Road,

Hong Kong

Registered Office

Victoria Place

bth Floor, 31 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM 10

Bermuda

Head Office & Principal Place of Business

13-15 Dai Wang Street
Tai Po Industrial Estate
Tai Po, New Territories
Hong Kong

Corporate Communications & Investor Relations

Company Secretary

Tel: (852) 2665 3888

Fax: (852) 2664 8202

E-mail: comm@chenhsong.com
Website: www.chenhsong.com

Stock Code
00057
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Chairman’s Statement

Business Review

For the financial year ended 31 March 2022, the Group registered
total turnover growth of 16% to HK$2,729 million (2021: HK$2,361
million), the highest in the company’s history. Profit attributable to equity
holders also rose by 5% to HK$213 million (2021: HK$203 million).

During the course of this financial year, COVID continued to exert a
persistent impact on the global economy. The Group’s primary market
— China — experienced remarkable growth during the first half driven
by “dual circulation”, but the second half was plagued by unexpected
geopolitical turmoil such as the military conflict between Russia and
Ukraine, significantly affecting exports. Furthermore, a wave of COVID
outbreaks across China during the fourth quarter of this financial year,
including a city-wide lockdown of Shenzhen in March, hampered
production capacity at the Group’s flagship Shenzhen facility, resulting
in only mild turnover growth in China for the full year as a whole.

On the other hand, as major economies in Europe, the USA and UK
kept the pandemic under general control amid widespread vaccination,
recovery of consumption led to a strong up-take in demand for consumer
products. Even though the doubled turnover in the first half of the
financial year was affected by the geopolitical instabilities during the
second half, the Group’s international turnover still recorded material
growth for the full year.

During this financial year, the Group consolidated the new MK6e
“Evolution” series, successfully launched last year, and it accounted for
a similar sales ratio in the small-to-medium tonnage segment. Adhering to
the spirit of “Quality is of paramount importance, Technology is our core
competence”, the Group will continue to invest heavily into developing
new products and new technologies, such as the new MK6.6/A “Artisan”
series which is an enhancement upon the Group’s hot-selling flagship
“MK6” production line and will soon be launched into a wide range of
application sectors.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22
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Chairman’s Statement

Future Prospects

There are still uncertainties abound for the financial year ahead due
to continued Sino-USA trade disputes, military conflict between Russia
and Ukraine, geopolitical tensions and resurgent of COVID outbreaks.
The Group takes its challenges head on, with diligence and persistence,
taking this opportunity to develop new product lines that will open up
new market segments and better fulfill customer needs, and following the
motto of “Be Honest, be Aggressive and Dare to Embrace Responsibility”.
At the same time, the Group will also invest heavily in strengthening the
management team, realign high-level strategic directions and improve
corporate governance in order to maintain momentum amid an adverse
operating environment.

To conclude, the Group believes that the upcoming financial year will be
full of challenges and difficulties, which the Group will cautiously tackle
via new market developments and bringing additional value to customers.
As the Group’s cooperation with the leading provider of electric vehicles
in China — BYD — moved into high gear, as well as continued growth
of the environmental industry, the Group will focus this coming year on
further developing the next generation of advanced two-platen injection
moulding machines that can enhance production efficiency for customers
in these sectors and thereby encourage them to upgrade.

Gratitude

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | give my heartfelt thanks to all
shareholders of the Chen Hsong Group, customers, suppliers, business
partners, and banks for their long-term support, and to our loyal and
industrious management team and employees for their continued
contributions over the years.

Lai Yuen CHIANG
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 28 June 2022

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22
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Management’s Discussion & Analysis

Business Performance

For the financial year ended 31 March 2022, the Group registered
total turnover growth of 16% to HK$2,729 million (2021: HK$2,361
million), a historical high. Profit attributable to equity holders increased
5% to HK$213 million (2021: HK$203 million) while basic earnings per
share amounted to HK33.8 cents (2021: HK32.2 cents). The Board
recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK11.6 cents (2021:
HK11.5 cents) per share for this financial year.

A great economic reversal divided the first and second halves of this
financial year. During the first half, owing to widespread vaccination
among major developed countries and gradual control of the COVID
pandemic, global consumption and demand for consumer products
continued to witness robust recovery, driving up exports as well as internal
demand in China. The Group benefited significantly as most industries
scrambled to sink more investments into expanding production capacity,
resulting in historic turnover for the interim period.

The second half of this financial year, however, was plagued with serious
and unexpected global shocks, both economical as well as political,
including high inflation in the USA that stubbornly refused to subside
despite the Federal Reserve officially kickstarting a rate-hike cycle,
causing havoc in worldwide financial and currency markets. In addition,
factors such as persistently high raw material and logistics prices,
overcapacity and a sudden military conflict between Russia and Ukraine
all contributed to reinforce the strength of the shocks. As an indication
of weakening industrial growth in the second half year, China’s export
growth rate started plummeting from September, 2021 while domestic
Purchasing Managers’ Index (“PMI”) trended downwards much earlier,
reaching and hovering around the 50 threshold since then.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22
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Management’s Discussion & Analysis

During the fourth quarter of this financial year (i.e. January to March,
2022), major metropolitan areas in China experienced a COVID resurgence,
necessitating strict lockdown measures. Among the lockdown incidents,
Shenzhen’s city-wide lockdown in March dealt the heaviest blow to the
Group’s production capacity of the Group’s flagship manufacturing facility
—the Shenzhen Industrial Park — as well as close-down of the significant
Shenzhen ports which blocked deliveries of products to international
customers. On the heels of Shenzhen, Shanghai and other industrial
regions in Central and Northern China went into lockdown, as well as
close-down of Shanghai ports, during late March, stopping the imports of
key components and significantly disrupted nationwide long-haul supply-
chain logistics. Many of the Group’s customers experienced temporary
forced closing of factories during that time, and others were unable to
book and arrange transportation for their machinery deliveries. These
incidents seriously affected the Group’s fourth quarter turnover and also
dragged down the Group’s results for the full financial year. Also, further
to the Company’s announcement on 30 December 2021 regarding the
possible cooperation on the land plots located at Pingshan New District,
Shenzhen, the progress of the project has been sluggish due to the recent
cool-down of the property market in China. Under the current market
situation, the Group would further assess the feasibility and other possible

alternatives in relation to the possible cooperation.

SPARK Series of All-Electric Injection Moulding Machine

EHEBEAR AR 2021/22 F3R
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Management’s Discussion & Analysis

Market Analysis

Breakdown of turnover, based on the location of customers, for the

financial year ended 31 March 2022 is as follows:

2022 2021
(B¥EET) (B¥HET) e
Pl Customer Location (HK$ million)  (HK$ million) Change
FRBKRE R BB Mainland China and Hong Kong 1,987 1,891 +5%
= Taiwan 132 98 +35%
E b5 oM R Other overseas countries 610 372 +64%
2,729 2,361 +16%

AMBEE L F > PEAETGREARE
EFNEHE - ENINEREREBEARA K E R
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EBERWESLKF - 51538% KIEIERK < 7]
B BBNEERB T H kMmN FE
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MANEE A e 2 EIRE Jﬁ%ﬁ% ERENRE

HEMEKETRE  AEREBEFRKAMBES °
[ S %%ﬁ%m&wﬁﬂ%g@w B —
E-—FTEFERNEERAEAGDP)EERT
FRES%UAT » BIEEPMIE KK FL0M &M 5
R W—EHEWEREHEE  BREETEE
rZ7 e

/RE$H7IE51¢FT¥¢ SERA - WHEF
EEFR(A_T__F—Z=AM)EERK

/ﬁ\ B EMREREEE I EEBEAM
BEAH FETEXLAUFET ZHRAHEE
% - ELEME - FEBAMNEZLEIERE
EERAT - B OEETEEEAKTF - GDPIg
ERE48%  CREE=-MAZEENSS -
FERRABFIETEE2FGDPEEEEZTHAZE
5.5% °

EIEEBEBR AT 2021/22 FiK

During the first half of this financial year, the China market inherited
the robustness experienced during last year, in part driven by the “dual
circulation” as well as the Group’s new product lines, pushing the
Group’s total turnover in Mainland China to historical high amid a strong
38% growth. Hidden troubles were broiling underneath the surface,
however, as red-hot economic conditions magnified the imbalances
between supply and demand, causing raw material prices to skyrocket
to record-breaking levels. It was impractical for these cost increases to
be completely passed on to consumers. The net result was a significant
profit-squeeze for general industrial sectors and a cool-down of demand
for new manufacturing equipment. Rekindled Sino-USA trade tensions
during this period also contributed to depress China’s Gross Domestic
Product (“GDP”) growth for the second half of 2021 to below 5%, with
manufacturing PMI also breaching 50 and hovered around the threshold
value ever since, indicating weak industrial momentum.

Conditions continued to weaken during the second half of this financial
year, reaching the lowest point during the fourth quarter (i.e. January to
March, 2022), a major reason being the USA Federal Reserve started
the rate-hike cycle which led to a strengthening U.S. Dollar which in turn
affected consumer markets globally. During this period, major economic
indicators in China also went south with export growth dropping to the
lowest level and GDP growth rate of only 4.8% — below 5% for the third
quarter in a row — leading to the Central Government revising downwards

its annual GDP growth target to 5.5%.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22
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Management’s Discussion & Analysis

Making matters worse was a widespread outbreak of COVID across
China during the fourth quarter, leading to city-wide lockdowns, road
blockages and port closures. Among them, Shenzhen’s lockdown during
mid-March, 2022 was the most disruptive to the Group as it affected the
Group’s largest manufacturing base — the Shenzhen Industrial Park —
and blocked logistics as well as port closures also prevented the Group
from delivering products to international customers. Shanghai, with the
world’s busiest port, went into lockdown during late March together
with many other regions in Northern and Eastern China, which basically
caused nationwide logistics, as well as the supply of key imported parts
and components, to grind to a halt. Many of the Group’s customers were
forced to shutdown production during this traditional peak season for
plastic production, while others were not able to take delivery of new
equipment due to unavailability of long-haul transportation. Consequently,
the Group’s turnover growth in China was dragged down to a meager
5% to HK$1,987 million (2021: HK$1,891 million).

The Group nevertheless continued to achieve notable breakthroughs
albeit facing such adverse economic conditions, especially in the rapidly-
growing market for electric vehicles. The Group started to work with the
leader in this space — BYD — during the second half of this financial year
and signed contracts to provide BYD with up to RMB350 million worth
of high-end injection moulding machines as part of its rapid capacity
expansion programme. This is also a strong evidence that the Group’s
product lines and technical capabilities completely satisfy the stringent
demands of the automotive industry.
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Management’s Discussion & Analysis

For the Taiwan market, as Taiwanese customers primarily produce for
export to developed countries such as Europe and the USA, and as
consumption levels in these countries continued to rapidly recover due
to widespread vaccination, the Group’s turnover in Taiwan benefited
greatly by more than doubling during the first half of this financial year.
Although headwinds were felt during the second half as a strong U.S.
Dollar, quantitative tightening from the Federal Reserve and a sudden
military conflict between Russia and Ukraine started hampering European
economies, the Group’s total Taiwan turnover still managed to grow by
a healthy 35% to HK$132 million (2021: HK$98 million).

Internationally, the Group also benefited from the wave of consumption
growth in Europe and the USA, with turnover in international markets
also doubled during the first half of this financial year. As China ports
started to clog from mountains of containers waiting to board ships,
worldwide container rates repeatedly broke through all previous records to
reach astronomical heights, with cost increases being primarily assumed
by China manufacturers (including the Group). While container space
became harder and harder to secure, the Group insisted on continuing
to work closely with its global customers, and did whatever was physically
possible in order to alleviate the difficult situation.

Rekindled Sino-USA trade disputes, Federal Reserve rate hikes, the
strengthening U.S. Dollar, depreciations of the non-U.S. currencies
of many developing countries, sky-high ocean freight rates as well as
regional military conflicts all contributed to depress the once red-hot
global market sentiment, which in turn affect the Group’s results during
the second half. All in all, the Group’s international turnover registered a
64% growth for the full financial year to HK$610 million (2021: HK$372
million).

Development of New Technologies and New Products

The Group has for many years continued to invest into developing high-
end technologies and commercializing them as new, improved product
lines. A fresh example is the new MK6.6/A “Artisan” models, soon to be
launched, which was an enhancement based upon the Group’s popular
and hot-selling flagship “MK6” product line. This brand-new series targets
to provide customers with offerings that are better, more affordable and
more suitable for a wider range of applications. The Group believes that
the new MK6.6/A “Artisan” will help customers weather the current
period of difficulty through improved competitiveness and ease of use.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22




AEBRE - RATEOHERL T - WHER
EFERER LB  REPREHERD
R REFPRAEEDR  TREHEP
EHRENER - #UL - ARBEIEANRE

RBEMNOEMEEEFTOE  BHRFT - 8
MK6 R FIEE —F R RIEEER - AERK

% e

A EERERAES

AEERANERAET TRENEETSIHE
EEEVI (BEZGE)RAZHIES - #IERD
MTRETERBA B - BT EAKENE
BEIRTH T #040% - MELEREI - BRE
BT M ARFG RO KRR - B Z SR IR
ETHEENG - WRA T mEEHIMEEEN
EE -

R TTISIER TR - A EERER
TR BIE AL - AL DN B R S M E B )
B ke R TIS R -

[ cticren ksona I/}

RBMK6.6/AT L LR 1 REE))T 25 1

EEE 2wl & 2T
Management’s Discussion & Analysis

It is the Group’s firm belief that customers ultimately care only for
products that can solve real problems, alleviate real pain points, generate
real benefits and bring about real, tangible financial returns. Because of
this, the Group is constantly adding to its R&D team with more talents,
especially in hardware design and advanced software systems, who will
further develop the tested and popular “MK6” series to new heights.

Production Capacity and Cost Control

During this financial year, the Group completed its planned capacity
expansion and value improvement cost-control programmes, with new
machining equipment mostly in-place. This has lifted the Group’s
production capacity by around 40%, removed bottlenecks, and
significantly reduced reliance on outsourcing, leading to reduced costs,
improved efficiency, higher quality levels and enhanced supply chain
control.

As market sentiments remain uncertain for the coming financial year,
the Group will focus its efforts on fine-tuning management of supply
chain and production capacity to fit actual product demands as well as
to enable rapid responses to market changes.

— Artisan

[]]]]]40168-MK6.6

JETMASTER MK6.6/A “Artisan” Servo Drive Injection Moulding Machine
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Management’s Discussion & Analysis

Financial Review

The Group’s income tax expense was HK$25 million (2021: HK$66 million),
representing a decrease of HK$41 million as compared with last year.
The decrease of income tax expense was mainly due to changes in
withholding tax rates after the application of preferential tax rates to the
withholding tax on distribution of dividends by certain subsidiaries in
Mainland China and Taiwan.

Liquidity and Financial Conditions

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had net current assets of HK$2,042
million (2021: HK$2,024 million), which represented a 1% increase
over last year. Cash and bank balances (including pledged deposits)
amounted to HK$700 million (2021: HK$1,198 million), representing
a decrease of HK$498 million as compared to last year. The bank
borrowings were HK$22 million (2021: HK$69 million), decreased by
HK$47 million, which were short term loans with floating interest rates
for general working capital purposes. The Group recorded a net cash
position of HK$678 million (2021: HK$1,129 million), representing a
decrease of HK$451 million.

The gearing ratio of the Group is measured as total borrowings net of
cash and bank balances divided by total assets. The Group had a net
cash position as at 31 March 2022. As a result, no gearing ratio was
presented.

It is the policy of the Group to adopt a consistently prudent financial

management strategy, sufficient liquidity is maintained to meet the
funding requirements of the Group’s capital investments and operations.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22
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Management’s Discussion & Analysis

Charge on Assets

As at 31 March 2022, bank deposits of certain subsidiaries of the Group
in the amount of HK$27 million (2021: HK$52 million) were pledged,
including HK$3 million (2021: HK$11 million) for securing bank loans
granted by banks in Mainland China to customers to purchase the
Group’s products, and HK$24 million (2021: HK$41 million) for securing
the issuance of bank acceptance notes, recorded in the trade and bills
payables, to suppliers. In addition, bills receivable of a subsidiary of
the Group in the amount of HK$98 million (2021: HK$16 million) was
pledged for securing the issuance of bank acceptance notes, included
in the trade and bills payables, to suppliers.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had capital commitments of HK$13
million (2021: HK$41 million), mainly in respect of the upgrading
of industrial facilities and the purchases of production equipment in
Mainland China which are to be funded by internal resources of the
Group.

Treasury and Foreign Exchange Risk Management

The Group adopts a prudent approach in managing its funding. Funds,
are primarily denominated in the Hong Kong Dollar, the Renminbi,
the New Taiwanese Dollar, the U.S. Dollar and the Euro, are generally
placed with banks in short or medium term deposits for working capital
of the Group.

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had borrowings in Japanese yen
equivalent to HK$22 million (2021: HK$24 million) for payments to
suppliers in Japanese yen. The Group, from time to time, assesses the
risk exposure on certain volatile foreign currencies and manages it in
appropriate manner to minimize the risk.

The Group has substantial investments in Mainland China and is aware
that any fluctuation of the Renminbi would have an impact on the net
profits of the Group. However, since most of the transactions of the Group
are conducted with the Renminbi, the exchange differences have no
direct impact on the Group’s actual operations and cash flows.
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Management’s Discussion & Analysis

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2022, the Group provided (i) guarantees to banks
amounted to HK$4 million (2021: HK$1 million) for bank loans granted
to customers to purchase the Group’s products; and (ii) performance
guarantee to a bank amounted to HK$0.2 million (2021: Nil) provided
to a customer.

Relationship with Customers and Suppliers

It has long been the Group’s motto “Our Customer’s Need is Our
Command” and to the maximum extent possible the Group puts the
interests and needs of our customers as its primary reason of being.
This includes providing the Group’s customers with the best designed
products, and timely, appropriate pre/after-sales services. Similarly, the
Group strictly selects high-quality suppliers and views its suppliers not
as mere vendors but as strategic partners, important links in its supply
chain. Itis the Group’s procurement policy to maintain good relationship
and communications with suppliers based on the principle of mutual trust.

In the end, the ultimate goal of the Group with regards to customers and

suppliers is “Win-Win”.

—l,

SUPERMASTER Two-Platen Servo Drive Injection Moulding Machine
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Management’s Discussion & Analysis

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group is committed to enhancing environmental protection,
minimizing the impact of its activities on the environment, and complying
with applicable environmental laws. The Group has implemented effective
Environmental Protection Policy (the “Policy”) that enables the Group to
making progress in environmental protection.

Under the Policy, the Group focuses on promoting clean production, and
strives to making the most efficient use of resources in its operations, and
minimizing waste and emission. The Group achieves this aim through
actively re-designing its activities and production methods that encourage
and promote recycling of resources, using environmentally-friendly raw
materials and reviewing production operations constantly to ensure that
the processes are effective and efficient.

The Group enlists its support by engaging and promoting environmental
protection among its suppliers and customers and implementing training
programmes that raise environmental protection awareness among its
employees. Through realistic and achievable key performance targets,
the Group measures the impact of its activities on the local environment
continuously, and conducts research and explores potential innovative
green alternatives that support a green environment.

For details of the Group’s environmental policies and performance, please
refer to the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report 2021/22” to
be published on the websites of the Company and The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in Mainland China, Hong Kong and Taiwan, while the
Company itself is listed on the Stock Exchange. The Group accordingly
shall comply with relevant laws and regulations in Mainland China, Hong
Kong, Taiwan and the respective places of incorporation of the Company
and its subsidiaries.

During the year and up to the date of this annual report, the Board was
unaware of any non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the business and operations of the
Group.
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Management’s Discussion & Analysis

Human Resources

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had approximately 2,300 (2021: 2,300)
full-time employees. The Group offers good remuneration and welfare
packages to its employees and maintains market-competitive pay levels.
Employees are rewarded based on individual as well as the results
performance of the Group.

The Group conducted regular programmes, including comprehensive
educational and professional training, and social counselling activities,
to its employees to enhance staff quality, standards of professional
knowledge and teamwork spirit.

Prospects for the Coming Year

The coming financial year of 2022/23 will prove to be more difficult with
the lockdown of Shanghai in the recent months, causing significant havoc
to logistics and supply chains. Adding to this are uncertain international
factors including the continued conflict between Russia and Ukraine,
disturbances in global financial markets as well as persistently high
raw material prices worldwide. Major economic indicators in China are
trending significantly downwards — evidence of weak sentiments in
consumer markets and industrial production. Internationally, regional
conflict is triggering a series of escalating impacts on energy prices,
consumption levels and currency exchange rates. Under such uncertain
circumstances, many manufacturing enterprises are relying on their final
fallback — the Government — for assistance or even a bailout.

Based on global conditions, the Group takes a conservative view towards
the coming financial year, but will continue to follow its motto of “Be
Honest, be Aggressive and Dare to Embrace Responsibility” and also take
this opportunity to conduct a complete internal operations review. The
Group will use this time to “reinvent” itself, revising and improving all
procedures and management structures, with an emphasis on international
management standards and efficiency. Despite a generally weak market,
some industries, such as electric vehicles and environmental equipment,
are relatively less affected; therefore, the Group will also focus on these
industries in the near future and invest more heavily into developing
the two-platen large-tonnage injection moulding machines that suit
their needs. With products that remain market-popular, strong financial
strength, solid management structure and good corporate governance,
the Group will try its best to minimize the potential impact arising from
the challenges of the coming year.
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Executive Director

Lai Yuen CHIANG B4, JP

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Ms. Chiang joined the Group in 1988 and was appointed a Director of
the Company in 2000 and the Chairman of the board of the Company
in April 2018. She is also the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
responsible for the management and business development of the Group.
Ms. Chiang holds directorships in various subsidiaries of the Company
and is a Director of Chen Hsong Investments Limited and Chiangs’
Industrial Holdings Limited, substantial shareholders of the Company.
She is the sole Director and shareholder of Proficient City Investments
Limited (deemed to be a substantial shareholder of the Company by virtue
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance). She holds a bachelor degree
of Arts from Wellesley College, U.S.A. and has extensive experience
in production management, sales and marketing. Ms. Chiang is an
Independent Non-executive Director of Hang Seng Bank Limited (listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited). She is also a member
of Guangdong Provincial Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference, Vice-President of China Plastics Machinery
Industry Association, Vice-Chairman of the Federation of Shenzhen
Industries and Vice-President of China Shenzhen Machinery Association.
She had served as a standing committee member of the Shenzhen
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
during 2000 to 2021. Ms. Chiang was awarded the “Young Industrialist
Awards of Hong Kong” by the Federation of Hong Kong Industries in
2004. Ms. Chiang, aged 56, is a daughter of the late Dr. Chen CHIANG.

Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG wmBA, BSc

Mr. Chung joined the Group in 2001 and was appointed a Director of the
Company in 2003. He also holds the position of Group Chief Officer —
Strategy, Sales and Marketing. Mr. Chung holds directorships in certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Chung, aged 55, holds a bachelor
degree of Science in Electrical Engineering & Computer Science from
the University of California, Berkeley. He also holds an MBA degree
in Finance from Columbia University, New York City, U.S.A.. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Chung, had more than 14 years’ experience in
sales and marketing, management consultancy, financial analysis and
information technology.
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Biographical Details of Directors

Independent Non-executive Director
Bernard Charnwut CHAN GBM, GBS, JP
(former name: CHAN Chi Sze Bernard)

Mr. Chan was appointed a Director of the Company in 2004. Mr. Chan,
aged 57, is a graduate of Pomona College in California, U.S.A.. He has
been elected a Deputy to the National People’s Congress of the People’s
Republic of China since January 2008. He is the former Convenor of the
Non-official Members of the Executive Council and a former member of
the Legislative Council of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.
Mr. Chan is the Chairman of each of the Hong Kong-Thailand Business
Council, Hong Kong Palace Museum Ltd., M Plus Museum Ltd. and Tai
Kwun Culture & Arts Co. Ltd.. In addition, he serves as the Chairperson
of The Hong Kong Council of Social Service and a Board Member
of West Kowloon Cultural District Authority. Mr. Chan is currently the
Chairman, an executive director and the President of Asia Financial
Holdings Limited (listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”)), an executive director and the Chairman of Asia
Insurance Company, Limited, and an advisor to Bangkok Bank (China)
Company Limited. He is an Independent Non-executive Director of
Yau Lee Holdings Limited, China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company
Limited, and Cathay Pacific Airways Limited, all of which are listed on
the Stock Exchange. He is also a director of Bumrungrad Hospital Public
Company Limited which is a company listed in Thailand.

Anish LALVANI BSc, MBA, FHKIoD

Mr. Lalvani was appointed a Director of the Company in 2002. He is
the Chairman of Euro Suisse International Limited which has business
interests in Hong Kong, Europe, Africa and the Middle East. He has
lived and worked in the U.K., U.S.A., India and Hong Kong and holds
an MBA degree from the University of San Diego. Mr. Lalvani has
extensive marketing experience in the emerging markets and an in-depth
knowledge of electrical appliances manufacturers in China — many of
whom have in-house moulding facilities. He is the former Chairman for
both the North Asia Region and the Hong Kong Chapter of the Young
Presidents’ Organization. Mr. Lalvani, aged 56, is a member of the
Hong Kong Friends’ Committee of Asian Cultural Council, a Member
of the HKUST Business School Advisory Council and a Fellow of The
Hong Kong Institute of Directors. He resigned as a Trustee/Member of
Kew Foundation/Council and a Director of Harvard Business School
Association of Hong Kong Limited on 11 March 2020 and 17 August
2017, respectively.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22




FFE Ba, mBA

MEERZSZ N\FRZTRARAES « #
BILAKREER QT Oxer LimitedZEE ° A
FER—NNECFAERETERRAESFE K
B—EHEEBEREEARBIERAFEBIRERR
AR MBEGRAEEETSAETERS - I
R—NNREF B A LR B EMNREIREE
BERAR  FLE  RFE6IRE - RERE
S#E - WA Bowdoin College X £+ &4y
METEARETHERELEMN - MELRA
FEEEXERAR(NEBHAERZMERA
BI([HERRFT)) ETH) ZFEHITES - UREE
ELSGNESZREIERE - RBAYREERS
MEERMERD R LR BIERBR AT (R
BRTEMMBIIENTES  URESS
INEB AR ARIHIB IEMITEBERESF o

BREE K BA, BSSC

REER-_BEZE—FEZERTRRES -
R_E—=ZFRAZE_ZT—R"FNARZZT—
“FZAEZT—+EFANA YD B ARaimon
Land Public Company Limited (A ZEE % %
RGP EM)THBERES - RALLETH
W BAERFIBEEBEBR-_TFMNIREAR
TS - FERZHETELHERLT TR
B1% - 2 BFEIP Morgan + UBS Warburg
B8 & BNP Paribas Capital (Singapore)
Limited » M ¥ % ABNP Paribas Capital
(Singapore) Limited 2 {TER#8%E, - LARERE T
ErEMEXEHB L BEEE - HEEMEASZ
BAARCERBITHERHRER o FRAE -
WRF6LR BERFTMBEELAE - WEHE
ELim Tay Boh 222 37 ik B 37 K B4 7 &2
BEER -

EEEEBR AR 2021/22 Fik

EECEAEHR
Biographical Details of Directors

Michael Tze Hau LEE BA, MBA

Mr. Lee was appointed a Director of the Company in 2008. He is a Director
of Oxer Limited, a private investment company. Mr. Lee started his career
in the investment industry in 1987 and has since held senior management
positions in multinational investment companies including Indosuez Asia
Investment Services Limited and Lloyd George Management. He also
co-founded Asia Strategic Investment Management Limited in 1995. Mr.
Lee, aged 61, was educated in the U.S.A. and holds a Bachelor of Arts
Degree from Bowdoin College and a Master of Business Administration
Degree from Boston University. Mr. Lee is a Non-executive Director of
Hysan Development Company Limited (listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)) and the Deputy Chairman of
the Board of Stewards of The Hong Kong Jockey Club. He was previously
an Independent Non-executive Director of Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited and Trinity Limited (which are listed on the Stock
Exchange), and an Independent Non-executive Director and Chairman
of OTC Clearing Hong Kong Limited.

Johnson Chin Kwang TAN B4, BSSc

Mr. Tan was appointed a Director of the Company in 2001. He was the
Chief Executive Officer and a Director of Raimon Land Public Company
Limited (listed on The Stock Exchange of Thailand) from May 2013 to
June 2016 and from February 2013 to June 2017, respectively. Mr. Tan
has over 20 years’ experience in investment banking based out of New
York, Hong Kong and Singapore. He had held various roles with leading
financial institutions including JP Morgan, UBS Warburg, Macquarie
and BNP Paribas Capital (Singapore) Limited where he was the Chief
Executive Officer and regional head for their South East Asia corporate
finance business. He has advised major corporations and government
authorities across the region. Mr. Tan, aged 61, graduated from the
National University of Singapore and was a recipient of the Lim Tay Boh
gold medal and NUS Economics Society Book Prize.
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Corporate Governance Report

Corporate Governance Practices

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company recognizes the
importance of good corporate governance practices in safeguarding the
interests of the shareholders and enhancing the performance of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”). The Board is committed
to maintaining and ensuring a high standard of corporate governance
practices.

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company has complied
with all the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), except for the following deviations:

Code provision A.4.2+ provides that every director should be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. The directors
of the Company (except the Chairman of the Company) are subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years as the Chen Hsong
Holdings Limited Company Act, 1991 of Bermuda provides that the
chairman and the managing director of the Company are not required
to retire by rotation.

Code provision A.2.1* provides that the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG is the Chairman of the
Board and Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Given the skills
and experience of Ms. CHIANG and her long term of service with the
Group, this structure can be considered appropriate to the Group and
can provide the Group with strong and consistent leadership for effective
and efficient business planning and decisions, as well as execution of
long term business strategies.

* Re-numbered as code provision B.2.2 since 1 January 2022

*  Re-numbered as code provision C.2.1 since 1 January 2022

Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting

During the financial year ended 31 March 2022, the Company has
complied with Rule 13.91 of the Listing Rules and the “comply or
explain” provisions set out in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules as
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide, and made
disclosures concerning relevant information in the “Environmental, Social
and Governance Report 2021/22"of the Company which, outlines the
policies, sustainability strategies, management approach and initiatives
implemented by the Group and the performance of the Group in
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Corporate Governance Report

environmental, social and governance aspects of its business, and
will be presented in a separate report and published on the websites
of the Company at www.chenhsong.com and the Stock Exchange at
www.hkexnews.hk in due course.

Board of Directors

As at the date of this report, the Board consists of two executive directors
and four independent non-executive directors:

Executive Directors:

Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN
Mr. Anish LALVANI

Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE

Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN

The biographical details of all directors are set out on pages 19 to 21
of this annual report. Each director brings a wide range and years of
business and/or professional experience to the Board. Their combined
experience, knowledge and expertise are valuable in overseeing the
Group’s business.

A list of directors of the Company and their role and function is posted
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Role and Responsibilities of the Board

The primary responsibilities of the Board are to establish the Group’s
vision, strategic direction, general policies and strategic business plans;
to monitor and control the operating and financial performance of the
Group; to implement the best corporate governance practices throughout
the Group; and to set appropriate policies to assess and manage risks
in pursuit of the strategic objectives of the Group.

Delegation to Management

The Board has delegated the daily operations of the Company to the
Management comprising all executive directors, management staff, and
operating heads of different business units. The main responsibilities of
the Management are to implement the strategies and business plans
set by the Board and to manage the Group’s business operations in
accordance with the policies and directives of the Board.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22
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Corporate Governance Report

Board Meetings and Attendance

The Board held six meetings throughout the year at approximately
quarterly intervals to review the overall strategies and the operating and
financial performance of the Group. The Company Secretary assists the
Chairman in setting the agenda for Board meetings in consultation with
all directors. Notice of at least 14 days is given to all directors for all
regular Board meetings, and all directors are given opportunity to include
matters for discussion in the agenda. Draft minutes of Board meetings
are circulated to all directors for comments. Minutes of Board meetings
with details of matters considered by the Board and decisions reached are
kept by the Company Secretary and open for inspection by the directors.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2022, six Board meetings
and one general meeting were held and the attendance record of each

ARE  BUEEZRRBLEHINWOT director is as follows:
EERgE BRAE

HERE GFRE HERE, EERRE
EEHA Number of Board Meetings | Number of General Meetings
Name of Director Attended/Held Attended/Held
BITESE
Executive Directors
BB T (FEREFLE) 6/6 1/1
Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG (Chairman and

Chief Executive Officer)

EWR A 6/6 1/1
Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG
BAFHITES
Independent Non-executive Directors
PRES BT 6/6 1/1
Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN
Anish LALVANIS 4 6/6 1/1
Mr. Anish LALVANI
MFELE 5/6 1/1
Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE
BREE Y5 & 6/6 1/1
Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN

EIEEBEBR AT 2021/22 FiK

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22




ExREHEENARELEREXHIRERES
RERRHMEL=REHEAXMEES - 2
REZHARNGEZREXM MEHEER - &
AEEENBRATSRBLEXESR - BAMA
ARBEN - AEEFARBARWENER
MERMBIRY - MEREFRIEFMERZ
HERINR RIS EST -

ESHERR

ARRERBZERITBRABRAAEEEH M
EzEEREEERR - ARREFRARR
RS 2 &EE -

IEREEAR

REBEE-E - —F=ZA=Z+—HILZHRFE
AN BERAXTAEEREIRAANTEER
H-IREEEZKH I ACEEERTE - U
BREEEARRZHEELRBE -

ITFEREERRBIAGECERBOEEREY
SEREELH  REEERNEBEERY
BRGEE -

HAEREEAKENES  fIERRRERE
B WEEERENHY TERESBRMANE
BE A o

RAREEAY  BEAEALXIREZRIE
RARAEEAR - RELTRAUERER
PRI SPRIG X EA2. L 2 RE - EEHE%
BREnAeEAERD - X TEH— AR
AL - AT ERBLLHOREMERIAR
BRORERAKE  ZRBAGRES

SE - YA /AEEEHEAEERMNES
N REBREARES MRS FORE -
AN BERITR IS RES -

Y JoFE - - A HESEHEERTAE
XEFEC2.11F

EEEEBR AR 2021/22 Fik

TEERBEE
Corporate Governance Report

The agendas and accompanying board papers for regular Board meetings
are sent out in full package to all directors at least three days before the
date of each Board meeting. All directors have access to board papers
and related materials and may, in appropriate circumstances, seek
independent professional advice at the Company’s expense. All directors
have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary, who
ensures that board procedures and applicable rules and regulations are
followed.

Liability Insurance for Directors

The Company has in force appropriate insurance coverage on directors’
and officers’ liabilities arising from the Group’s business. The Company
reviews the extent of insurance coverage on an annual basis.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

During the financial year ended 31 March 2022, Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG
was the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer
are defined clearly to ensure the accountability and responsibility with
respect to the management of the Company.

The Chairman and Chief Executive Officer focuses on overall corporate
development and high-level strategic directions of the Group, provides
leadership to the Board, and oversees the efficient functioning of the
Board.

She is responsible for managing the business of the Group, policy making
and corporate management and the implementation of strategies and
initiatives adopted by the Board with the support from the Management.

As at the date of this report, Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG is the Chairman
of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Pursuant to
code provision A.2.1* of the CG Code of the Listing Rules, the roles of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. However, given the skills
and experience of Ms. CHIANG and her long term of service with the
Group, this structure can be considered appropriate to the Group and
can provide the Group with strong and consistent leadership for effective
and efficient business planning and decisions, as well as execution of
long term business strategies.

*

Re-numbered as code provision C.2.1 since 1 January 2022
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Corporate Governance Report

Independent Non-executive Directors and Independence

Each independent non-executive director of the Company has entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of not more
than three years and in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws is
subject to retirement by rotation and eligible for re-election. Any further
re-appointment of an independent non-executive director who has served
the Company’s Board for more than nine years will be subject to separate
resolution to be approved by the shareholders of the Company.

The Company has received from each independent non-executive
director an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Nomination Committee reviewed
and assessed the individual independent non-executive director’s
annual confirmation of independence and considered all independent
non-executive directors remained independent within the definition of
the Listing Rules. The independent non-executive director is required to
inform the Company as soon as practicable if there is any change that
may affect his independence.

The independent non-executive directors will take lead in considering
matters which a substantial shareholder or a director has conflict of
interest. Board committee comprising independent non-executive
directors will be formed to advise the independent shareholders on
connected transaction to be approved by the independent shareholders
at the special general meeting of the Company.

The Board is grateful for the contribution and independent advice and
guidance that the independent non-executive directors have been giving
to the Board and the Board committees.

Confirmations have been received from the directors that they are
able to devote sufficient time as and when required to discharge their
responsibility as a director of the Company. Besides, the directors have
disclosed to the Company their interests as directors and other offices
in public companies or organizations and other significant commitments
in a timely manner and have updated the Company on any subsequent
changes.
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Directors’ Continuous Training and Development

On appointment to the Board, each director receives a comprehensive
induction package covering the Company’s constitutional documents, the
policy and procedures of the Company as well as the general, statutory
and regulatory obligations of being a director to ensure that he/she is
sufficiently aware of his/her responsibilities under the Listing Rules and
other relevant requirements.

The directors are regularly briefed on the amendments to or updates on
the Listing Rules, corporate governance practices, other regulatory regime
and the business development of the Company. To keep abreast of the
responsibilities of the directors and infuse them with new knowledge,
reading materials (including e-learning materials provided by the Stock
Exchange) had been provided during the financial year ended 31 March
2022. Apart from what the Company had arranged, certain directors also
attended other external training seminars.

The directors are required to provide the Company with details of the
training undertaken by them. Based on the details so provided, the
training undertaken by the directors during the financial year ended 31
March 2022 is summarized as follows:

2BEN HAR SHESRE
ENE REWTE ' HRE

(ER%K  EBE5T - 2RRCEEHR
Reading Materials/Journals and/or
Attending Briefings/Presentations/
Webinars/Seminars/Conferences
(Relevant to the Business,

Executive Directors

Bt (EEREEEE)

BYRTE

Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG
BIYkHTES

Independent Non-executive Directors
Eﬁ%/@\?ﬁi

Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN

Anish LALVANI% &
Mr. Anish LALVANI

FFE 5L
Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE

BREE S Se 4
Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN

EEnA Directors’ Duties, Regulatory &
Name of Director Corporate Governance)
HITES

Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

EEEEBR AR 2021/22 Fik
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct regarding Securities
Transactions by the Directors (the “Code of Conduct”) on terms no less
exacting than the required standard as set out in the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. The Company, after having
made specific enquiry of all directors, confirms that all directors have
complied with the required standard set out in the Code of Conduct and
the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2022.

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises six members, consisting of two executive
directors (including the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) and four
independent non-executive directors. The name of chairman, executive
directors and independent non-executive directors are set out under
the heading “Board of Directors” aforementioned. Independent non-
executive directors provide the Group with a wide range of expertise and
experience as well as checks and balances to safeguard the interests
of the shareholders. Members of the Board, who come from a variety of
different backgrounds, have a diverse range of business and professional
expertise. The biographical details of the directors are set out on pages 19
to 21 of this annual report. The updated list of directors of the Company
identifying their roles and functions and whether they are independent
non-executive directors is available on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange. Independent non-executive directors are also
identified as such in all corporate communications that disclose the
names of directors of the Company.

Appointments of Board members and selection of candidates are
considered objectively based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including, but not limited to, gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional qualifications and experience, skills, knowledge,
length of tenure and industry and regional experience that the Board
may consider relevant and appropriate from time to time.
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RZE__F=—A=+—H  BBERIMREZHK  An analysis of the Board’s current composition as at 31 March 2022
BHEEATAT : is as follows:
EZgA BHEAL
BUREAE ik} Number of Approximate
Diversity perspective Category directors percentage
7l Z Male 5 83.3%
Gender Z M Female 16.7%
iz FREE Chinese 2 33.3%
Nationality JFEI% Non-Chinese 66.7%
FHERARI 608k A £ 60 or over 2 33.3%
Age group 51-60 66.7%
s 2034+ 20 or over 3 50.0%
Length of tenure 10-19 3 50.0%
E) #1TEE Executive Director 2 33.3%
Capacity B IF1TE S Independent Non-executive Director 4 66.7%
REM ETIAREFES (L A2 E) 5 16.7%
Other listed company directorship(s) 2 33.3%
(number of companies) 0 3 50.0%
EREES Audit Committee
BEREEGR—NMNN\FKIL - REHE The Audit Committee was established in 1998. As at the date of this

H - %**z‘ééiéﬁs\ﬁﬁm{iﬁﬂﬁﬂ%T%%
FRES B 44 -~ Anish LALVANIZEA ~ FIFE%
A RMBRE S A o Anish LALVANIGEAE BZ B
EEE o

EZZEENACREBRARFRABLEAR
BEFERENTE - UZEFRAEEMBE

HoEREEMABERESFE YEEREAX
RAESNEZBEIN R - BRE S GRIER
B TIBAN AR B B3P 2 8k £ o
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report, the Audit Committee comprises four independent non-executive
directors, namely Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN, Mr. Anish LALVANI,
Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE and Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN. Mr. Anish
LALVANI is the Committee Chairman.

The roles of the Audit Committee are to ensure that the Company has
formal and transparent arrangements for considering matters relating to
the Group’s financial reporting, risk management and internal control
and overseeing the Company’s relationship with the Company’s external
auditor. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are posted on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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The Audit Committee held two meetings (totalling four sessions) during
the financial year ended 31 March 2022 to review with the Company’s
external auditor and external consultant, the Group’s financial results
and internal controls and related matters. The attendance record of each
member is as follows:

Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN

EREEERE HERE EBRE
Members of Audit Committee Number of Meetings Attended/Held
BAFHITES

Independent Non-executive Directors

PRES BT 2/2
Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN

Anish LALVANI%c 4 2/2
Mr. Anish LALVANI

FFERE 2/2
Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE

PR EE ST A 2/2

REBE_Z-__F=A=+—HIEZMBFE
N BRZBECET:

BAARE2FRT R HHRR BB
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o EHEMERZED  ULFEEAEHE
MBmR 2T E
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B
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During the financial year ended 31 March 2022, the Audit Committee had:

e reviewed the Group’s annual and interim financial statements with
respect to their true and fairness, and discussed with the external
auditor;

e reviewed the changes in accounting standards and their impacts on
the Group’s financial statements;

e made recommendation on the re-appointment of external auditor and
reviewed their audit fees;

reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control systems;

approved the 2021/2022 Internal Audit Plan;
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e reviewed the internal audit findings and recommendations of the
external internal control consultant and the respective responses of
the Management;

e reviewed the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function;

e reviewed the Group’s compliance with regulatory and statutory
requirements;

e reviewed the annual plan on risk management control;

e reviewed the update on risk management; and

e reviewed the risk assessment reports.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established in 2005. As at the date
of this report, the Remuneration Committee comprises four independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN, Mr. Anish
LALVANI, Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE and Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN,
and the Chairman, Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer, Ms. Lai
Yuen CHIANG. Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN is the Committee Chairman.
The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are posted on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The main responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure for the
remuneration of directors and senior management. It also reviews and
determines the remuneration packages for executive directors and
senior management and to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration for non-executive directors of the Group with reference
to the corporate goals and objectives. The Remuneration Committee
considers factors such as duties and responsibilities of the executive
directors and senior management and the amount of remuneration paid
by comparable companies.
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Remuneration packages of executive directors comprises salary,
allowances, performance related bonus and pension scheme contributions.
Information about directors’ emoluments during the financial year ended
31 March 2022 is set out in note 9 to the financial statements of this
annual report.

The Remuneration Committee held three meetings during the financial
year ended 31 March 2022. The attendance record of each member
is as follows:

FMEEERE

Members of Remuneration Committee

HERE EBRE
Number of Meetings Attended/Held

BYFHTES

Independent Non-executive Directors
BRE BAEAE

Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN

Anish LALVANI % 4
Mr. Anish LALVANI

FFESLE
Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE

BREE S 524
Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN

HITES
Executive Director

BB U (EEREERE)

Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

3/3

3/3

2/3

3/3

3/3

RBZE-_Z-__F=A=+—RIZVWHRFE
A - HE B e ES Z BB NEERER
RBFARABIESE - BEATEREERR
K e BBYMARENTESR(RE
RARBBREERAR) 2HHEN(BRERER
FaRRBBMELURBIFNTESTZ
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SRLMERAZHMEIER -
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For the financial year ended 31 March 2022, the Remuneration Committee
had reviewed, approved and made recommendations to the Board on the
matters relating to the remuneration packages (including basic salaries
and performance related bonus) of the executive directors (also being
the senior management of the Company) and the directors’ fees of the
independent non-executive directors after assessing their duties and
responsibilities and individual performance as well as the corporate
performance and in consultation with the proposals of the Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer. No individual director took part in voting his/her
own remuneration at the meeting.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established in 2012. As at the date
of this report, the Nomination Committee comprises four independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN, Mr. Anish
LALVANI, Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE and Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN.
Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN is the Committee Chairman. The terms
of reference of the Nomination Committee are posted on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the structure,
size and diversity of the Board and making recommendations on any
proposed change to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy and to make reference to the Company’s Board Diversity Policy,
assessing the independence of independent non-executive directors,
and making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of directors and succession planning for directors.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board adopted and revised the Board Diversity Policy (the “Policy”)
in November 2018 which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on
the Board. The Policy is summarized below:

e |n reviewing the structure, size and diversity of the Board at least
annually, the Nomination Committee will consider a number of aspects
of the Board diversity, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional qualifications and
experience, skills, knowledge, length of service and industry and
regional experience (the “Board Diversity Criteria”).

e |n selection and nomination of qualified individuals to become Board
members, the Nomination Committee will consider the Board Diversity
Criteria.

e The Nomination Committee will review and monitor the implementation
of the Policy on an annual basis to ensure its effectiveness.

The Board emphases on diversity (including gender diversity) across
all levels of the Group. As at the date of this annual report, the Board
comprises six Directors, one of whom is female, it stands at 16.7%. The
Board considers that gender diversity on the Board has been achieved.
Further details on the gender ratio of the Group across the workforce
(including senior management), together with relevant data, can be
found in the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report 2021/22”
of the Company.
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Nomination Policy

The Board adopted a Nomination Policy in November 2018 which sets out
the criteria and process on the nomination and appointment of directors.
The Board has delegated the relevant selection and appointment of
directors to the Nomination Committee, which identifies suitable qualified
candidates to become Board members and recommends them to the
Board. In assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate, the Nomination
Committee would assess and evaluate the candidate’s character and
integrity, qualifications, skills, experience, gender and diversity aspects
under the Board Diversity Policy that are relevant to the Company’s
business and corporate strategy, devoting adequate time to effectively
carry out their duties, and fulfilment of the independence requirements as
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules (for independent non-executive
directors). After the evaluation, the Nomination Committee nominates the
appropriate candidate to the Board for approval and appointment. For
any person that is nominated by a shareholder for election as a director
at the general meeting of the Company, the Nomination Committee
should evaluate such candidate based on the criteria as set out above
to determine whether such candidate is qualified for directorship. Where
appropriate, the Nomination Committee should make recommendation
to shareholders in respect of the proposed election of director at the
general meeting.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the financial year
ended 31 March 2022. The attendance record of each member is as

Z B sRE ST follows:
REZEEHE HEREEBRE
Members of Nomination Committee Number of Meetings Attended/Held
BYFHTES
Independent Non-executive Directors
PRES BT 1/1
Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN
Anish LALVANIZE 4 1/1
Mr. Anish LALVANI
MFERE 11
Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE
BREE SR 1/1

Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN

EIEEBEBR AT 2021/22 FiK
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For the financial year ended 31 March 2022, the Nomination Committee
had reviewed and discussed the structure, size and diversity of the Board,
assessed the independence of independent non-executive directors, and
approved the nomination of the retiring directors to seek for re-election
at the 2021 Annual General Meeting.

Corporate Governance Committee

The Corporate Governance Committee (the “CG Committee”) was
established in 2012. As at the date of this report, the CG Committee
comprises four independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Bernard
Charnwut CHAN, Mr. Anish LALVANI, Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE and Mr.
Johnson Chin Kwang TAN. Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE is the Committee
Chairman.

The CG Committee is responsible for developing and reviewing the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance and making
recommendations to the Board, reviewing and monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of directors and senior management,
reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, developing, reviewing
and monitoring the Code of Conduct applicable to the directors and
employees of the Company and reviewing the Company’s compliance
with the CG Code and disclosures in this report.

The CG Committee held two meetings during the financial year ended
31 March 2022. The attendance record of each member is as follows:

TEERETEERE

Members of Corporate Governance Committee

HERY, EBERE
Number of Meetings Attended/Held

BYFHTES
Independent Non-executive Directors

E% =] /u\flﬁ/_:E
Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN

Anish LALVANISE &
Mr. Anish LALVANI

FFERE
Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE

PR BE e e
Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN

2/2

2/2

2/2

2/2
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For the financial year ended 31 March 2022, the CG Committee had
reviewed the corporate governance compliance status of the Company,
the board evaluation questionnaires completed by the directors, the
compliance with the Codes for Securities Transactions by Directors
and Relevant Employees and the training and continuous professional
development records of directors and senior management.

External Auditor’s Remuneration

External auditor’s remuneration for the financial year ended 31 March
2022 amounted to a total of HK$3,108,000, of which HK$2,705,000
was incurred for audit services, HK$183,000 for tax-related services and
HK$220,000 for other non-audit services.

Accountability and Audit

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the financial year
ended 31 March 2022 have been audited by the external auditor, Ernst &
Young, and reviewed by the Audit Committee. The directors acknowledge
their responsibility for preparing the consolidated financial statements of
the Group which were prepared in accordance with statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards.

A statement by the external auditor about the responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2022 is set out in the Independent Auditor's Report
on pages 63 to 71 of this annual report.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Group acknowledges certain aspects of risks (including environmental,
social and governance risks) are inherent in its businesses and the markets
it operates, and in pursuit of its corporate objectives, undertakes to
determine and monitor material risks in order to enable sustainable growth
and long term shareholder value. The Group implements a comprehensive
Risk Management and Internal Control System (the “Control System”)
which is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that
significant risks are identified and managed, transactions are executed in
accordance with management’s authorization, assets are protected, the
financial statements are accurate and reliable for publication, and the
Group’s activities are in compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
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The risk management and internal control process is embedded in the
Group’s daily businesses and operations, which involves understanding
the context, identifying potential exposures, assessing the likelihood
of consequences, determining the risk level, establishing appropriate
mitigating measures and followed by appropriate reporting.

The Control System involves an organizational control structure which
emphasizes defined lines of duties and responsibilities, delegation of
authority and segregation of duties. At the top of the risk governance
structure sits the Board who oversees and is responsible for the Control
System and ensures its adequacy and effectiveness and acknowledge that
such system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. The Board
delegates implementation responsibilities of the Control System to the
Risk Management Committee which comprises senior and experienced
members of management. The Risk Management Committee supervises
and facilitates the implementation of the Control System with appropriate
guidelines and tools, tracks material risks and mitigating activities, and
determines significant control failings or weaknesses that have occurred.
The execution of the Control System is entrusted to the Business Units,
and within the Business Units, the Functional Groups. Each Business Unit
is headed by a General Manager and Financial Controller whose duties
are to control the activities of the Business Unit, ensure appropriate and
adequate operational policies, standards and procedures are in place and
are properly executed. The heads of the Functional Groups exercise risk
assessment in their daily decision making processes, escalate and report
material risks to the Business Unit heads. Through discussion with the
respective Business and Functional Unit heads, the Risk Management
Committee as supported by an independent external internal control
consultant whom presents and summarizes a Risk Assessment Report
for discussion with the Audit Committee.

The Group is able to call for assistance from outside professionals to
support difficult risk controlling matters.

[ Bz T2 fi% B RllIE SRR B2 1B e
Understand |dentify Analyze Evaluate Mitigate/
Context Risk Risk Impact Control
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Audit Committee and Internal Audit

The Board appoints the Audit Committee with clear terms of reference,
which comprises independent non-executive directors who are
well-experienced in corporate management. The Audit Committee
oversees and evaluates the adequacy and effectiveness of the Control
System. It also identifies areas for improvement, reviews the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and
budget of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting

functions.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has delegated the internal
audit function of the Group to an independent professional firm which
was appointed to act as an external internal control consultant, to
conduct regular reviews of the business process and operations of
Business Units and/or operating subsidiaries and report findings, risk
and recommendations on any control issues identified in the course
of their work. The Board considers that the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems are effective and adequate. The external
internal control consultant also developed a risk-based approach for the
internal audit and established annual internal audit plan and scope of
review, covering major activities and processes of the Group’s operations,
businesses and Business Units. The results of these audit activities
are communicated to the Audit Committee and heads of the Business
Units and the Functional Groups. Audit issues are tracked, followed up
for proper implementation, and their progress are reported to the Audit
Committee periodically. The Company Secretary keeps full minutes of all
Audit Committee meetings. Drafts and final versions of minutes of the
Audit Committee meetings are sent to all committee members for their
comment and record.

External Audit

The Board appoints the external auditor, Ernst & Young, to perform
independent statutory audits of the Group’s financial statements. The
external auditor attends meetings with the Audit Committee, discuss and
report the nature and scope of the audit, any significant deficiencies in
internal control identified during the audit of the consolidated financial
statements, and significant findings from the audit.
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2022 Assessment

During the year, an independent professional firm, acting as an external
internal control consultant, was appointed to conduct the review of
internal control and risk management systems for certain principal
subsidiaries’ operation with a view to identifying any gaps in the Control
System and making recommendations for improvement. The results of
such assessments were submitted to the Audit Committee during the
year. In addition to the Control System, a whistleblowing arrangement is in
place such that employees can report their concerns or any misconduct,
improper or fraudulent activities committed by other personnel in the
Group. All reported whistleblowing matters were handled and investigated
confidentially and independently.

Based on the respective assessments, the Board acknowledges that an
adequate and effective risk management and internal control process was
in place for the year ended 31 March 2022. The resources, qualifications,
experience, training programmes and budget of the employees of the
Group'’s accounting and financial reporting and internal audit functions
were adequate. The Group has complied with the risk management and
internal control code provisions for the year ended 31 March 2022.

Dividend Policy

The Board has established a Dividend Policy setting out the principles
and guidelines that the Company intends to apply when considering the
declaration, payment or distribution of its net profits as dividends to the
shareholders of the Company. The payment of dividend is also subject
to any restrictions under the Bermuda laws and the Company’s Bye-laws
and any other applicable statutory and regulatory restrictions, during
declaration and payment of dividends to shareholders of the Company.

Procedures and Internal Controls for the Handling and
Dissemination of Inside Information

The Company complies with the requirements of Part XIVA of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) and the Listing Rules. The
Company discloses inside information to the public as soon as reasonably
practicable after any inside information has come to its knowledge unless
the information falls within any of the “Safe Harbours” as provided for
in the SFO. Before the information is fully disclosed to the public, the
If the
Company believes that the necessary degree of confidentiality cannot be

Company ensures the information is kept strictly confidential.

maintained or that confidentiality may have been breached, the Company
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would immediately disclose the information to the public. The Company
is committed to ensure that information contained in announcements
are not false or misleading as to a material fact, or false or misleading
through the omission of a material fact, to provide for equal, timely and
effective access by the public to the inside information disclosed.

For the purpose of handling and disseminating inside information in
accordance with the SFO and the Listing Rules, the Company has taken
various procedures and measures, including arousing the awareness to
preserve confidentiality of inside information with the Company, sending
blackout period and securities dealing restrictions notification to the
relevant directors and employees regularly, and disseminating information
to specified persons on a need-to-know basis.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary is an employee of the Company and has day-
to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs. The Company Secretary
reports to the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. All directors have
access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary to ensure
that board procedures, and applicable laws, rules and regulations are
followed. The Company Secretary had complied with Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules during the year under review.

Shareholders’ Rights
Convening of Special General Meeting on Requisition

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended) (the “Bermuda Companies Act”), shareholders holding at the
date of the deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth (10%) of
the paid-up share capital of the Company as at the date of the deposit
which carries the right of voting at general meetings of the Company have
the right to requisite the directors to convene a special general meeting
of the Company. The requisition must state the purposes of the special
general meeting, and must be signed by the requisitionist and deposited
at the registered office of the Company.

If the directors do not within 21 days from the date of the deposit of
the requisition proceed duly to convene a special general meeting, the
requisitionist, or any of them representing more than one-half (50%) of
the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene a special
general meeting of the Company.
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Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

Pursuant to the provisions of the Bermuda Companies Act, shareholders
representing not less than one-twentieth (5%) of the total voting rights
of all the shareholders having at the date of the requisition a right to
vote at general meetings of the Company or of at least 100 shareholders
in number of the Company, may put forward any resolution which may
properly be moved and is intended to be moved at a general meeting
of the Company by sending the requisition together with a statement of
not more than 1,000 words with respect to the matter referred to in the
proposed resolution must be deposited at the registered office of the
Company not less than six weeks before the general meeting.

Pursuant to Bye-law 114 of the Company’'s Bye-laws, shareholder(s)
may propose a person other than a retiring director of the Company for
election as a director of the Company at the general meeting by lodging
at the head office of the Company, a written notice of nomination with
the written consent of the nominated person of his/her willingness to be
elected, for a period of at least 7 days which shall commence no earlier
than the day after the dispatch of the notice of general meeting appointed
for such election and end no later than 7 days before the date of such
general meeting. Procedures for shareholder(s) to propose a person for
election as a director are posted on the website of the Company.

Communication with Shareholders

The Board recognizes the importance of good communications with all
shareholders and is committed to a policy of open and timely disclosure
of relevant information through publication of annual and interim
reports, announcements and circulars to shareholders. To enable the
shareholders and investors have timely access to updated information
about the Group, the Company’s website (www.chenhsong.com) contains
important corporate information, annual and interim reports, as well as
announcements and circulars issued by the Company.

The Company usually conducts briefing immediately following the
publication of the announcement of interim and annual results.
Face-to-face meetings and conference calls with institutional investors
and investment analysts are conducted to make sure that shareholders
and potential investors can obtain a good understanding of the Company’s
business. To ensure all shareholders and potential investors receive equal
access to information at the same time, inside information is released by
publication of announcements pursuant to the Listing Rules.
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The annual general meeting provides a useful forum for shareholders to
exchange views with the Board. Shareholders are encouraged to attend
the annual general meeting for which at least 21 days prior notice is
given. The Board, the Chief Executive Officer and the Chairmen of the
Board committees (or in their absence, other members of the committees)
are available to answer shareholders’ questions at the annual general
meeting. In addition, a representative of the Company’s external auditor is
requested to attend the annual general meeting to answer questions about
the conduct of the audit, the preparation and content of the auditor’s
report, the accounting policies and auditor independence.

In the case of any special general meeting to approve a connected
transaction which is subject to independent shareholders’ approval,
members of the independent Board committee will also make an effort
to attend the meeting to address shareholders’ queries.

Significant issues are dealt with under separate resolutions at general
meeting, including re-election of individual directors. All resolutions set
out in the notice of general meeting put to the vote at the meeting were
by way of a poll. The results of the voting by poll were published on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Board has established a Shareholders’ Communication Policy and
will review it when necessary to ensure its effectiveness.

Shareholders and interested parties are welcome to raise enquiries
through the Company’s Corporate Communications & Investor Relations
Department. The contact details are set out in the section headed
“Corporate Information” of this annual report.

Constitutional Documents

There is no change in the Company’s constitutional documents during
the financial year ended 31 March 2022.

The Board has proposed to amend the existing Bye-laws of the Company
and to adopt the new Bye-laws of the Company in substitution for, and to
the exclusion of, the existing Bye-laws at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.
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The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company present its report
and the audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2022.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding and the
provision of management services.

The principal activities of the subsidiaries comprise the manufacture
and sale of plastic injection moulding machines and related products.
There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal
activities during the year.

Business Review

The business review of the Group as required by Schedule 5 to the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a fair review of the Group’s
business; a description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing
the Group; particulars of important events affecting the Group that have
occurred since the end of the financial year; an indication of likely
future development in the Group’s business; an analysis of the Group’s
performance using financial key performance indicators; a discussion
on the Group’s environmental policies and performance; a discussion
on the Group’s compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the Group; and an account of the key
relationships with its stakeholders that have a significant impact on the
Group and on which the Group’s success depends, can be found in the
“Chairman’s Statement”, “Management’s Discussion & Analysis” and
“Financial Highlights” on pages 6 to 7, pages 8 to 18 and page 3 of this
annual report, respectively. The above sections form part of this report.
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Results and Dividends

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 March 2022 and the financial
position of the Group at that date are set out in the financial statements
on pages 72 to 203 of this annual report.

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK11.6
cents per ordinary share to the shareholders whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company on 5 September 2022. Subject
to the approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company, the final dividend will be payable to shareholders
on or about 19 September 2022. The proposed final dividend together
with the interim dividend of HK5.2 cents per ordinary share paid on
12 January 2022, make a total dividend of HK16.8 cents per ordinary
share for the year.

Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-controlling
interests of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page
207 of this annual report. This summary does not form part of the audited
financial statements of the Group.

Investment Properties

The Group’s investment properties as at 31 March 2022 were revalued
by an independent firm of professionally qualified valuers. The revaluation
increase of HK$13,810,000 has been recognized in the consolidated
income statement. Details of the movements in the investment properties
of the Group during the year are set out in note 15 to the financial
statements. Particulars of the investment properties held by the Group
as at 31 March 2022 are set out on page 208.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.
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Issued Share Capital

There is no movement in the Company’s issued share capital during
the year.

Equity-linked Agreements

Save for the share option scheme of the Company as disclosed in this
annual report, no equity-linked agreements were entered into by the
Group during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed Securities of
the Company

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company during the year.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 March 2022, the Company’s reserves available for distribution,
calculated in accordance with the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), amounted to HK$184,802,000, of which HK$73,142,000
has been proposed as the final dividend for the year.

Charitable Contributions

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totalling
HK$2,811,000 (2021: HK$40,000).
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FEEFRHER Major Customers and Suppliers
RERN » REBZHERARRP @2 E2E  Sales to the five largest customers of the Group accounted for less than
AL EZ BUREETRE30% ° 30% of the Group’s total revenue for the year.

RERN - REBZHEARAREEEBEST ZERE  Purchases from the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for less

RSB BEERETE30% ° than 30% of the Group’s total purchases for the year.

FTERBRAHBEE Principal Risks and Uncertainties

TEREMEEHEEZRAKBUANLBATAEERE  The following table illustrates the current risk management/control

ORI R M ERE A R E IR, ES) activities that are in place to manage or mitigate the major risks of the
Group:

LB %8 B B B 44 ot L B 4% % 45 B

Risk Category Risk Description Mitigation controls to the risk

B EAZ o BEZRETHMRE LM BE o UAXRKEBANMERENAZE  HEFER

Macro-Economic HARBERNEMBREEETHE SABERAEBETISHRK -

Factors 2 . emrleE L ENTRIMERES - Introduce new or upgraded products to
Unfavourable macro-economic cope with the market demand, which are
condition, such as economic supported by the Group's strong research and
recession, may have a detrimental development capabilities.
impact on Company development
and products supply and demand o EHSEZRE - UBWEHINERENE L -
which may affect the profitability of Reorganize the Group's structure in order to
the Company. effectively respond to the change in external

environment.

e BUSBMBINARAERMNIRE TR
FETERESENEEMEIETE
Establish an environment that encourages the
staff to apply result-oriented approach on their
work, and allow the staff to have flexibility in
processing their work within the authorization
limit.
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B Bk AR % 4 i

Mitigation controls to the risk

Human Resources

317 b R A R B AN B B SR Y B R
BRI LR HEKEEMET
BENEETHTE -

Continuing spread and prolonged
occurrence of COVID-19 in the PRC
and other countries may adversely
affect the business operation and
profitability.

BUEMS T REESAREERK
BWAA + HERRNEFLE o
Difficult to recruit suitable talents in
the market to meet the Company's
operational needs, which affects the
Company's normal operations.

7] 2021/22 3

BB I R/ N E AR B R EE  ES
IR BEEEROTE -

Set up an inter-departmental response team
and conduct regular meetings to cope with the
impact brought by the occurrence of COVID-19.

BABERR  KEEGRERURDRE - 1R
DERFAE - hnog B4 e H B R
Restructure the manufacturing organization
together with aggressive measures aimed at
reducing wastage and improving resource
utilization and strengthening the relationships
with suppliers

EE AR -

Implement infection prevention and control
measures.

B EDRI/NAE - EEARRE - BERERABIERE G
BEIBBIT ©

Set up a monitoring team to perform periodic
inspection to ensure that infection prevention
and control measures have been effectively
executed.

I E A B BV BN AR B AR B S @A
TUWBEREGEETAREAERHLETK -
Establish competitive remuneration and fringe
benefits packages to attract suitable talents as
well as retaining the existing staff to meet the
operational needs of the Group.

RETRETNEFEEAIBFIINBIEF -
Provide internal and external trainings to the
staff on different aspects.

HETRIFRIFEBED - FTHREMMEREL
THRETITHMENRK -

Maintain good communication with staff and
collect feedbacks from them regularly to
understand their needs.
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Risk Category Risk Description Mitigation controls to the risk

ANERE) o THRMEKEEE - LME#EER - MBE
Human Resources T2 EREE -

(Continued) Regularly organize team building activities

to facilitate communications and strengthen
bonding between staff.

o HEEIBETRITHBER  THRIUWEMME
NRIAREE o
Conduct exit meeting with resigned staff to
understand and collect their feedbacks on the
Company.

o FEHFEBINIBEARSHAEAT URERE
MAZ ©
Seek assistance from external recruiters to
search suitable talents regularly for facilitating
the recruitment processes.

R R L E o EURMRIETE B RM BRI ARTSHIE - s BRBEEBEMHER AZTEERAEHES

Supply of Raw AREREB AR RRREPRNERN REFRIFHBEFER -

Materials BES o Strictly select high-quality suppliers and
Unable to secure a stable supply of maintain good relationship and communications
raw materials and services which with suppliers based on the principle of mutual
may affect the Company's ability to trust.

deliver products to customers in a

timely manner. e HMIZHENMBUHBSIERHBER  UEX
REMERFTERMEL -

Build strategic partnerships with the key
suppliers so as to take priority in ordering the

raw materials over other buyers.

o HWERIHEFTEMBRRM B ERBERET
TR AREREABERM B IR B KT R
HENEEEWTHIHEETE ©
Prepare forecast on the upcoming sales orders
and the usage of the key raw materials to
ensure existing level of the key raw materials
can support the upcoming production volume
and fulfilling the sales orders.
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Risk Category Risk Description Mitigation controls to the risk

[RETELELE (4B o ERMBEMNBERT  ABNENLTHLAE
Supply of Raw FFEIAMBREERSIHERE -

Materials In circumstances where shortage of raw
(Continued) materials occurs, adjust and rearrange the

production plan to prioritize the production of
urgent sales orders.

s EfFMEBEZSHERSENTRMHERS -
Search for alternative suppliers in different
locations with reasonable price.

fEER o SR EIME IS EE QR H BT o EENLBMTAAR AR AN IR AR A IR B HMGR IR
Crisis Management RREEENEATR @ BECHEE B R EFRE -
FroRpe BEY - EQAIKE - Establish a clear organizational structure and
BEEERIBL reporting lines to ensure that reporting of crisis
Without any mechanism to respond can be carried out in a timely manner.

to the Company's crisis in a timely
manner and propose corresponding o EMEEAR KU AMABBIrIEE ABEKNE

solution, resulting in failure to HNALA RS B -
respond effectively when crisis When crisis occurs, set up a response team
occurs, which affects the Company's consisting of relevant department heads to cope
operations and even causes losses. with the crisis.
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Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into
or existing during the year.

Directors

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG™* (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN**@#
Mr. Anish LALVANI|**@#

Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE**@#

Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN**@#

* Member of the Audit Committee

*  Member of the Remuneration Committee

@ Member of the Nomination Committee

# Member of the Corporate Governance Committee

In accordance with Bye-law 189(viii) of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr.
Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG and Mr. Anish LALVANI will retire from
office by rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

The biographical details of the directors of the Company are set out on

pages 19 to 21 of this annual report. The senior management of the
Company is also executive directors of the Company.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Emoluments

Details of Directors’ emoluments for the year are set out in note 9 to the
financial statements.

Directors’ Material Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements or Contracts

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no transactions, arrangements
or contracts of significance in relation to the business of the Group to
which the Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which a director of the Company
or an entity connected with a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the directors of the
Company is currently in force and was in force during the year and at
the time of approval of this report.

Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

As at 31 March 2022, the number of issued ordinary shares of the
Company was 630,531,600; and the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any associated corporation
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFQ")), as recorded in the register of the Company required to
be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules were as follows:
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RELNTRGRAEERT ZHE (a) Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company
HAEAT
ERITEBR
REBR ZEHNBES T
2R Approximate
HEERA percentage of
Interest in the Company’s
EEHA 54 ordinary shares/ FfsE  issued ordinary
Name of director Capacity underlying shares” Notes shares
BRI En#EEA 9,100,000 (i) 1.44%
Lai Yuen CHIANG Beneficial owner
EA 399,641,620 (2) 63.38%
Other
EMR ExnEEA 2,466,000 (ii) 0.39%
Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG Beneficial owner
PREE St Exn#EAA 484,000 - 0.08%
Johnson Chin Kwang TAN Beneficial owner
Anish LALVANI EA 652,000 (iii) 0.10%
Other
Wit Notes:
(i) MEZE®EZRD - 4,100,000 54K R [ E T (i) Among these interests, 4,100,000 were share options granted by the

BEE(FRESEAN) ZBRHE -

Company to the director as beneficial owner.

(i) MZEREZEH » 1,800,0004 KA 7% F (i) Among these interests, 1,800,000 were share options granted by the
Company to the director as beneficial owner.

BEE(FRESEAN) 2BRHE -

(i) ZERMERIAZEETINZEZEA (iii) These interests in shares were held in the capacity as discretionary

SEE -

* ABEERARQRRDZBERAENHERER *
o iEss 2 FHIEHN T X[ RERHE | — &0 -

EIEEBEBR AT 2021/22 FiK

beneficiary of a discretionary trust.

Details of the interests of the directors in the underlying shares in

respect of the share options granted by the Company are set out in
the section headed “Share Options” below.
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(b) Long positions in shares of associated corporations

(i) Interests in ordinary shares of Chen Hsong Investments Limited

Lim R (“CH Investments”):
HEBERE
ERTEBERRG
ZHHABESHT
Approximate
percentage
of the issued
REBRZER ordinary
=3 o 54 Interest in M shares of CH
Name of director Capacity ordinary shares Notes Investments
BB Efh 58,220,300 (2) 100.00%

Lai Yuen CHIANG

Other

(i) ARRZEFTHERLLIWEERE
NHIEEE A B R R 2 e

(ii) Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG, a director of the Company, is deemed
to be interested in the shares of the following associated
corporations:

1L AR B
BEAE R
eRITRMZ
BHAED
Approximate
percentage

of the relevant
class of issued

shares of

HELIEEB ARGz R Bt EE associated

Name of associated corporation Interest in shares Notes corporation

Assetwise Holdings Limited 1fREBA% (1), (3) 100.00%
1 ordinary share

B (PED)RERR AR 2RI SRR IE AR D (1), (3) 100.00%
Chen Hsong (PRC) Investment 2 non-voting
Company Limited deferred shares

BRI AR AR 50,000,000 (1), (3) 100.00%

Chen Hsong Machinery Company,
Limited

EEEEBR AR 2021/22 Fik

BN ERRER D
50,000,000 non-voting
deferred shares
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G R EE
HEAE R
EBITROZ
BHAESE
Approximate
percentage

of the relevant
class of issued

shares of

HEEEER RBRGzER Ff & associated

Name of associated corporation Interest in shares Notes corporation

Chiangs’ Industrial Holdings Limited LR A & Bl iz (1) 100.00%
1 redeemable share

CHI Dorset Square Limited 4,264,675/ @A (1), (6) 100.00%
4,264,675 ordinary shares

HEYBR AR LR B Rk (1), ) 100.00%
Continuous Victory Limited 1 ordinary share

HMETERAR] 2 AR (1), (4) 100.00%
Desee Limited 2 ordinary shares

EBARAR] 2 AR (1), (4) 100.00%
Desko Limited 2 ordinary shares

T RAR AR L% B R (1), (3) 100.00%
Elegant City Developments Limited 1 ordinary share

Elite Sino Investments Limited 20 @RS (1), (3) 100.00%
2 ordinary shares

HHRERR AR 2 AR (1), ) 100.00%
Equaltex Investment Limited 2 ordinary shares

mXERAR] 2 AR (1), (4) 100.00%
Goman Limited 2 ordinary shares

Gondmyne Limited 100,0000% & 3 A (1), (3) 100.00%

54 EEEEARAR 2021/22 F1

100,000 ordinary shares
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(EEE ]
HEAER
EBITRGOZ
BHAEDE
Approximate
percentage

of the relevant
class of issued

shares of

M EEER ARG R Bt EE associated

Name of associated corporation Interest in shares Notes corporation

Granwich Limited 1S i A (1), (3) 100.00%
1 ordinary share

BB BB R REERBER QA 52,570,0000% & i % (1), (3) 75.10%
Hong Kong Cad-Cam Services Limited 52,570,000 ordinary shares

Kadom Limited 205 @A (1), 3) 100.00%
2 ordinary shares

EERKEFRAA IARE B Ak (1), (5) 100.00%
KCI Investments Limited 1 ordinary share

SHEBRAR 2R A (1), 4) 100.00%
Koyoki Limited 2 ordinary shares

FIBBR AR 2% AR (1), (4) 100.00%
Mikia Limited 2 ordinary shares

REERRAR] 21 AR (1), (4) 100.00%
Mogin Limited 2 ordinary shares

Pacific Concept Global Limited 6% B A% (1), (3) 60.00%
6 ordinary shares

kAR AR 218 X (1), (4) 100.00%
Parot Limited 2 ordinary shares

Perfect Choice Global Limited 11% @A (1), (3) 100.00%

EEEEARAT 2021/22 F5)

1 ordinary share
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G R EE
HEAE R
EBITROZ
BHAESE
Approximate
percentage

of the relevant
class of issued

shares of
HEEEER RBRGzER Ff & associated
Name of associated corporation Interest in shares Notes corporation
BEEABRAR 2R E Bk (1), (4) 100.00%
Potachi Limited 2 ordinary shares
Pro-Team Pacific Limited 1A% 3@ A% (1), (3) 100.00%
1 ordinary share
MEER AR 2 AR (1), (4) 100.00%
Rikon Limited 2 ordinary shares
HEHR AR 2R AR (1), (4) 100.00%
Semicity Limited 2 ordinary shares
PR AR] 2 AR (1), (4) 100.00%
Sibeland Limited 2 ordinary shares
FREBRAF] 2R AR (1), (4) 100.00%
Sumei Limited 2 ordinary shares
mEIEEERAR] IR E Rk (D), ) 100.00%

Value Creation Group Limited

1 ordinary share

EHEEEFR AT 2021/22 FR
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(1) Chiangs’ Industrial Holdings Limited: & &/
& E100%# % * Chiangs’ Industrial Holdings
Limited Bl &Cititrust (Bahamas) Limited =& #
A o Cititrust (Bahamas) Limited &¥&ZE T 24
EES((BEES D2 2EETRZETA R
BEAFRIAEGED - AREBALTERES
Proficient City Investments Limited 2 100%8%
0 HARRBREESHENABERIEAZ
HAh—f - B RIERBBERND S E R -

(2) Itk JhCititrust (Bahamas) Limited##H 2
S+ MCititrust (Bahamas) Limited &% %
EgvERA MESECHERBERER
E100%#Em o BIEFEHLEEERN - ARE
B0 F z ¥ A Proficient City Investments
Limited 2 100% &7 « Z AR AREEE R 2%
UEEBRZHmAZEFR L WERIERE
BB -

Q) BERUHBERARE -

(4) ZEREMEEREFEBGondmyne LimitedH]
BE o

(5) ZEEAAEMIZA S BAssetwise Holdings
Limited@#45 8 o

(6) ZERETARERE B Perfect Choice Global
Limited E#454E -

B EXFFEZEEN  R_E-_—FZA=+—
A ARAREFRHZEETTEHABBENRRAR]
FEHEMEEEE(EERES KAEKE
XVED) 2 Bfn ~ MR R ESPHEEREFE
H R EIEPIEI52EBAE RN AR B FHET
MELMAZEAESEIAR  HRIKZAE
SFRIMZA ST MG AR B R 2 A 2 ek 5ok

AN

=

EEEEBR AR 2021/22 Fik

EERBEE
Report of the Directors

Notes:

(I) Chiangs’ Industrial Holdings Limited holds 100% interest in CH
Investments. In turn, Chiangs’ Industrial Holdings Limited is wholly-
owned by Cititrust (Bahamas) Limited. Cititrust (Bahamas) Limited is the
trustee of a discretionary trust, namely The Chiang Chen Industrial Charity
Foundation (the “Charity Foundation”). By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Lai
Yuen CHIANG is deemed to be interested in the relevant shares as she
beneficially owns 100% shares in Proficient City Investments Limited, one
of the several eligible beneficiaries of the Charity Foundation.

(2) This represents the interest indirectly held by Cititrust (Bahamas) Limited,
the trustee of the Charity Foundation, which holds 100% indirect interest
in CH Investments. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG is deemed
to be interested in the relevant shares as she beneficially owns 100%
shares in Proficient City Investments Limited, one of the several eligible
beneficiaries of the Charity Foundation.

(3) Such interests are held by CH Investments.

(4) Such interests are indirectly held by CH Investments through Gondmyne
Limited.

(5) Such interests are indirectly held by CH Investments through Assetwise
Holdings Limited.

(6) Such interests are indirectly held by CH Investments through Perfect
Choice Global Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2022, none of the directors
or chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register of the Company required to be kept under Section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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BRAE Share Options
RNNE 7 ERETE (TERES DMESN A summary of the share option scheme of the Company (the “Share
IRz MIFE32 Option Scheme”) is set out in note 32 to the financial statements.

RER » ARFIERZZE=-__F—H=-+—H During the year, the Company has granted a total of 6,130,000 share
RIEBRE A28 A HE A £6,130,000  options on 21 January 2022 to participants under the Share Option
iElxE - Scheme.

RERNRBEBREAZBZEFALATEZES(ES  Details of the movements in the share options granted to the directors
—MATERF) MAEBRTEEMBEA  (one of whom is also a substantial shareholder) of the Company and
BOEHENR T _—_F=A=1+—HEAKIT the selected employees of the Group under the Share Option Scheme

FRERENFBIOT during the year and outstanding as at 31 March 2022 were as follows:
EhegE
Number of share options
RER
xh/EH
RZBZ-8  RERRY RERTE Lapsed/ W=-Z=Z% e
mA-A Granted Exercised cancelled  ZA=1-H sREE)
SEAEERER FHAH Bs at during during during Bs at TEM(KE)  Exercise price
Name or category of participant  Date of grant 1 April 2021 the year the year the year 31 March 2022 Exercise period (Notes) per share (HK$)
-5
Category |
EZ
Directors
EBR(EW) 21112020 2,200,000 - - - 2200000 27/11/2022 to 26/11/2030 (1) 220
Lai Yuen CHIANG (Note (4)) 21/01/2022 - 1,900,000 - - 1,900,000 21/01/2024 to 20/01/2032 (1) 249
ENR 2711112020 1,200,000 - - - 1,200,000 27/11/2022 o 26/11/2030 (1) 2.20
Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG 21/01/2022 - 600,000 - - 600,000 21/01/2024 to 20/01/2032 (1) 249
£-§
Category Il
EEEE(L) 2711112020 4,400,000 - - (300,000) 4100000 27/11/2022 to 26/11/2030 (2) 2.20
Selected employees
(in aggregate) 21001/2022 - 1,430,000 - - 1,430,000 21/01/2024 o 20/01/2032 (2) 249
£
Category Ill
ErEE(L) 2711112020 3,090,000 - - (140,000) 2950000 27/11/2023 to 26/11/2030 (3) 2.20
Selected employees
(in aggregate) 21/01/2022 - 2,200,000 - (360,000) 1,840,000 21/01/2025 to 20/01/2032 (3) 249
&t
Total 10,890,000 6,130,000 - (00,0000 16,220,000
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(1) E—FHF - AFERARLE 250% K50%
BRESHIRREAAE_BAFERENRFE
REREIAITE - EREBRETNIRE A
HIREEHm T RITE -

(2) ME_FME - ABARARLZ30% - 30%
RA0%BIRES XKL ARE_BAF - £
BERFEAAFERRBBILATITE - HEHE
AR AT AR B R AR TR 1T - BB
BRERBREZGBAKARAEEREIE

AE -

(3) ME=FME  MBARAKRLZ30% - 30%
RA0%BHRESFINRLAPRE=AF - £h
BERFLAFERRRBBILATITE - HEHE
AR AT AR B R AR TR 1T - BB =
BRERBREZGBAKARAEEREIE

AE -

(4) REBHFRAERKY  BEEZITHRER
BEREES T ENABEBRTHEAREP (12
100% Bty - MZEEES 2 ELAMERE
IR E (3 AR5 A399,641,620M 1% (5 » 15
ARANBRANFEEBHDEITGN 263.38%)
2100% s - AL M EE AREERIRE
BB ARG, 2 s e

EEREROIES 2ER

BRIA _EXXT A | — &0 S BA TS $R R MY RE32P %
BEON - AR SEAEMME QRN FRLER]
SRR - BEARRERAEBEART
SETEMAABE 2B RESFMERS -
B  EeTBABIEFEZEBIAR TN
R FENFARERER A RBEARARAESFZ
LR - TREITE AR FRER -

EERHBRFERB2ER

RIZE-—F=A=+—H  BEHTEER
Bk AR B A sl T R A
REREGEA TR -

EEEEBR AR 2021/22 Fik
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Notes:

(1) In respect of Category I, as to 50% and 50% of the share options granted
to each grantee shall be vested on and are exercisable from the date
falling on the second and fourth anniversary from the date of grant
respectively provided that no share options shall be exercised after ten
years from the date of grant.

(2) In respect of Category Il, as to 30%, 30% and 40% of the share options
granted to each grantee shall be vested on and are exercisable from the
date falling on the second, fourth and sixth anniversary from the date of
grant respectively provided that no share options shall be exercised after
ten years from the date of grant. Vesting of the share options in respect
of Category Il is subject to the consent of the Chairman of the board of
directors of the Company.

(3) In respect of Category Ill, as to 30%, 30% and 40% of the share options
granted to each grantee shall be vested on and are exercisable from the
date falling on the third, fifth and seventh anniversary from the date of
grant respectively provided that no share options shall be exercised after
ten years from the date of grant. Vesting of the share options in respect
of Category Ill is subject to the consent of the Chairman of the board of
directors of the Company.

(4) By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG is also deemed to be
interested in the shares of the Company held by CH Investments, a
company holding 399,641,620 shares, representing 63.38% of the issued
shares of the Company as at the date of this report, as she beneficially
owns 100% shares in one of the several eligible beneficiaries of the Charity
Foundation, where the trustee thereof indirectly holds 100% interest in CH
Investments.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Options” above and
in note 32 to the financial statements, at no time during the year was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to
enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisitions of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate, and none of the directors, chief executive or their spouses or
children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for securities of
the Company, or had exercised any such right during the year.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

As at 31 March 2022, none of the executive directors had any interest
in a business, which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group.
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FERFERHEMATHRRDKRAERBEE Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests
BERRAR and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares

RZBZZF=A=+—0 ' R RAEEK
BRTHRABRA - RIBEFHRBAEKNE
3B AREHAR R ELRMATE S F 2/
REREMA TR R ZRG RABERG 2

As at 31 March 2022, so far as was known to the directors and chief
executive of the Company, the interests or short positions of substantial
shareholders and other persons in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register of the Company required to be

HIORBEWT ¢ kept under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:
REQATRABREBERDZETR Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company
R N
ERTEER
ZER ZEHBET T
L] g Approximate
B & percentage of
Number of the Company’s
BREREHE 17 ordinary shares/ Mz  issued ordinary
Name of shareholder Capacity underlying shares* Notes shares
EHEE BEmEEA 399,641,620 (1) 63.38%
CH Investments Beneficial owner
Chiangs’ Industrial Holdings Limited REREGER 2 e 399,641,620 (1) 63.38%
Interest of controlled
corporation
Cititrust (Bahamas) Limited Z5EA 399,641,620 (1) 63.38%
Trustee
B ExEEA 9,100,000 (2) 1.44%
Lai Yuen CHIANG Beneficial owner
HAmh 399,641,620 (3) 63.38%
Other
Proficient City Investments Limited RIEHEE 2 s 399,641,620 (3) 63.38%
Interest of controlled
corporation
David Michael WEBB EnlaA 15,147,200 - 2.40%
Beneficial owner
REZIEHESE 2 22,746,800 (4) 3.61%

Interest of controlled
corporation

60 EHEEFRNF 2021/22 FR
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1) WhEREBEMBAZE—#RKRHG - AR
Cititrust (Bahamas) Limited BEZZEH & 25
FEA MW RIERAEROIZTERER - Mz
LHEBBRG T EBEFTES 2% B Chiangs’
Industrial Holdings Limited £ B R E#HH
100% i MFHE o

(2) R&EERT - 4,100,000 A RFARTES
(ERE=EAN) 2B -

B) WHEEREMF 2R —#HEKH - AR
Proficient City Investments Limited BZ&&E 4
ZHEANEERIRAZHEFR A BERER
BRARODFSE#ER  MEBLLTARRTZ
EE + AProficient City Investments Limited P
—E&mRE o

(4) 1R#EDavid Michael WEBBEAR ZZF = — X
A—REXzE=EERBN  ZEROHERS
Preferable Situation Assets Limited#4& -+ ZZA
Al David Michael WEBB Y4 100% 4% 4] ©

* ABESRARQRRD 2 BRI
g Z BB B A AE | & -

Br EXPTHEREN RZEBEZ_F=A=+—
H - SETEEMATEE AR R ZRGHE
BARX 1D 2 B BUA R M AR SR IR B 5 X A
B iGAEICIEARRFET 2 ELMA -

=

BEEALRS

AEEARBERZ GRS BEEA
TIZALAYETRS - H RN M BHREK
BFE36 o

DARFRE

REARRFEMEFHTENARER - AR
ARFARBEAREERHCIER EMRA
HRERFZRARRE BTN 225%H) B 5
HEARFEE -
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Notes:

(1) This represents the same parcel of shares held by CH Investments.
Cititrust (Bahamas) Limited is deemed to have interest in the relevant
shares by virtue of being the trustee of the Charity Foundation, and the
relevant shares are held through its controlled corporation, Chiangs’
Industrial Holdings Limited, which holds 100% interest in CH Investments.

(2) Among these interests, 4,100,000 were share options granted by the
Company to the director as beneficial owner.

(3) This represents the same parcel of shares held by CH Investments.
Proficient City Investments Limited is deemed to have interest in the
relevant shares by virtue of being one of the several eligible beneficiaries
of the Charity Foundation and Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG, a director of the
Company, is the sole beneficial shareholder of Proficient City Investments
Limited.

(4) Based on the notice of disclosure of interests of Mr. David Michael WEBB
filed on 1 June 2021, these interests in shares are held by Preferable
Situation Assets Limited, a company 100% controlled by Mr. David
Michael WEBB.

*  Details of the interests of the directors in the underlying shares in respect
of the share options granted by the Company are set out in the section
headed “Share Options” above.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2022, no other persons were
recorded in the register of the Company required to be kept under Section
336 of the SFO as having interests or short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company.

Related Party Transactions

The Group entered into certain transactions with parties regarded as
“Related Parties” under applicable accounting principles. Details are
set out in note 36 to the financial statements.

Public Float

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors, the Company has maintained the sufficient
amount of public float of more than 25% of the Company’s issued shares
during the year and up to the date of this report as required under the
Listing Rules.
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Emolument Policy

The Group’s emolument policy, including the determination of salaries
and bonuses, is in line with the local practices where the Company and
its subsidiaries operate. The Remuneration Committee of the Company
reviews the Group’s emolument policy and structure for the remuneration
package for the directors (including executive directors who are also
senior management of the Company), having regard to the Group’s
operating results, individual duties and performance and comparable
market statistics as well as prevailing market conditions.

Corporate Governance

The Company’s corporate governance principles and practices are set
out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 22 to 42 of this
annual report.

Auditor

The financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2022
have been audited by Ernst & Young who retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for re-appointment of Ernst
& Young as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Lai Yuen CHIANG
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 28 June 2022
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Independent Auditor’'s Report

To the shareholders of Chen Hsong Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chen
Hsong Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 72 to 203, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2022,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

To the shareholders of Chen Hsong Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below,
our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in
that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of
our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continuea)

To the shareholders of Chen Hsong Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

HARETEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZEBEEETPRIAELHI

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

JENE 2 8% 5019 8L (B A

As at 31 March 2022, after netting off with an aggregate
impairment provision of HK$98,368,000, the total net
carrying amount of the Group’s trade receivables was
HK$877,839,000. Significant judgements and estimates
are applied by management, based on the lifetime
expected credit loss approach, in assessing whether
the trade receivables are recoverable and if impairment
provision is required. Management considers various
factors, including the ageing of the trade receivables,
historical collection patterns, existence of any disputes,
trading history with each customer, prevailing and
expected future market conditions and other available
information concerning the creditworthiness of
customers.

Related disclosures about trade receivables are
included in notes 4 and 21 to the consolidated financial
statements.

R-ZTE-_F=A=+—H > EXENEREZEX
AN B 598,368,000 T HR B B 18~ ISR RE
877,839,000t - B EREHAMEEEE T A EAE
KA E K T PARHE R AR SRR 5= & AJ Uk 3 R )R & 3
BELHIE - BEEEZERERBRERESEREINE
e - MEENGE  FREFENE BEENEFHNES
ik B MEHARTERALREMEEEFERYE
ZMEH ©

BFRERWEZEFANBESRE - SIRRAMBHREME4
K21 -

Our audit procedures included evaluating management’s
assessment methodology, and the inputs and
assumptions applied by management in performing
the impairment assessment by checking the ageing
of trade receivables, the credit terms granted by the
Group, historical collection patterns and post year-
end settlements, of selected samples of customers. In
addition, we assessed the published economic indices
that management applied in their assessment of the
impairment provision of trade receivables.

RPN EARFREFHEREBNT L ARES
EHETORATFREEZRANKE - E5EG
ZIEES BEERCHEARPRENERBR - T
MEEBEETREN G RANEMMRR - 1o
BAFHEEEBRANFERKESRFRERENER
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

To the shareholders of Chen Hsong Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

BARETSEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZEBEEFTPRIAEHH

Assessment of inventory provision

F B A ATE

As at 31 March 2022, the net carrying amount of
the Group’s inventories was HK$1,061,900,000. The
assessment of inventory provision is based on the
estimated net realisable value of inventories, which
requires significant management judgement and
estimates. Management considers various factors,
including the ageing of the inventories, historical sales
patterns, post year-end sales and selling prices of
inventories, market demand, technological changes and
the Group’s future plan of usage or sale.

Related disclosures about inventories are included in
notes 4 and 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

R-ZE-__F=fF=+—H  EBRENFEFEL/LE
1,061,900,0007T ° FEEEH FE HERFEE GG
EBIRFELT  UFEEEBELHEAHE LA - BE

BERAZERFENERK  BEHERE BIRKRTF
SHERALEE MmERK  BKWEENR E5E
ARFENERIHERTE -

BRFENRESRE @ #NGEMBERME4R20 -

Our audit procedures included evaluating management’s
assessment methodology, and the inputs and
assumptions applied by management in the assessment
of the inventory provision by checking the ageing, the
post year-end usage or sale and the selling prices, of
selected samples of inventories, and assessing manage-
ment’s expected future demand and usage of inventories
with reference to historical usage and/or sales patterns,
and sales orders received by the Group. We also
observed physical inventory counts at selected locations
and checked the conditions of selected samples of
inventories.

HANBEAEFEEFGEEBNNGEE - BEEHN
BENBAFENER - IRENEBIHEB AR
EE  2EUEEAM RIHE 2 RHE R ERT BN
BEEBHRRFERKLEANER - ALF[HERE
BEETHFERBEFGFRANEHMER - AR
EENBHBRTEENRY LBREEENEANFENMN
Moo

EHEEEFR AT 2021/22 FR

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22



BAZBMBRESE @)

B RESERRAAIIMRR
(RERZAMALZBRAA])

BAREFTSEEA)

Independent Auditor’s Report (continuea)

To the shareholders of Chen Hsong Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

RARETEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZEBEEFTTRIAEHH

Impairment assessment of goodwill

B E

As at 31 March 2022, the net carrying amount of
goodwill of the Group was HK$51,905,000. The Group
performs an impairment test for goodwill acquired
in business combinations on an annual basis.
Management’s impairment assessment of goodwill
involves estimation of the value in use of the cash-
generating unit to which the goodwill is allocated. The
assessment process involves management’s significant
judgement and estimates, including the estimation of the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating unit
and the use of other assumptions that are sensitive to
expected future market or economic conditions and the
cash-generating unit's performance in the foreseeable
future, such as the discount rate and growth rate.

Related disclosures about goodwill are included in notes
4 and 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

RZZE-Z_F=R=+—H  E5ENHEFER/LEE
51,905,0007T - EXEREBAHAENHESFE
TTRENR - EEENHERENGERYCENER
BrRSELBN 2 ERAEEERES -  ZAEFEERE
BEHEARHE LG BREGARARSELENZ
BEHAKRERE - REAUFAHT G REBENRIAR
HRSELEUNATRARAROR\FR 2 AR - 0
FRRMIBRE -

BERAENREEER  SNGREMBERRNT4RLT -

Our audit procedures included evaluating management’s
methodologies and key assumptions used in the
discounted cash flow projections, in particular those
relating to the growth rate and discount rate with the
assistance of our valuation experts, and evaluating
management’s assessment on the sensitivity analysis

about the key assumptions and cash flow projections.

B EFEFEETHEEEREFRESREGED
FERZz AR EREER - U BANGHEZTERKEIE
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

To the shareholders of Chen Hsong Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
If, based

on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material

the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continuea)

To the shareholders of Chen Hsong Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

To the shareholders of Chen Hsong Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22




BAZBMBRESE @)

B BRRKEEARQFIGLRR
(RERZAMALZBRAA])

BREMR B RS BERREABNEM

(&

BRERABRZZESRIEH - SRARMSH
BAEMBIENRRERERENR - WEMF
BBBRRAENERAEFERMBILIEN
FIEBEMEMER - ARAHEREET IR
BB FrERERENTT B kP g8 e CEOE ) ©

tRBZZEQBENERTD - RAREEWL
ERH ARG AU BBRROBAZA/EE @ [
MiEK B ET =R - HMIERBMBEED
RELEIR - BRIDERER AT ARKE
BEUEE REBRKEINBERT  RE
EERERMRESETRBRFREKNER
BREBEENAZME - BIVRETEER
EETEBZER °

HARBY ZBEHRESNEARBEARAR
il

4
o

3w

DY

ZKEF BB A
-]
BB R
289795k
K d—RE2718

—E--FXAZ+NH

EEEEBR AR 2021/22 Fik

Independent Auditor’s Report (continuea)

To the shareholders of Chen Hsong Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Kwong Ka Yan.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
27/F One Taikoo Place

979 King's Road

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

28 June 2022
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melE xR Consolidated Income Statement

HE_Z-_—_F=ZF=+—HILtFE Year ended 31 March 2022
(EBFIT) (HK$'000) Bf&E Notes 2022 2021
g REVENUE 6 2,728,763 2,360,553
HER AR Cost of sales (2,081,488) (1,727,543)
EH Gross profit 647,275 633,010
EmUA RS 5 Other income and gains, net 89,445 91,296
SHE R Selling and distribution expenses (294,749) (241,910)
T Administrative expenses (148,754) (143,141)
Efag s HF5m Other operating expenses, net (54,120) (69,242)
BB AR Finance costs 8 (1,306) (1,948)
FEAG B & A A Share of profits less losses
s AR 1B of associates 777 2,737
RRBE AR R PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7 238,568 270,802
Frigfi sz Income tax expense 11 (24,574) (65,977)
EEERR PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 213,994 204,825
EER: ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
RAElE=FEA Equity holders of the Company 213,309 203,021
FEERR A Non-controlling interests 685 1,804
213,994 204,825
NN 5 EARNINGS PER SHARE
BEAEM ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
BRER HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 13
EARCGEM) Basic (HK cents) 33.8 322
g O81) Diluted (HK cents) 33.8 322
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HE-_S-—#=fA=+—HIL&EE

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Year ended 31 March 2022

(B¥TT) (HK$'000) 2022 2021
REERER PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 213,994 204,825
Hih2mE k& OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
AfRA 12 B E 37 7 48 Other comprehensive income/(expenses) that may
Bk 2 B be reclassified to the income statement
2EW RS (S5H): in subsequent periods:
PE R ZERE - Exchange differences:
REGINERS 2 Exchange differences on translation of
M ER foreign operations 101,158 193,514
FEAG B & A R EA Share of other comprehensive income
2EE of associates 1,294 2,111
A — B AR T E Release of exchange differences upon
i AR PR H = 8 deregistration of a subsidiary - (3,134)
AR HZ R ENDE Net other comprehensive income that
Zlz R 2 HAit may be reclassified to the income statement
2 FEE in subsequent periods 102,452 192,491
TERA % B Other comprehensive income that will not
B BEE NG R be reclassified to the income statement
Hib2E W - in subsequent periods:
FEREEFEE 2 Actuarial gains on defined benefit
BE W plan 1,361 28
AEEHMZE OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
I % FOR THE YEAR 103,813 192,519
AEEHRRE TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
g FOR THE YEAR 317,807 397,344
BER ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
RArE=FEA Equity holders of the Company 316,446 394,389
FEE AR Non-controlling interests 1,361 2,955
317,807 397,344
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RZEZ=F=RA=+—H

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 March 2022

(BT T) (HK$'000) Hiz# Notes 2022 2021
kRBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Yz - BB MRS Property, plant and equipment 14 647,970 534,029
wEYE Investment properties 15 359,296 331,533
FRAEEE Right-of-use assets 16(a) 39,149 35,075
S Goodwill 17 51,905 51,905
mEE Intangible asset 18 1,834 -
REERE2IRE Investments in associates 19 28,529 26,458
EERIBE E Deferred tax assets 30 43,548 38,073
EBEYE  BEX Deposits for purchases of items of

Bl property, plant and equipment 3,607 22,879
FEIE 5 K ZIRER N Trade and bills receivables 21 99,985 57,832
FE U BB A EBRFK Finance lease receivables 23 371 632
TEREBAIEE Defined benefit assets 29 1,061 -
HHIRITFR Pledged bank deposits 24 2,851 -
IEMBNVEELEET Total non-current assets 1,280,106 1,098,416
REBEE CURRENT ASSETS
FE Inventories 20 1,061,900 728,614
FEWE 5 REERR Trade and bills receivables 21 1,245,418 1,251,711
e EMRER Deposits, prepayments and

H b R BR FR other receivables 22 141,281 95,225
el m & T E R Finance lease receivables 23 4,311 6,532
HEIFIRITIF K Pledged bank deposits 24 24,400 51,752
Re MIRITETT Cash and bank balances 25 671,911 1,146,188
MEVE EMEET Total current assets 3,149,221 3,280,022
REAE CURRENT LIABILITIES
FERTE 5 REERRK Trade and bills payables 26 695,694 762,796
HAn IR - Other payables, accruals and

ErtREREHNAR contract liabilities 27 348,776 382,927
HE&E Lease liabilities 16(b) 1,599 1,341
FTBIRITER Interest-bearing bank borrowings 28 21,568 68,759
AL Tax payable 39,094 39,899
mMENE EEE Total current liabilities 1,106,731 1,255,722
FEEEEE NET CURRENT ASSETS 2,042,490 2,024,300
BEEAEBER TOTAL ASSETS LESS

REBAE CURRENT LIABILITIES 3,322,596 3,122,716
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continved)
As at 31 March 2022

CEMFr) (HK$'000) Bfit Notes 2022 2021
kRBERS NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
EmEMABRER L Other payables and

JEETEE accruals 27 11,674 9,952
HEAE Lease liabilities 16(b) 4,556 627
TEREMNET Defined benefit obligations 29 - 1,792
EERIEBE Deferred tax liabilities 30 77,904 97,299
IEmE B EER Total non-current liabilities 94,134 109,670
BEFE NET ASSETS 3,228,462 3,013,046
R EQUITY
EATEZEBA Equity attributable to equity holders

iR of the Company
B TR Issued share capital 31 63,053 63,053
e Reserves 33 3,145,996 2,933,479

3,209,049 2,996,532

FEiERE S Non-controlling interests 19,413 16,514
ST TOTAL EQUITY 3,228,462 3,013,046

#E%E Lai Yuen CHIANG
FEFEEFLAEH Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

EEEEBR AR 2021/22 Fik

#% R Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG

EZ Director
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HE-_S-—F#=A=+—HIL&EE

Consolidated Stafement of Changes in Equity

Year ended 31 March 2022

2022
RAFRREEAEL
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
BEf &3 EXER
A& HER 1
Issued Share Capital BARE EERE —-REE
iz share premium  redemption Capital Statutory General
(B¥F1) (HK$'000) Notes capital account reserve reserve reserve reserve
WZE-—FWA—-H  At1Apil 2021 63,053 509,580 295 53,901 147,061 2,351
TEER Profit for the year - - - - - -
TEEERZE Other comprehensive income
g for the year:
REFNEE L Exchange differences on
ERZEE translation of foreign operations - - - - - -
e E AT Share of other comprehensive
Atn2ElE income of associates - - - - - -
EERTEE Actuarial gains on defined
LS benefit plan 29 - - - - - -
FEERZE Total comprehensive income
W for the year - - - - - -
—HMBAR Capital contribution by a non-
SRR controlling shareholder of
EXBA a subsidiary - - - - - -
DARR S 1) Equity-settled share option
Bz arrangements 3 - - - 1,370 - -
(REREMIE R Transfer from retained profits - - - - 1,115 -
BEZE-_-F Final dividend
s =15 for the year ended
ERZRERE 31 March 2021 2 - - . - . i
HERE Interim dividend 12 - - - - - _
BN —REIE Dividend payable to a non-
NSES controlling shareholder of
RRE a subsidiary - - - - - -
RZEZZfF
ZR=1-H At 31 March 2022 63,053 509,580* 295* 55,271* 148,176 2,351%
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REERBER®) Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (contined)

HE-_T-_—_F-F=+—HIHFE Year ended 31 March 2022
2022
RAFERBEAER
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
EEEf ER2E FER
1 1 i
Asset  Exchange RERF Non- R
iFia revaluation  fluctuation Retained @it controlling Total
(BEFT) (HK$'000) Notes reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
WZE-—FWA—H  At1Apil 2021 81,231 251,558 1,887,502 2,996,532 16,514 3,013,046
KEEEH Profit for the year - - 213,309 213,309 685 213,994
TEEEMZE Other comprehensive income
g for the year:
REFNEE L Exchange differences on
ERES translation of foreign operations - 100,482 - 100,482 676 101,158
el E A Share of other comprehensive
E 2 A income of associates - 1,294 - 1,204 - 1,204
EEETEE Actuarial gains on defined
BEWE benefit plan 29 - - 1,361 1,361 - 1,361
FEERZE Total comprehensive income
Wz for the year - 101,776 214,670 316,446 1,361 317,807
—HMBAR Capital contribution by a non-
SRR controlling shareholder of
BARA a subsidiary - - - - 2,038 2,038
DAR S (A Equity-settled share option
Bz arrangements 32 - - - 1370 - 1370
RREFER Transfer from retained profits - - (1,115) - - -
BE-Z--F Final dividend
=A=f+—HL1 for the year ended
FECRERE 31 March 2021 12 - - (72,511) (72,511) - (72,511)
PHRE Interim dividend 2 - - (32,788) (32,788) - (32,788)
EN—EIE Dividend payable to a non-
REFEER controlling shareholder of
REE a subsidiary - - - - (500) (500)
i S
=R=1-H At 31 March 2022 81,231* 363,334* 1,995,758 3,209,049 19,413 3,228 462
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HE-ZT-_—_F=-A=+—BILFE

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)
Year ended 31 March 2022

2021
FAAEREEAEL
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
BRI B3 EXER
A& HER 1
Issued Share Capital ERGE EERE —-RiE
i3 share premium  redemption Capital Statutory General
(E¥TT) (HK$'000) Notes capital account reserve reserve reserve reserve
WZE-ZFWA—H At 1 April 2020 63,053 509,580 295 53,488 147,883 2,351
FEERA Profit for the year - - - - - -
TEEENRE Other comprehensive income/
W/ (i) (expenses) for the year:
BEENEB L Exchange differences on
ERZESE translation of foreign operations - - - - - -
il NG Share of other comprehensive
A2EYE income of associates - - - - - -
A—-AHBAT Release of exchange differences
HiEman upon deregistration of
EXES a subsidiary - - - - - -
TREEME Actuarial gains on defined
RElE benefit plan 29 - - - - - -
FEERZE Total comprehensive income
Wiz for the year - - - - _ -
DARHE 2 5 ) Equity-settled share option
L fie arrangements 32 - - - 445 - -
(REREMIE R Transfer from retained profits - - - - 1,615 -
A—BHBARESE  Transfer to retained profits upon
MERERE R deregistration of a subsidiary - - - (32) (2,437) -
BE-Z-% Final dividend
=ZA=t-HI for the year ended
ERZRBRE 31 March 2020 2 - - - - - _
HE-Z-%% Special final dividend
ZR=+-ALt for the year ended
EEZRAIRBRS 31 March 2020 12 - - - . - i
RS Interim dividend 12 - - - - - -
RZB_-%
“B=1-H At 31 March 2021 63,053 509,580* 295* 53,901* 147,061* 2,351%

Y ZEREBRERRGAMBRARANZGEAR  *
# BB 13,145,996,0007T( 2 = — 4 : B
2,933,479,0007T) ©

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
HK$3,145,996,000 (2021: HK$2,933,479,000) in the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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HE-_T-_—_F-F=+—HIHFE

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continuea)
Year ended 31 March 2022

2021
RARERSEAEL
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
EEEf EigE FER
1 1 B
Asset  Exchange RERF Non- ERf
Mz revaluation  fluctuation Retained @t controlling Total
(EETT) (HK$'000) Notes reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
RZZE-FEMA-H At 1 Apil 2020 81,231 60,218 1,746,652 2,664,751 13,559 2,678,310
KEEEH Profit for the year - - 203,021 203,021 1,804 204,825
TEEENZE Other comprehensive income/
W/ (%) (expenses) for the year:
BEENEB Exchange differences on
ERER translation of foreign operations - 192,363 - 192,363 1,151 193,514
e E AT Share of other comprehensive
HEp 2 A income of associates - 2,111 - 2111 - 2111
A—-AKEAT Release of exchange differences
HEmaRn upon deregistration of
ERER a subsidiary - (3,134) - (3,134) - (3,134)
EEETEE Actuarial gains on defined
BElE benefit plan 29 - - 28 28 - 28
FEEBZE Total comprehensive income
Wig for the year - 191,340 203,049 394,389 2,955 397,344
PARRAEE 2 5 49 Equity-settled share option
BREZ S arrangements 32 - - - 445 - 445
R BT B Transfer from retained profits - - (1,615) - - -
A—-HB AR Transfer to retained profits upon
MBRERE G deregistration of a subsidiary - - 2,469 - - -
HE-Z-ZF Final dividend
=ZA=+-HIt for the year ended
EE7RERS 31 March 2020 12 - - (23,960) (23,960) - (23,960)
HE2-Z-%% Special final dividend
ZR=+—ALt for the year ended
ERCHARSERE 31 March 2020 2 - - (10,719 (10,719 - (10,719
HERS Interim dividend 12 - - (28,374) (28,374) - (28,374)
RZB_—%
“B=1-H At 31 March 2021 81,231* 251,068*  1,887,502* 2,996,532 16,514 3,013,046
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AEETRER

HE-_S-—F#=A=+—HIL&EE

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended 31 March 2022

(BT T) (HK$'000) HizF Notes 2022 2021
REER CASH FLOWS FROM
HEeERE OPERATING ACTIVITIES
R B AT A Profit before tax 238,568 270,802
FEE - Adjustments for:
BYE RN Finance costs 8 1,306 1,948
FEAGES = N F)m Share of profits less losses of

EEE associates 19 (777) (2,737)
FEUA Interest income 7 (15,852) (19,630)
BEMEEF SHA Finance lease interest income 7 (493) (861)
Yz - BB MR Depreciation of property,

ZHE plant and equipment 7 53,967 51,024
FREEEZIE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 7 2,729 2,884
BB E B Amortization of an intangible asset 7 203 -
HEME - BERR Gain on disposal of items of property,

ZWEs plant and equipment 7 (1,225) (326)
L ESN N g Write-off of items of property,

ZREH plant and equipment 7 1,153 1,780
TR B ARz e Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary 7 - (3,134)
wEMEZATE Fair value gains on investment

Wz properties 7 (13,810) -
FTEREFE Provision for inventories, net 7 1,414 8,386
R E ZERFURE ) F 58 Impairment of trade receivables, net 7 3,551 2,895
WV E R ERTORE, Impairment/(write-back of impairment)

CRVERED ) 58 of finance lease receivables, net 7 (2,023) 4,287
E A R BRFORE Write-back of impairment of other

e EIEE receivables, net 7 (86) (225)
VA PSC#E =2 <) B B P <2 1 Equity-settled share option expenses 32 1,370 445

269,995 317,538
FEHEM Increase in inventories (321,076) (212,209)
FEUE 2 R EEERFUE N Increase in trade and bills receivables (10,065) (399,195)
Bl EEERTOR D Decrease in finance lease receivables 5,855 11,119
e EBNREEEMELW  Increase in deposits, prepayments and
BRFRIE 0 other receivables (45,798) (30,392)
JENE S REERFULI,”  Increase/(decrease) in trade and
CR) bills payables (82,684) 408,319
HibfERBER « FERTBE N Increase/(decrease) in other payables,
AHaEEm Cad) accruals and contract liabilities (37,030) 173,839
MR T ERERAGFT S Contributions to defined benefit plan (1,550) (2,269)
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HEBERERSE) Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

HE_Z--"HF#=ZF=+—HILtFE Year ended 31 March 2022
(B¥TT) (HK$000) Kzt Notes 2022 2021
EEE /(R ZRE Cash generated from/(used in) operations (222,353) 266,750
EARFE Interest paid (1,306) (1,948)
BB EREFE Finance lease interest received 493 861
R EEINRIR Overseas taxes refunded 4,275 2,930
BATEINEIE Overseas taxes paid (56,717) (46,438)
KEEEZRERA Net cash flows from/(used in)

O ) #ER operating activities (275,608) 222,155
REXK 2 CASH FLOWS FROM

BERE INVESTING ACTIVITIES
BEVE  HE Purchases of items of property,

B plant and equipment 34(a) (127,377) (21,046)

HEME - BEREE Proceeds from disposal of items of

FriS kI8 property, plant and equipment 1,817 710
B U F & Interest received 15,852 19,630
BEME  BE Increase in deposits for purchases

B{CHEA of items of property, plant

N and equipment 34(a) (3,200) (19,996)
KRBT TR D, Decrease/(increase) in

(3ghn) pledged bank deposits 26,679 (29,076)
REEG 2R ML F5E Net cash flows used in investing activities (86,229) (49,778)
AMEXRE 2 CASH FLOWS FROM

BHERE FINANCING ACTIVITIES
HEIRITER New bank loans - 6,000
BEIRTTER Repayment of bank loans (45,000) (36,000)
BEfRIE Dividends paid (105,299) (63,053)
HENRZAEEHH Principal portion of lease payments 34(c) (1,597) (1,558)
BEEBKZHESRLFE Net cash flows used in financing activities (151,896) (94,611)
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LEBERERE) Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

HE_Z-—"F=ZF=+—RHItFE Year ended 31 March 2022
(BT T) (HK$'000) Kzt Notes 2022 2021
HeRREEEY2 NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH
®gm, R ) F8E AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (513,733) 77,766
FZRE Cash and cash equivalents
MRS EED at beginning of year 1,146,188 997,083
[EREE) & Effect of foreign exchange rate
FRR changes, net 39,456 71,339
FRZEER CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
REZEEY AT END OF YEAR 671,911 1,146,188
HENEAEEZEY ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF
EFZAM CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
He MIRTTETT Cash and bank balances 25 583,503 588,993
AT 3R BB B R HAm B Bank deposits with original maturity of
TR=MAZBITHER less than three months when acquired 25 88,408 557,195
671,911 1,146,188
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2022

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Chen Hsong Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a limited
liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The principal place of
business of the Company is located at 13-15 Dai Wang Street, Tai
Po Industrial Estate, Tai Po, New Territories, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was principally involved in the
manufacture and sale of plastic injection moulding machines and
related products.

In the opinion of the directors, the Company’s ultimate holding
company is Cititrust (Bahamas) Limited, a company incorporated
in the Bahamas. Chen Hsong Investments Limited (“CH
Investments”), a company incorporated in Hong Kong, is the
Company’s immediate holding company.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set out on pages 204
to 206.

2.1BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which
include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for investment properties which have been measured at
fair value. Defined benefit assets/obligations are measured using
the projected unit credit actuarial valuation method as further
explained in note 3 to the financial statements. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand (HK$'000) except when
otherwise indicated.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2022

PR MR ()

T —F=A=+—H

2.1 mMEEE(E) 2.1BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
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Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2022. A
subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has
power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to
be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and
liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2022

2.1 mBEE(E) 2.1BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
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Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control described above. A change
in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control,
is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognizes (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and
(iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognizes (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(ii) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognized in other comprehensive income
is reclassified to the income statement or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

2.2CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the first
time for the current year’s financial statements.

ERIEHEED Y - FIRAENE — Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
B8 5395% Fimd 020 HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, Phase 2

BRMBHHREENFTHR -
BRI RELFAR N
BRI HRELE165%

HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

(1&3T)
BB ERERRE16% HHTHEE— Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
(1&37) 1R R
EE RS E165 KT ——F Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
(1&z7) NH=1H# beyond 30 June 2021
TSR
FZ—-1HEHE
BB

EEEEARAT 2021/22 F5)
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2022
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22EHBRRINESS (&) 2.2CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
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DISCLOSURES (continued)

Other than as explained below regarding the impact of
Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and
HKFRS 16, the adoption of the above revised HKFRSs has had
no significant financial impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4
and HKFRS 16 address issues not dealt with in the previous
amendments which affect financial reporting when an existing
interest rate benchmark is replaced with an alternative risk-free
rate (“RFR”). The amendments provide a practical expedient to
allow the effective interest rate to be updated without adjusting the
carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities when accounting
for changes in the basis for determining the contractual cash
flows of financial assets and liabilities, if the change is a direct
consequence of the interest rate benchmark reform and the new
basis for determining the contractual cash flows is economically
equivalent to the previous basis immediately preceding the
change. In addition, the amendments permit changes required
by the interest rate benchmark reform to be made to hedge
designations and hedge documentation without the hedging
relationship being discontinued. Any gains or losses that could
arise on transition are dealt with through the normal requirements
of HKFRS 9 to measure and recognize hedge ineffectiveness. The
amendments also provide a temporary relief to entities from having
to meet the separately identifiable requirement when an RFR
is designated as a risk component. The relief allows an entity,
upon designation of the hedge, to assume that the separately
identifiable requirement is met, provided the entity reasonably
expects the RFR risk component to become separately identifiable
within the next 24 months. Furthermore, the amendments require
an entity to disclose additional information to enable users of
financial statements to understand the effect of interest rate
benchmark reform on an entity’s financial instruments and risk
management strategy.
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B RS sRR M (2) Notes to Financial Statements (continuea)
—E-E=RA=4+—H 31 March 2022

22 BRI ERE (&) 2.2CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

FA - NBEFHERG BIRITERFEL During the year, the interest rate of an interest-bearing bank
BBERITRERB([RBERITRAZERE D) borrowing denominated in Japanese Yen (“JPY”) was changed
WERERRAE REBE KRB from the London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) to RFR. The
FERIENZERTABREERER Group applied the above-mentioned practical expedient upon
A ITRRE L c WERRAZEY modification of the borrowing as the “economically equivalent”
ZIERTMEAEREHIER © criterion was met. No significant modification gain or loss has

arisen as a result of applying the amendments to these changes.

23CEAEREMMEBIEHREELN  2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

AEBUWERZEVHRENERATE The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,
BAEERER G MEIERT 2 BB that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial
TR ELER o statements.
DRV MELERENR  HMELEL! Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
(1&8&]) Framework!
EBMBRELAEIR KELZHEHL Amendments to HKFRS 10 and  Sale or Contribution of Assets between
REBEBGFTERFE28% RAjgLE HKAS 28 (2011) an Investor and its Associate or
(20114 ) (1&3T) PR Joint Venture®
BEHER
JEES
ERVBMEENELITR  REASL? HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?
ERVBMEEAEITR  RELSL?° Amendments to HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?
(1837)
ERUHRERRELTR AR E Amendment to HKFRS 17 Initial Application of
(1&3T) BB SR HKFRS 17 and HKFRS 9 -
ZEI7HRK Comparative Information?
BB B
%’gﬁl/%ga/u -
HEER?
ERGENEIRUER]) BESEARE Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current
A IETE or Non-current*
EREHEAEIRR A E R E Amendments to HKAS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting Policies?
BN BREENER HKFRS Practice Statement 2
EE25R(ERT)
EREENESR(BR]) BT IEE? Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates?
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B RS sRRMIEE (2) Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
—E-__F=HA=+—H 31 March 2022

23CEHABAEMNEEBHBHRE%EA  2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

(%) FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

BEAGHEREL2% H—EELX 5 E Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
(1&3T) HLEERAE Liabilities arising from a Single

BRI EL Transaction’
wE?

B ENE LR YE - BELR Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment:
(1&3T) EIERE A Proceeds before Intended Use!

B2 FT13
A

BB G EREITH EIRAH— BT Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling
(1&3T) B2 A a Contract?

BB RS ER BRI RE & Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9,
—E-NER B & HKFRSs 2018-2020 lllustrative Examples accompanying
—E_FFZ AR BHmEE HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41!
FEN#E A9 -~ &

BB
B ZE 1657 M
2 &P BB
SETAERIE41
R (BET)!
1 R —F—A—HUNERHBRZFE 1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022
HARS A3
2 RIE-=F—F—HIUNERBZEE 2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
HARS A3
3 MABETEBERBE - EAHERA 3 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption
¢ ERBABEHENEIRUSEMER - 4 As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong Kong
EAERBESTYBHRENER — EHA Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification
HEFIZESEE RN TR B 72 by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment
ER-_ZE-TFE+ AEITERT 0 AEHEE on Demand Clause was revised in October 2020 to align the
ERRF - mMERRITTE corresponding wording with no change in conclusion
5 AR E_EF+AMBEMELUBHR 5> As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in
HEERAFLITRUED 2 ER - RZTZ= October 2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary
F-A—AZrABz FEHE  BEH exemption that permits insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather than HKFRS
BMEERIEIREELIBE - WERR 9 for annual periods beginning before 1 January 2023

TR ARBEEGIHERIEINRTIFE
B BIRELRESR 2 ERAL

AE BRI ERVIRERIFT REIBRI 2 & The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
BB ER AR 2 B2 ER G - WK impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial application,
BEREE W S RS BB IR E % but is not yet in a position to state whether these new and
Ale B BB R R RN ER AR revised HKFRSs would have any significant impact on its financial
BEATE - performance and financial position.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2022

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long-term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights
and over which it is in a position to exercise significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control
or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed
sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at
the Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses.

Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting
policies that may exist. The Group’s share of the post-acquisition
results and other comprehensive income of associates and joint
ventures is included in the consolidated income statement and
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, respectively.
In addition, when there has been a change recognized directly in
the equity of the associate or joint venture, the Group recognizes
its share of any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Unrealized gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group and its associates
or joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
investments in the associates or joint ventures, except where
unrealized losses provide evidence of an impairment of the assets
transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates or
joint ventures is included as part of the Group’s investments in
associates or joint ventures.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2022

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured.
Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under
the equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant
influence over the associate or joint control over the joint venture,
the Group measures and recognizes any retained investment at
its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the
associate or joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint
control and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds
from disposal is recognized in the income statement.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree
that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the
acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create outputs.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2022

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.
This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair
value and any resulting gain or loss is recognized in the income
statement.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognized at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognized in the income
statement. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity
is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognized for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum
of this consideration and other items is lower than the fair value
of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognized in the income statement as a gain on bargain
purchase.
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(continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 March.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units that are expected
to benefit from the synergy of the combination, irrespective of
whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to
those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognized. An impairment
loss recognized for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill
disposed of in these circumstances is measured based on the
relative value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.
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(continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties at fair value at the
end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market
for the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous
market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an
asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming
that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in
its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.
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3. TESTHBEBEE) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

AFEFEE) Fair value measurement (continued)
NEERVBHRERTERIFEECEEE All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
LEE DRBEHATEFEEEMS disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair
BEAZEEEMNGAESBERRAFERE value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
& HIWAT - input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

F—E — ERMEREENEBGERER Level 1 based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
M52 B CRETHE) for identical assets or liabilities

FE — ERYATEFA=EmMEBE Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest
AZHEE L@ ABTER level input that is significant to the fair value
(THREESHE) 2EER measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly
)

EFZE — ERYQAFEAEMSEE Level 3

based on valuation techniques for which the lowest

RN &K E s A BT 7] & level input that is significant to the fair value
R mERDT measurement is unobservable
RN E U EER B RRERCEE For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial
LafE  AEERSRERRBBEFRFT statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
EoBE(REBEHATEIEREMEEE transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
AEBRERBAB)  BEERENEE reassessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is
Wz MBEEER o significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of

each reporting period.

94 EHEEARAF 2021/22 FiR CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2022

ISR MIEE 2

—E-_—_F=ZA=+—H

3. FESTHEREE) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
FEMEERE Impairment of non-financial assets

WATRBRHRERERERAEELET
FEREAAFE  EXHBEE &
MEELRREMERIN)  AISHEF&E
ENRKEIEHE - ATl BREERR
CEHBUNEREERAEATEREE
RAR(AE S E R%E) - XHLERIE EmE
E o BRFAHEEYBELTERARE L
BUYNEMEEXEEARNRER
ERBERTAREeEREEMBNRES
ELEMMETE - RS EDLEET
REAHE - HARIEE(NEREAE) &
Mo RMELERE R —HNERE LETD
i - Ao EEEERREELEML - BRI
HoBEE& N REEDEMHER

MEBRENEERAEBHEN KES
B TIAER - REHAEEBERR - A&
ARASRERAIRBEFHSHENE
BRRELEERERBROBRHATIRE
PRERE - BERBBRNESHE S W
R EBEEEDEMBN 2ZF HER
kR - BEBBEREELRETA - IR
Wet kA - BRIFZEERNAEGET
B HEIBERT - AURERIRIRZERE
ENBRIABERAR -

EEEEARAT 2021/22 F5)

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets, financial assets and investment
properties), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent
of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case
the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. In testing a cash-generating unit
for impairment, a portion of the carrying amount of a corporate
asset (e.g., a headquarters building) is allocated to an individual
cash-generating unit if it can be allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis or, otherwise, to the smallest group of cash-
generating units.

An impairment loss is recognized only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the income statement
in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset. An impairment
loss is charged to the income statement in the period in which it
arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the
relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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(continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously recognized
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognized impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortization) had
no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the income
statement in the period in which it arises.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

or
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3. FEEHBEBER) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
BREAL(E) Related parties (continued)
(b) Z—FHAEE  mEa TIEMN—IE (b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
B applies:
() ZERAXREEBR—SBZK (i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;
I=I/NETI
(i) ZERASEREBNBERRNAE (i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
ERE(NS—ERBITAF - entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
MEARKERMBAR): the other entity);
(i) ZEBEAEEHRA—F=7 (i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
BERE third party;

(ivy ZERAF - FBERZAED (iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
E 2

entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) ZERBARASEN— %Eﬁiﬁﬁl (v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
EHECEEREENET benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
MBER 2 RAETE related to the Group;

(vi) ZEEE R ()BT A TIZEHI (vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
HEEH identified in (a);

i) RV BEF#ERIATHERAE (vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
K?&%QE*?EE‘;(WEZ ML over the entity or is a member of the key management
RE)EEERAE personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(vii) Z BRI HEMBSEENERKE (viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
RASBE SN AEBE L QRIRMH part, provides key management personnel services to the
FEEEABRE o Group or to the parent of the Group.
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(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.
Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to the income statement in the period in
which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria
are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalized
in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required
to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognizes such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates
used for this purpose are as follows:

BBZEF - RHEEFH Buildings in Hong Kong —  Over the lease terms
BEUNIIMBRE ZIEF - THESTHE Buildings outside Hong Kong - 15 to 60 years
B - - EE - ZE+ARF Plant, machinery, furniture - 2to 15 years

K E AR

IKAFRE T I EAE L ITE R -

EIEEBEBR AT 2021/22 FiK

and other equipment

Freehold land is not depreciated.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2022

ISR MIEE 2

—E-_—_F=ZA=+—H

3. FESTHEREE) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

¥ BERRBRITE(E)

HWEWE - BELRRERE 2B AETR
AR - ZBBE 2N AREEEED
i &aby  EBMOSBFENE -

RerEE AERFHRFEN AR
REEMBEEREHREEERET
% ]

9\

13
OH]

WE - BERREBHREBREASISG
RAZEZHA HNHEXERREAR
&S I8 B A A R RAE B A ot By AR L T
B RRUIERZEENFEABLES
RAMEEMRGENEE  SEEEMS
SFREREEZ ZH o

FRTRIEERZETZBE - BRAE
BRORESAR S S AE T E B - BAER
HERERETI RN EREEE - &
TREMREAHRERER  ER2TRSER
EEWIEME - BEIRERESE

EEEEARAT 2021/22 F5)

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.
Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognized in the
income statement in the year the asset is derecognized is the
difference between the net sale proceeds and the carrying amount
of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents plant under construction,
which is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not
depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction
during the period of construction. Construction in progress is
reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use.
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3. FESHHEREE) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
BEWME Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including
the leasehold property held as a right-of-use asset which would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment property) held to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than
for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business. Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions
at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the income statement in the
year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognized in the income statement in the year of the
retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied
properties, the deemed cost of a property for subsequent
accounting is its fair value at the date of change in use. If a
property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied property
becomes an investment property, the Group accounts for such
property in accordance with the policy stated under “Property,
plant and equipment and depreciation” for owned property and/
or accounts for such property in accordance with the policy
stated under “Right-of-use assets” for property held as a right-of-
use asset up to the date of change in use, and any difference at
that date between the carrying amount and the fair value of the
property is accounted for as movements in the asset revaluation
reserve.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2022

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with
finite lives are subsequently amortized over the useful economic
life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication
that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortization period
and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Know-how

Purchased know-how is stated at cost less any impairment losses
and is amortized on the straight-line basis over its estimated
useful life of 5 years.

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the income statement as
incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalized and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that
it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its
ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future
economic benefits, the availability of resources to complete the
project and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during
the development. Product development expenditure which does
not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.
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3. FESHHEREE) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
RERHMBEMEE Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortized cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics
and the Group’s business model for managing them. With the
exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component
or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient are
measured at the transaction price determined under HKFRS 15
in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition”
below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive income,
it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount
outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI
are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss,
irrespective of the business model.
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(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers
to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash
flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will
result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured at
amortized cost are held within a business model with the objective
to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows,
while financial assets classified and measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income are held within a business
model with the objective of both holding to collect contractual
cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are not held within
the aforementioned business models are classified and measured
at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognized on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortized cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortized cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to impairment.
Gains and losses are recognized in the income statement when
the asset is derecognized, modified or impaired.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2022

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognized (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated

statement of financial position) when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under
a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (i) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (ii) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognize
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognizes an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that
the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the Group could be required to repay.
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(continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognizes an allowance for expected credit losses
(“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected
cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held
or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual
terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognized in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the
default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk
on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22 105



PR MR ()

T —F=A=+—H

3. FESHBEBER)

TREERE(E)

—RE R (E)

AEERR  MELONFTAM—F - Al
EREERIFRY - A RETEHER
T - EA G KA BRI INRIE
RzWamal - REBIRAITRAEHIMNEE
FHBUR AN SR B T A AT B2 BURER 1 R (B &
EHNEERSEREEREFED - WEX
EEBEHKRESHRESRE @ RIMESR
BE -

BAFEFARMEHRE 2 EBRER
HEHRATNEZCREEARE R
FETRE - XN TIF EEMEREE
ZPEB DR - T PR R R R Ty
R RIE 5 R e R M R B T B B BRBR
B o

BE— — EERRBEMHREZRARL
EERERN - BEBRBRER
ERNT_EAABRREES
BZeRiEZEmMTA

EER— — EERBRENKERARRE
ZEMET D EEREZ
TREE)  AEERERS
ANeHEREEERZS
WITEZE2MITA

EER= — RBEAHRCEERENE
WHBEXBLEZEEER
B) BERBHREANE
HRMEEERZSHE
ZERMEE

106 EHELEBRAR 2021/22 Fif

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2022

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach (continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are one year past due. However, in certain cases,
the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default
when internal or external information indicates that the Group is
unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the
Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income and financial assets at amortized cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are classified
within the following stages for measurement of ECLs except for
trade receivables and finance lease receivables which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but that
are not credit-impaired financial assets and for which
the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting
date (but that are not purchased or originated credit-
impaired) and for which the loss allowance is measured
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs
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(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component,
and finance lease receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach,
the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead
recognizes a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and bills payables,
financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals, lease
liabilities and interest-bearing bank borrowings.
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Financial liabilities at amortized cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortized cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Gains and losses are recognized in the income statement when
the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the effective
interest rate amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortization is included in the income statement.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to
make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. A financial guarantee contract is recognized initially as
a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group measures the financial guarantee
contract at the higher of (i) the ECL allowance determined in
accordance with the policy as set out in “Impairment of financial
assets”; and (ii) the amount initially recognized less, when
appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognized.
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A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the income
statement.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and,
in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Net realizable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.
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(continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, bank balances and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity
of generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and bank balances comprise cash on hand, bank balances
and demand deposits, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognized when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognized
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting
period of the future expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value
amount arising from the passage of time is included in finance
costs in the income statement.

The Group provides for warranties in relation to the sale of certain
products. Provisions for these assurance-type warranties granted
by the Group are recognized based on sales volume and past
experience of the level of repairs and returns, discounted to their
present values as appropriate.
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(continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognized outside the income statement is
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, when the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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(continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred tax
assets are only recognized to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.
Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognized to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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(continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only
if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different
taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognized at their fair value where there
is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates
to an expense item, it is recognized as income on a systematic
basis over the periods that the costs, for which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed. Where the grant relates to an asset,
the fair value is credited to a deferred income account and is
released to the income statement over the expected useful life of
the relevant asset by equal annual installments.
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Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when
control of goods is transferred to the customers at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods to the customer for more than one year, revenue
is measured at the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be reflected in
a separate financing transaction between the Group and the
customer at contract inception. When the contract contains a
financing component which provides the Group with a significant
financial benefit for more than one year, revenue recognized
under the contract includes the interest expense accreted on
the contract liability under the effective interest method. For a
contract where the period between the payment by the customer
and the transfer of the promised goods is one year or less, the
transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a significant
financing component, using the practical expedient in HKFRS
15. Furthermore, the Group has elected to apply the practical
expedient to recognize the incremental costs of obtaining a
contract as an expense when incurred if the amortization period of
the asset that the Group otherwise would have recognized is one
year or less.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized at the point in time

when control of the asset is transferred to the customer, generally
on delivery of the goods.
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(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Other income

Interest income is recognized on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life
of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate,
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Rental income is recognized on a time proportion basis over the
lease term.

Finance lease interest income is recognized on an accrual basis
using the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the net investment of the finance lease or a
shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the net investment of the finance lease.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognized when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities
are recognized as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to
the customer).
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HE Leases

TEBRERRABRTHERETBRNK The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or

BEHE - WERETHEMNAKERBRE contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract

FE—ERERNEHE#HNEENFER « Al conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a

ZERBRIBEME period of time in exchange for consideration.

KEFERATAA Group as a lessee

AEERHMEHE(HEHHEERKER The Group applies a single recognition and measurement

EEMHERINENE —BRALTES approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of

E o AEBEREEABUELEER low-value assets. The Group recognizes lease liabilities to make

H MEREEERTCHREREENRE lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to

A o use the underlying assets.

(a) EHEESE (a) Right-of-use assets
FREEENEER BB (AR Right-of-use assets are recognized at the commencement date
BEAHEGHAAHER - THAEE of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available
ERK AR 25T E R MRIE for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
EiEEE  WENIEHEaEE accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and
LA - FREEENKABIED®E adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
RN EEaELTE  CEANYERE of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
BN - AR FNF16 B Bisk 2 B E T recognized, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
MNEEFRE WM EREEERSE - made at or before the commencement date less any lease
FREEEEMB AR A F incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
(ARG ERE)NIREGETIRITE straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease terms and the
N estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:
MELTH At+ER+=F Leasehold land 50 to 52 years
ES —2 R4 Properties 1 to 5 years
qE —E=F Motor vehicles 1 to 2 years
WERREEFNEREMENTE - When a right-of-use asset meets the definition of investment
AIFt AR EME - BEFREEET property, it is included in investment properties. The
WRIEKAGTE » EEREBEAEE corresponding right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost,
EME IBERIR A FERE © and subsequently measured at fair value, in accordance with

the Group’s policy for “Investment properties”.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2022

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)
(b) Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognized at the commencement date
of the lease at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease
term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate)
or a change in assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset.

(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to its short-term leases of properties (that is those leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option).
It also applies the recognition exemption for leases of low-
value assets to leases of office equipment that are considered
to be of low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value

assets are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2022

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. Rental income is accounted for on
a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in other
income in the income statement.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are
accounted for as finance leases. At the commencement date,
the cost of the leased asset is capitalized at the present value of
the lease payments and related payments (including the initial
direct costs), and presented as a receivable at an amount equal
to the net investment in the lease. The finance income on the net
investment in the lease is recognized in the income statement
so as to provide a constant periodic rate of return over the lease
terms.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalized as part of the cost of those
assets. The capitalization of such borrowing costs ceases when
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs capitalized. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity
incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2022

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items included
in the financial statements of each entity are measured using
that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded
by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items
are recognized in the income statement. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising
on translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is
treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on the item
whose fair value gain or loss is recognized in other comprehensive
income or the income statement is also recognized in other
comprehensive income or the income statement, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance
consideration, the date of initial transaction is the date on which
the Group initially recognizes the non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If
there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group
determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of the
advance consideration.
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(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries and
associates are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar.
As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and
their income statements are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates that approximate to those prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. The resulting exchange differences are
recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive income relating
to that particular foreign operation is recognized in the income
statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

Employee benefits

(a) Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for those employees who are eligible to participate
in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
certain percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are
charged to the income statement as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.
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EERAE) Employee benefits (continued)

(a) Bikzit&) (&) (a) Pension schemes (continued)
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Prior to the MPF Scheme becoming effective, the Group
operated a defined contribution retirement benefit scheme
(the “DCRB Scheme”) for those employees who were eligible
and had elected to participate in the DCRB Scheme. The
DCRB Scheme operates in a similar way to the MPF Scheme,
except that when an employee leaves the Group prior to his/
her interest in the DCRB Scheme vesting fully, the ongoing
contributions payable by the Group would be reduced by the
relevant amount of the forfeited employer contributions.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China
are required to participate in a central pension scheme (the
“Central Scheme”) which is operated by the local municipal
government. The contributions payable by these subsidiaries
to the Central Scheme, which are based on a certain
percentage of the salaries of their employees, are charged to
the income statement as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the Central Scheme.

As required by the Taiwanese Labour Standard Law, the
Group’s subsidiaries in Taiwan operate a funded defined
benefit pension scheme (the “Old Scheme”) and make
monthly contributions to the retirement fund to meet
employees’ retirement and termination benefits entitlements.
The fund is administered by the Employees’ Retirement
Fund Committee (the “Committee”) and is deposited under
the Committee’s name with a government approved financial
institution, which acts as the trustee. The cost of providing
pension benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined
using the projected unit credit actuarial valuation method.
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Employee benefits (continued)

(a) Rikeit2)(4E) (a) Pension schemes (continued)
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Remeasurements arising from the Old Scheme, comprising
actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability) and the return on plan assets (excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability), are recognized immediately in the consolidated
statement of financial position with a corresponding debit or
credit to retained profits through other comprehensive income
in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not
reclassified to the income statement in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognized in the income statement at
the earlier of:

e the date of the plan amendment or curtailment; and

e the date that the Group recognizes restructuring-related
costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the
net defined benefit liability or asset. The Group recognizes
the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation
under “cost of sales”, “selling and distribution expenses”
and “administrative expenses” in the consolidated income
statement.

e Service costs comprising current service costs, past-
service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-

routine settlements

e Net interest expense or income
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In 2005, the Taiwan government amended the related
pension scheme regulations by adding a new contributory
pension scheme (the “New Scheme”) in the Labour Pension
Act, which became effective on 1 July 2005. According to
the amended retirement regulations, the employees could
choose to either select the New Scheme or to stay with the
Old Scheme whatever they want. The obligation of the Group’s
subsidiaries in Taiwan to those employees selecting the New
Scheme is to contribute the required portion of the monthly
compensation to the government designated account since
the election, while the Group’s subsidiaries in Taiwan are still
liable under the Old Scheme for the portion pertaining to the
service years prior to 1 July 2005.

Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognized in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognized for equity-settled transactions at the end of each
reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent
to which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the income statement
for a period represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognized as at the beginning and end of that
period.
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3. FEEHBEBELE) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

BERA(E)

Employee benefits (continued)

(b) BERBRENTIIRZ(4E) (b) Share-based payment transactions (continued)
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Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant date fair
value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without
an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-
vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the
fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing
of an award unless there are also service and/or performance
conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognized. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognized as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognized for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payment
transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as
measured at the date of modification.
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3. FESTHEREE) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
BEERE) Employee benefits (continued)
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(b) Share-based payment transactions (continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if
it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognized for the award is recognized immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within
the control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled
award, and is designated as a replacement award on the
date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are
treated as if they were a modification of the original award, as
described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.
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4. EREFTHE KRG (E) 4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

ESTIMATES (continued)

# i Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from

RERAEE 2 @t HRBIET - BRE
EERTISEMERRAFERSEES
REATE 2 A (T RIES MfEETE):

those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognized in the financial statements:

(a) Impairment of assets

(a) BENIE
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(b)

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the event
previously causing the impairment no longer exists, the Group
has to exercise judgement in the area of asset impairment,
particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred
that may affect the asset value or such event affecting the
asset value has not been in existence; (2) whether the
carrying value of an asset can be supported by the net present
value of future cash flows which are estimated based upon
the continued use of the asset or derecognition; and (3) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash
flow projections including whether these cash flow projections
are discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the
assumptions selected by management to determine the level
of impairment, including the discount rates or the growth rate
assumptions in the cash flow projections, could materially
affect the net present value used in the impairment test.

Withholding taxes arising from the distributions of dividends

The Group’s determination as to whether to accrue for
withholding taxes arising from the distributions of dividends
from certain subsidiaries according to the relevant tax
jurisdictions is subject to judgement on the timing of the
payment of the dividend. The Group considered that if the
profits will not be distributed in the foreseeable future, then
no withholding taxes should be provided.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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4. ERETHE KA (E) 4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

ESTIMATES (continued)

Fr (&) Judgements (continued)

(c) REYEHEBYELZ 7

(c) Classification between investment properties and owner-
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occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore,
the Group considers whether a property generates cash flows
largely independently of the other assets held by the Group.
Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion that is
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately or leased out separately under a finance lease, the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions
could not be sold separately, the property is an investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Judgement is made on an individual property basis
to determine whether ancillary services are so significant that
a property does not qualify as an investment property.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22 127



PR MR ()

T —F=A=+—H

4. EREFHER M E)

H R (48)

(d) BEHERZELHERNE 7

HEACBRRERE(LHESR
mAERZARRRERAS - &
BHHHAERRBKF)AEERE
(HHEBHHBEANEREEEE) -

RTER—ReESEEDERBER
s HEHEHEWK  HEKEED
HAERERGEEA

s AEAEBEEENEEE M
VM EEBREHERERT
EEERROAFE  YREE
Fita A - BLA] A& 22 i e xR
BREBRITRE

o AMEFRARTER  EHEMG
BECASHORES

o REEWHA  BOEAEER
TR B TR B S
AFAE %

e MEBEMERK MRMMER
Rekis - RAERBATEER -

128 EHELEBRAR] 2021/22 Fif

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2022

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)

(d) Classification between finance leases and operating leases

Leases are required to be classified as either finance leases
(which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership, and give rise to the recognition of a receivable by
the lessor) or operating leases (which result in the recognition

of the leased asset by the lessor).

Situations that would normally lead to a lease being classified

as a finance lease include the following:

the lease transfers ownership of the asset to the lessee by
the end of the lease term;

the lessee has the option to purchase the asset at a price
which is expected to be sufficiently lower than the fair
value at the date the option becomes exercisable and, at
the inception of the lease, it is reasonably certain that the
option will be exercised;

the lease term is for the major part of the economic life of
the asset, even if title is not transferred;

at the inception of the lease, the present value of the
minimum lease payments amounts to at least substantially
all of the fair value of the leased asset; or

the leased assets are of a specialized nature such that

only the lessee can use them without major modifications
being made.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2022

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described as below.

(a) Estimation regarding provision for expected credit losses on
trade receivables and finance lease receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables and finance lease receivables. The provision rates
are based on days past due for groupings of various customer
segments that have similar loss patterns. The Group takes
into consideration information that is available at the reporting
date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions are
expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to
an increased number of defaults in the manufacturing sector,
the historical default rates are adjusted. At each reporting
date, the historical observed default rates are updated and
changes in the forward-looking estimates are analyzed.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2022

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(a)

(b)

Estimation regarding provision for expected credit losses on
trade receivables and finance lease receivables (continued)

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is
a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to
changes in circumstances and forecast economic conditions.
The Group’s historical credit loss experience and forecast
of economic conditions may also not be representative of a
customer’s actual default in the future. The information about
the ECLs on the Group’s trade receivables and finance lease
receivables is disclosed in notes 21 and 23 to the financial
statements, respectively.

Estimation regarding inventory provision

Management of the Group reviews the inventory ageing
analysis on a periodic basis for those aged inventories.
This involves comparison of the carrying value of the aged
inventory items with the respective net realizable value. In
addition, management of the Group considers various factors,
including historical sales patterns, post year-end usage or
sales and selling prices of inventories, market demand,
technological changes and the Group’s future plan of usage
or sale to ascertain whether provision is required to be made
in the financial statements for any obsolete and slow-moving
items. Physical counts on all inventories are carried out on a
periodic basis in order to determine whether any provision is
required to be made in respect of any obsolete and defective
inventories identified.
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4. ERETHE KA (E) 4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

17.

5. REeoMWER 5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
AEBTERERERHETBREEH The Group is principally involved in the manufacture and sale of
Em - MEEMmMS @ AEBREERFF plastic injection moulding machines and related products. For
D B IREBEMN - B T = @7 5 management purposes, the Group is organized into business units
HaE S based on the locations of customers and has three reportable

operating segments as follows:
(i) PREKREREE: (i) Mainland China and Hong Kong;
(i) a&;: & (ii) Taiwan; and
(i) EMBINER (iii) Other overseas countries.
EEESIAERASB 2 EESHE Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
B UREBERSERRBFT AT EEL R segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
TE o D EPRIBIIRBTEE 2 R ADR resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment
&t & 2 Al # s o 30 i A R VERE A o &% performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit,
SEEBR T B v I BN B [ 2 BR A BT s B ET which is a measure of adjusted profit before tax. The adjusted
2B EFBEWA - KRESWARK profit before tax is measured consistently with the Group’s profit
&= FHEEEMNREKAEN - EREER before tax except that interest income, unallocated income
Al AR B R B ERARED T HTFA and gains, non-lease-related finance costs, share of profits less
BHEFTES - losses of associates and corporate and unallocated expenses are
excluded from such measurement.
EHEBARAR 2021/22 F3 CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22 131
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(c) BERE

AEBZIBFEEHESLTRE -
HEeESERBz2ReELEM 2F
FREEBEELMEE - HEHEREEEZX
REBERARSEHEM ZBHR
B REELHE - NEREBEHE
PREREREFEZEHREREZ
RE RZFEZZF=A=+—8 -
B2 7 RHEFEAA51,905,0005T
—ZT=—%F : #¥51,905,0007T) °
BBl 2 FFEEFIAMIELT o

ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(c) Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating unit and also to choose a suitable discount
rate and growth rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows. The net carrying amount of goodwill as at
31 March 2022 was HK$51,905,000 (2021: HK$51,905,000).
More details of the impairment assessment are given in note
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—E-_—_F=ZA=+—H 31 March 2022
5. BE&oHERE) 5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
DESEEMBRREBE AR Z2"E  BLEMH Segment assets exclude investments in associates, deferred tax
HEENMBS RRITHEGFEPRITER assets and cash and bank balances except pledged bank deposits.
Broh) o B EBRETERITTER - & Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank borrowings, tax
NRIERIEERIBAEE © payable and deferred tax liabilities.
ARESEDH 2B BEERHEE - There are no significant sales between the reportable operating
segments.
TR HE_E-_—_FR T —F= The following tables present revenue, results, certain assets,
A=+ —HLEFEAEEKEDF 2 U liabilities and expenditure information for the Group’s operating
= EE BTEE - ABENAXER - segments for the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021.
REPEEH
S
Segment revenue PEEE
from external customers Segment results
(B¥Fi) (HK$'000) 2022 2021 2022 2021
HERERES Mainland China and Hong Kong 1,986,848 1,891,139 226,354 282,670
=y Taiwan 132,282 97,988 1,988 (140)
HibBINER Other overseas countries 609,633 371,426 43,553 19,001
2,728,763 2,360,553 271,895 301,531
TP IEBERB A Reconciliation of results of operating segments
RAAHMT to profit before tax is as follows:
manHEE Operating segment results 271,895 301,531
REDYPN R Mz Unallocated income and gains 16,345 20,491
CERRENTH Corporate and unallocated expenses (49,355) (52,214)
BEKK(HEAR Finance costs (other than
FERRIN) interest on lease liabilities) (1,094) (1,743)
E{RBE N R R FIREE Share of profits less losses of associates 777 2,737
BRTA AT A Profit before tax 238,568 270,802
132 BEHEEBEBRAR) 2021/22 F3) CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2022

5. BE/HMER(E) 5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
IHEE AHEE
Segment assets Segment liabilities

(B&FT) (HK$'000) 2022 2021 2022 2021
REAERAR Mainland China and Hong Kong 3,157,947 2,798,286 938,158 1,057,138
=Y Taiwan 116,254 106,381 30,052 37,978
HigohBIR Other overseas countries 411,138 263,052 94,089 64,319
3,685,339 3,167,719 1,062,299 1,159,435

REE AR HE Investments in associates 28,529 26,458 - -
FEDEE Unallocated assets 715,459 1,184,261 - -
FEDBE Unallocated liabilities - - 138,566 205,957
4,429,327 4,378,438 1,200,865 1,365,392

hauER
Other segment information
BRUBRHR/(BE)K
HEESR/BEIE
FERES HfEREH/(RA)  Impaiment lossesfprovisions ERER
Depreciation and Other non-cash charged/(written back) in the Capital
amortization expenses/(income) income statement, net expenditure

(B¥T71) (HK$000) 2022 2021 2022 21 2022 2021 2022 21
hEAERER Mainland China and Hong Kong 53425 51450 (12,698)  (13%) (166) 9093 147681 25625
qE Taiwan 1,436 1,603 34 - 4,236 (491) 1,692 1275
Efbg5E% Other overseas countries 2,038 851 7 - (1,29 6,741 1,097 598
56,899 53908 (12,657) (1354) 2,856 15343 150470 27498

EEEEBR AR 2021/22 Fik
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5, REFIER(E) 5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

ERBEE
Non-current assets
(BEMFT) (HK$°000) 2022 2021
REIRREE BB Mainland China and Hong Kong 1,117,511 986,643
=Y Taiwan 15,306 14,721
HAthBINE R Other overseas countries 534 515
1,133,351 1,001,879

134
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The non-current asset information above is based on the locations
of the assets and excludes deferred tax assets and financial
instruments.

Information about major customers

For the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021, no revenue from
transactions with a single external customer amounted to 10% or
more of the Group’s total revenue.

Yz REVENUE

REEREREFP AU B HE T BH The Group’s revenue from contracts with customers is related
LEBERER  WARMABWRREANESR to the sale of plastic injection moulding machines and related
THIREREEPHER - —RARNE products, and all the revenue is recognized at a point in time
mbF o when control of goods is transferred to customers generally on

delivery of the goods.

CEMFor) (HK$'000) 2022 2021
KERFEHMIKE Revenue from contracts with customers 2,728,763 2,360,553

EHEEEFR AT 2021/22 FR

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22



gy E T EL N ) Notes to Financial Statements (continuea)

—E-—F=A=+—H 31 March 2022
6. W& 6. REVENUE (continued)
IR EE R Disaggregated revenue information
(BEMFr) (HK$’000) 2022 2021
REEEEHH Revenue from contracts with customers
Wis - HETERR - sale of plastic injection moulding
EBE®R machines and related products
EH IR 55 T Geographical markets
REIKRE BB Mainland China and Hong Kong 1,986,848 1,891,139
A Taiwan 132,282 97,988
E M 8INE R Other overseas countries 609,633 371,426
RERFEHNREEART Total revenue from contracts with customers 2,728,763 2,360,553
TREIEFFAREHVEHNEEMNRAR The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognized in
HENERKE SR the current reporting period that were included in the contract

liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period:

(BEFT) (HK$'000) 2022 2021
T AIRE ) Revenue recognized that was included in
BEHBEN contract liabilities at the beginning of
B R the reporting period:
HE T Sale of plastic injection moulding machines
EHER and related products 132,591 37,930
BREE Performance obligations

BHRASERBOTENERINNT Information about the Group’s performance obligations is

summarized below:

HE TR G FHE®D Sale of plastic injection moulding machines and related products
BHBEERRNERBEENX - MR —8K The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the goods
RRABF=FTE—BNTRAEEH o and payment is generally due between 30 and 180 days from
delivery.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

31 March 2022

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

KIF :

(B FT) (HK$'000) Kzt Notes 2022 2021
EHTFERAR Cost of inventories sold 2,081,488 1,727,543
W -~ BB REE Depreciation of property,

ZITE plant and equipment 14 53,967 51,024
FREEECITE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 16(a) 2,729 2,884
| B E Amortization of an intangible asset 18 203 -
HEME - BER&E Gain on disposal of items of property,

€ plant and equipment* (1,225) (326)
M - BB KEE Write-off of items of property,

ik plant and equipment* 14 1,153 1,780
T — TR E AR 2 UzE*  Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary* - (3,134)
TRAHEBETEN Lease payments not included in the

HEH measurement of lease liabilities 16(c) 4,495 4,395
o RFEER Research and development costs*** 61,613 51,160
AT R B/ Government grants*/**** (14,373) (19,711)
Z BN N & Auditor’s remuneration 2,705 2,603
BIRMZH(ZEEMe Employee benefit expenses (excluding

BRON—BEE9) directors’ emoluments - note 9):

T & K Wages and salaries 334,365 285,086

VA SC#E =2 4-F 9 B LA <2 Equity-settled share option expenses 779 264

RIS EF B Pension scheme contributions

(FEFBMHR (defined contribution
FTE|)*rrx scheme)***** 35,372 19,877
BRAREBEEIAR Pension scheme costs
(FEFEREMETED (defined benefit scheme) 29 121 (810)
JEUE SRR FRE Impairment of trade receivables,

PSR net*** 21 3,551 2,895
GFEREFE Provision for inventories, net** 1,414 8,386
JEW R BTHERFRME,  Impairment/(write-back of impairment)

R EREE ) FEa*** of finance lease receivables, net*** 23 (2,023) 4,287
Hh UK AR FORE R Write-back of impairment of other

HRR receivables, net*** 22 (86) (225)
PE & ZRaFRa > Foreign exchange differences, net*** (22,064) (1,399)
WEWMEZ AN TE Fair value gains on investment

Was* properties* 15 (13,810) -
ERMECEE Gross rental income on

WA gaE~ owner-occupied properties* (2,967) (7,800)
o BB R ERRE Less: Direct operating expenses

HeEEZ arising from rental-earning
HEEGERY owner-occupied properties 18 107
BRMEZIEE Net rental income on
WA= owner-occupied properties (2,949) (7,693)
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—E-—F=A=+—H 31 March 2022
7. BRBIBIER () 7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued)

AEBEZBRBATEFE NS GTA) T The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

FIH (&) (continued)

(BETT) (HK$'000) Kzt Notes 2022 2021

"EYEZBE Gross rental income on

WA BB investment properties* (27,832) (30,345)

A RIE Y3 BRER Less: Direct operating expenses

MeEEEZ arising from rental-earning
BHELERY investment properties 1,510 1,296
wWEWME S Net rental income on
WA FRE investment properties (26,322) (29,049)

A EHA Interest income* (15,852) (19,630)

BEHEER B A Finance lease interest income* (493) (861)
ZEBBEBERGEREKR 2] Bl *  These items are included in “Other income and gains, net” on the
ARz FFEIA - face of the consolidated income statement.

* ZIBBDRERGRERERZIHERA] ** This item is included in “Cost of sales” on the face of the
A o consolidated income statement.

o ZERBERERGERER 2 HME *** These items are included in “Other operating expenses, net” on the
EXHFEIA o face of the consolidated income statement.

R BB AERBIRTEE KNS E ***% \/arjous government grants have been received mainly for setting up
AT & 37 20 58 AR o8 B 0% 1B AT IR 51 81 T W B research activities in Mainland China and as subsidy from various
B MU R ZIEBT R o WEIR BT governments under COVID-19 pandemic relief schemes. Conditions
e - WEERTERRER 2 GGRE or contingencies relating to these grants are fulfilled and they are
FIE A BB BB 2 AN ITE - B not deducted from the related costs for which they are intended
MR AEAUA o fWE BB BT HEE to compensate, but recorded in other income. Government grants
FFr U B 49 A8 B 52 L 8 R B A S FT B 75 16 14 received for which related expenditure has not yet been incurred
MAER  AEGEUBRRARFIESR or to which there were unfulfilled conditions are included in “Other
[EtENERRREFBEINITR - payables and accruals” on the face of the consolidated statement of

financial position.

N T BT TR - A=+ —ARZTE = — #kx As at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021, the Group had no forfeited
=A=+—8  KNEEWEAAENRA contributions available to reduce its contributions to the pension
RERREETEIHFRAZ U R - schemes in future years.
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31 March 2022

PR MR ()

T —F=A=+—H

8. BEMA 8. FINANCE COSTS
(EMFor) (HK$'000) 2022 2021
SRITERHE Interest on bank loans 1,094 1,743
HEBEMNE Interest on lease liabilities 212 205
1,306 1,948
9. EEHM 9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

138

BIE ETHRBREB QGG $E383(1)
(@~ (b) ) EMEA R AR(HEESE
FImERDBROIFE2DE - FRESHINE
TR

Directors’” emoluments for the year, disclosed pursuant to the
Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, are as follows:

CEMFor) (HK$’000) 2022 2021
wne Fees:
WITES Executive directors - -
B IEMITES Independent non-executive directors 1,056 880
HAthZr B - Other emoluments:
e  RMEREDAR Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 6,972 4,856
FIRAMRTEAT Performance related bonuses 7,373 4,052
PARRHE 2 ST RO BE AR AE S Equity-settled share option expenses 591 181
RIRBET MK Pension scheme contributions 36 36
16,028 10,005

FA - ATEFIRERAEERENR
BRER - REARFNR-_Z—HFNA
— OB R 2 B AR B R AE
E—FHBEHIN N U EIRRMEI2 - ZF
BhEn 2 TEERFEBHAEKER
RRER)IZRNE T A AN EEEE Mat
ARFEREPBwEK - WO Ll E =
RIREE

EIEEBEBR AT 2021/22 FiK

During the year, executive directors were granted share options
under the share option scheme of the Company adopted on 24
September 2014 in respect of their services and contribution
to the Group, further details of which are set out in note 32 to
the financial statements. The fair value of such share options,
which has been recognized in the income statement over the
vesting periods, was determined as at the date of grant and the
amount included in the financial statements for the current year is
included in the above directors’ emoluments disclosures.
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—E-—F=A=+—H 31 March 2022
9. EEFM#E) 9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(a) BIYFHTES (a) Independent non-executive directors
FA XN TFELERTEENES The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during
N the year were as follows:
(E®FT) (HK$’000) 2022 2021
PRES B Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN 258 215
Anish LALVANI4E 4 Mr. Anish LALVANI 276 230
MFExRE Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE 264 220
BREE e 4 Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN 258 215
1,056 880
FRN o WEHAMBFN S FIEILIEHR There were no other emoluments payable to the independent
TER(ZZE=—F:|) - non-executive directors during the year (2021: Nil).
ERAIRBYIERTEEZME TR The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown
BEETARREETZRBEER - above were for their services as directors of the Company.
(b) BTES (b) Executive directors
2022
Fs -
119 DA
BWFIE E30) B35 Bife
Salaries, HETA  BREXY SHEf
allowances  Performance Equity-settled Pension st
#£  and benefits related  share option scheme Total
(EETFI) (HK$000) Fees in kind bonuses expenses contributions  emoluments
ERiat Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG - 4,644 6,506 389 18 11,557
EWRAE Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG - 2,328 867 202 18 3415
- 6,972 7373 591 36 14,972
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9. EEHFM &)

(b) BITES(E)

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2022

9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b) Executive directors (continued)

2021
¥e -
i 19 DR
BN E30) B3} BihE
Salaries, BEL  BREXH SHEf
allowances  Performance Equity-settled Pension Fmast
#¢  and benefits related  share option scheme Total
(B¥TT) (HK$'000) Fees in kind bonuses expenses  contributions  emoluments
BBRLL" Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG** - 3,057 3210 117 18 6,402
BRRTE Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG®** - 1,799 842 64 18 2,723
- 4856 4,052 181 36 9,125

fERZZETN\FEE2REMEWH
2 FTEFERASERERER
KAFHH BEXAEEXBHER
Ik -#E=E—ZT-FF+-"A=+—H
LENEA - MBERTEEREEER
AFMERRELA10% -

* BBAXTHERNATMARENE
#3740007C BT -_—F—F—
HEAEM - B TRRBENIEL TS
SBABREURBEEAARFHEE

OBRRAEENERAFIMBBRENE
¥160,000C - BT =—F—H—
B - B AR RIBMAEALTD
SBABARBULREBEARRET
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* %

Due to the adverse effects of the global financial tsunami in late
2008, the executive directors had voluntarily agreed to effect
a temporary reduction of their basic monthly salaries until the
business of the Group recovers. All the executive directors had
agreed to effect the temporary reduction of their basic monthly
salaries of approximately 10% for the nine months ended 31
December 2020.

The basic monthly salary of Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG was revised
to approximately HK$374,000 with effect from 1 January 2021.
The performance related bonus of Ms. CHIANG was determined
by reference to the Company’s performance as well as individual
performance and contribution.

The basic monthly salary of Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG
was revised to approximately HK$160,000 with effect from 1
January 2021. The performance related bonus of Mr. CHUNG
was determined by reference to the Company’s performance as
well as individual performance and contribution.
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—E-—F=A=+—H 31 March 2022
9. EEFM (&) 9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(b) BITEE(E) (b) Executive directors (continued)
WITEEHMEEDT - The emoluments of the executive directors fell within the

following bands:

BEAY
Number of directors
(VBH) (HK$) 2022 2021
2,500,001 - 3,000,000 - 1
3,000,001 - 3,500,000 1 -
6,000,001 - 6,500,000 - 1
11,500,001 - 12,000,000 1 -
2 2

ERIIRHOTEST CWE HEFK S The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for
ERARNABIRAEEEHR 2RES their services in connection with the management of the
B o affairs of the Company and the Group.
M EXFIEEEN 2T Save as disclosed above, there was no arrangement under

—E-—F=ZA=Z+—HIEFER which a Director waived or agreed to waive any remuneration
TR EEEHENEBREL during the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021.
B
FR - AEEBTESHEHITFEEU During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
TRIEEH T MAREBSIEAIMARE the directors as an inducement to join, or upon joining the
B2 R - BEBmE( =T Group, or as compensation for loss of office (2021: Nil).
FE) e
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10. L8 ERSHEZEE

TR AEESZEHME 2 EBERE A
—EC—F: ZR)EE - EfleE2H7
REF SRR M9 -

=R(CE—F ZR)FEERSFW

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2022

10.FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included two (2021:
two) directors, details of whose emoluments are set out in note 9
to the financial statements.

Details of the remuneration for the year of the three (2021: three)

EEMFAMSFFBOT non-director highest paid employees are as follows:
(E#For) (HK$'000) 2022 2021
e ERMEREDN = Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 3,175 2,904
RIRHMETEAL Performance related bonuses 901 394
LARS 4 7 < O BE AR A =2 Equity-settled share option expenses 192 64
R ETEIME K Pension scheme contributions 54 48
4,322 3,410
IESEHaFMEEMSHENT - The remuneration of the non-director highest paid employees fell

within the following bands:

EEAH™
Number of employees
(BH) (HK$) 2022 2021
500,001 - 1,000,000 -
1,000,001 - 1,500,000 2 2
1,500,001 - 2,000,000 1 -
3 3

FA - FEEERFMERNEALKE
REMRERER - REARRAR-F—
PEFENA =+ B RA 2 B B ER
BRE - E—TRHBEI NI WK T
32 ZEBRENAFE(ERFEBRR
AN ERTPER) RN THHNEE
BEERFTARFERBHRE - YER Lt
FEZERSFTHEEMSPRE -
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During the year, share options were granted under the share
option scheme of the Company adopted on 24 September 2014 to
the non-director highest paid employee in respect of his services
and contribution to the Group, further details of which are set out
in note 32 to the financial statements. The fair value of such share
options, which has been recognized in the income statement over
the vesting periods, was determined as at the date of grant and
the amount included in the financial statements for the current
year is included in the above non-director highest paid employees’
remuneration disclosures.
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ZRTBERE -

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2022

11.INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong profits tax has not been provided as the Group did
not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during
the year (2021: Nil). Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have
been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries/

jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

CEMFor) (HK$’000) 2022 2021
BIES - Current:
AFEELH Charge for the year
B Hong Kong - _
Hibib [z Elsewhere 36,731 57,236
BEFEZIREE Overprovision in prior years (441) (689)
PEIE(HaE30) Deferred (note 30) (11,716) 9,430
AEEHRBELH Tax charge for the year 24,574 65,977

FABR A A B AR AR B R A B A
AERRREREZEEREFE
F:15%F
40%)) 2 BIE - ERERREAEZ

(MEHIS%ZE40% (ZF=—

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax
at the statutory rates, ranging from 15% to 40% (2021: 15% to
40%), for the countries/jurisdictions in which the Company and its
subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax

MBS M2 AEHINT rates is as follows:
CEMFor) (HK$’000) 2022 2021
BRI AT Profit before tax 238,568 270,802
BEEMERAE 2 Fi18 Tax at the statutory tax rates 58,212 72,906
1R ) Sk 75 #e s Tax concessions/lower tax rates for

2R ER, B X specific provinces and local authorities (21,912) (19,918)
Bk A R (G s T K B4R Profits and losses attributable to associates (194) (684)
Az 2 H Expenses not deductible for tax 11,885 12,282
BAZMTIIEZ A Income not subject to tax (12,052) (12,265)
AER 2 NFEFIAREIE Tax losses for the year not recognized 3,580 6,820
FARERZBEFE Unrecognized tax losses from

FIEE B prior years utilized (1,211) (896)
BAFEREATIE Adjustments in respect of current tax

2 T of prior years (441) (689)
AEEZHE QR D EFE Effect of withholding tax on distributable

ELEHEHR s & profits of the subsidiaries of the Group (13,293) 8,421
RAEEERHERFE Tax charge at the Group’s effective

HIAX H tax rates 24,574 65,977

EEEEBR AR 2021/22 Fik

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22 143




PR MR ()

T —F=A=+—H

Notes to
31 March 2022

Financial Statements (continued)

12. RE 12.DIVIDENDS
(GE#Fo) (HK$°000) 2022 2021
FHNEMKRE : Dividends paid during the year:
HE—_Z-_—F=A=+—HIE Final in respect of the financial year
BFE 2R~ ended 31 March 2021 — HK$0.115
SR A S 0.1157T (year ended 31 March 2020: HK$0.038)
(BEZZ=ZF=H=+—H per ordinary share
1EFE - B%0.0387T) 72,511 23,960
BHE-Z-—F=A=+—HIt Special final in respect of the financial year
R 2RI R — ended 31 March 2021 — Nil
BREBRABBZT (year ended 31 March 2020: HK$0.017)
(BEZZ=TF=H=+—H per ordinary share
IEFE : %0.0177) - 10,719
PE - B EBAER0.0527T  Interim — HK$0.052 (2021: HK$0.045)
—T - —4 : B%0.0457T) per ordinary share 32,788 28,374
105,299 63,053
EEARERE Proposed final dividends:
RE— B EBAER0.1167T  Final - HK$0.116 (2021: HK$0.115)
—F - —4F : F¥0.1157T) per ordinary share 73,142 72,511

AEFEBZARPBRE BN ABRE
B RIT 2 R REFRGHIER T A E
B 2FUHHRRILARRBREN KR

i
0
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The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval

of the Co
meeting.
dividend

mpany’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
These financial statements do not reflect the final
payable.
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—E-__F=HA=+—H 31 March 2022

IB3.ARARERAEARLERET 13.EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

BRAEARZFDIRBEFAERARERFE The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based on the
A JE(E AR B R)7E213,309,0007T0( = Group’s profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for
=T —4F : B#203,021,00070) REAE the year of HK$213,309,000 (2021: HK$203,021,000) and on the
AT E AR 2 Nt 19 20630,531,6004% weighted average number of ordinary shares of 630,531,600 (2021:
—FT ~—1%:630,531,6000% )5t EFA1S ° 630,531,600) in issue during the year.
HREE_ZS-_—_FR-_F-_—F=A= No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share
T—BIEFERRITEMBERE . ZEE amounts presented for the years ended 31 March 2022 and
EREABNSEAREISIR % 2021 in respect of a dilution as the impact of the share options
EFNBMESRFTE2NNERELRRBF S E outstanding had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic earnings per
PECTHEITRE - share amounts presented.
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—E-_—_F=ZA=+—H 31 March 2022
14.9% - BRERZE 14.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
—E__F=A=+—H 31 March 2022
BE
HeE B
REMRE
Plant,
tit machinery,
REF HREIR furniture
Land and  Construction and other @t
(BEEFT) (HK$'000) buildings in progress equipment Total
RZZ-—FNA—H At 1 April 2021
YA Cost 750,598 10,021 1,002,628 1,763,247
ZEMERAE Accumulated depreciation and impairment (384,330) - (844,888)  (1,229,218)
FEFE Net carrying amount 366,268 10,021 157,740 534,029
RZZ-—FMA-A - At 1 April 2021, net of accumulated
BB EHTE RAE depreciation and impairment 366,268 10,021 157,740 534,029
RE Additions 217 46,875 103,378 150,470
& Disposals - - (592) (592)
3 Write-offs - - (1,153) (1,153)
by Transfers 353 (21,870) 21,517 -
AEEHERE Depreciation provided during the year (30,023) - (23,944) (53,967)
BHAE Exchange realignment 10,502 490 8191 19,183
RZE-—F=ZA=1+—-H" At 31 March 2022, net of accumulated
BB 2STERAE depreciation and impairment 347,317 35,516 265,137 647,970

RZE-—#=A=+—H At 31 March 2022

PR Cost 777,888 35,516 1,144,247 1,957,651
ZMELRE Accumulated depreciation and impairment (430,571) - (879,1100  (1,309,681)
REFE Net carrying amount 347 317 35,516 265,137 647,970
146 EHEBEBRARF) 2021/22 F3R CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22



gy E T EL N ) Notes to Financial Statements (continuea)

—E-__F=HA=+—H 31 March 2022
14.9% - BEREEE) 14.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
—E_—F=A=+—H 31 March 2021
BE
HeE - R
REMRE
Plant,
tit machinery,
REF rRIR furniture
Land and  Construction and other @t
(EEFT) (HK$000) buildings in progress equipment Total
RZEZZTENA—A At 1 April 2020
A Cost 646,299 10,777 929,397 1,586,473
LEHMELRE Accumulated depreciation and impairment (335,859) - (779,599)  (1,115,458)
REFE Net carrying amount 310,440 10,777 149,798 471,015
N_E-TENA—H At 1 April 2020, net of accumulated
Bk 2ATERRE depreciation and impairment 310,440 10,777 149,798 471,015
ANE Additions 1,878 2,002 23618 27,498
HeE Disposals - - (384) (384)
8 Write-offs - - (1,780) (1,780)
EEd3 Transfers 1,192 (3,730) 2,538 -
BRANENE Transfer from investment properties 53,923 - - 53,923
AEEHERE Depreciation provided during the year (20,350) - (30,674) (51,024)
TR Exchange realignment 19,185 972 14,624 34,781
WZE_—F%=ZA=+—-H" At 31 March 2021, net of accumulated
BBk EEHTE RAE depreciation and impairment 366,268 10,021 157,740 534,029
R-E-—-F#=ZA=1+—H At 31 March 2021
B%y Cost 750,598 10,021 1,002,628 1,763,247
ZEMELRE Accumulated depreciation and impairment (384,330) - (844,888)  (1,229,218)
REFE Net carrying amount 366,268 10,021 157,740 534,029
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14,

15.

¥~ BERKREE)

HE_Z-_—F=ZA=+—HLFER
AEEZ —EAREVEERE T HRET
((BRE=ARWE] - ZIREMENEE
2 BRERRARERNEREER  EQ
F{E4 5 A5 153,923,0007T (HIE15)
HEYREEERHEMARERZRRITE
FRARHEGE o HEZE—SFBHIIRN
IS RERMIFELS

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2022

14.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2021, one of the Group’s
investment properties was transferred to land and buildings
(the “Transfer to Owner-occupied Properties”). That investment
property was revalued individually at the date of the transfer
by Cushman & Wakefield Limited, an independent firm of
professionally qualified valuers, at an aggregate fair value of
HK$53,923,000 (note 15) based on its existing use. Further
details of the valuation are set out in note 15 to the financial
statements.

REYE 15.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
(EBE®FT) (HK$’000) 2022 2021
REFHREEE Carrying amount at beginning of year 331,533 355,931
EREOAYE The Transfer to Owner-occupied Properties - (53,923)
R RERZ Fair value changes recognized in the

N EEE(HiE7) income statement (note 7) 13,810 -
PE H FH 2 Exchange realignment 13,953 29,525
RERERAIE Carrying amount at end of year 359,296 331,533

AEEREVERBESEWEZHEE -
FHERRBRS AR PBEKRENTEY
¥ AEEREMERBEBIREEER
HEMAREERITARARMEME
MN-BE-—F#=fA=+—HZEHBEA
75 #359,296,000L( Z T = —F : B
331,533,0007L) - AEEERESFE
REREINBEEMBEASEEYE 25N
HEE - BRZFEBEMSNE - A
B BUMNURREAMREEEZE - K
SEEEESF AN FEMBREET
HERREERR G ELEREGHEME

EE

EIEEBEBR AT 2021/22 FiK

The investment properties of the Group were determined as
industrial properties in Mainland China, based on the nature,
characteristics and risks of each property. The investment
properties of the Group were revalued on 31 March 2022 based
on valuations performed by Cushman & Wakefield Limited,
an independent firm of professionally qualified valuers, at
HK$359,296,000 (2021: HK$331,533,000). Each year, the
Group’s management decides to appoint which external valuer
to be responsible for the external valuations of the Group’s
properties. Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation,
independence and whether professional standards are maintained.
The Group’s management has discussions with the valuer on the
valuation assumptions and valuation results once a year when the
valuation is performed for annual financial reporting.
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—E-_—_F=ZA=+—H 31 March 2022

15. REMF (&) 15.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
HE-_T-_—F=-A=+—HLEFERXN - During the year ended 31 March 2021, one of the Group’s
REBz—EREYENEREE A investment properties was revalued at HK$53,923,000 on the date
Z BRMEKEEAERS3,923,000T © E of the Transfer to Owner-occupied Properties as detailed in note
E—TFBEY R B HREMEEL4 - 14 to the financial statements.
REMEDREBELERERTE =5 - The investment properties are leased to third parties under
ERAME 2 E—FFFBERN M EHRERMF operating leases, further summary details of which are included in
16 - note 16 to the financial statements.
REBREME ZE—TFIBEHNFE208 Further particulars of the Group’s investment properties are
B o included on page 208.
AEEER Fair value hierarchy
TRINTAEBREME L A TFEAEE The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy
& of the Group’s investment properties:

R-ZBZZ§=A=+-H
WAFERRA
Fair value measurement
as at 31 March 2022 using

RERTE EXTHEE EATUEZR
ZHE BAHE BAHE
(5-F8) (B=E) (B=E)
Quoted Significant Significant
prices in observable  unobservable

active markets inputs inputs @t
(E¥TFr) (HK$'000) (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ATIBE ZEF N FERFE © Recurring fair value measurement for:
TEM% Industrial properties - - 359,296 359,296
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—E-—F=A=+—H 31 March 2022
15. REMF (&) 15.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
AFEBR(E) Fair value hierarchy (continued)
R-ZB=Z-£=ZA=+-H
NATEFERA
Fair value measurement
as at 31 March 2021 using
REEMSE EATBEE EAFTHE
ZHE BABE BABE
(5—8) (B=8) €:=1=)
Quoted Significant Significant
prices in observable  unobservable
active markets inputs inputs @t
(E¥TFr) (HK$'000) (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ATIBE ZEFENFERE 0 Recurring fair value measurement for:
TEN% Industrial properties - - 331,533 331,533
FR - B-EBEE_EZHATEEAAT During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
BEifE28EE  TEAEF-EEARED measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into
(ZZ2=—F f8) o or out of Level 3 (2021: Nil).
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2022

15. REWMHE(E) 15.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

DAFPEERE)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

NTREEMEEEMBHEETERER

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the key

AR - inputs to the valuation of investment properties:
BARTAEHE
[TPN ¢
fEEA % Significant mEFRIGE
Valuation unobservable Weighted average
techniques inputs 2022 2021
Ty TETTE FHHES(FA) B#2.676,0007T 72 295 0007
Industrial properties Investment method Term rent HK$2,676,000 HK$2,295,000

(per month)

FHR R 7 7
Term yield
(%)

wEEe(EA)

Reversionary rent

7##2,355,000T
HK$2,355,000

B2 142,0007T
HK$2,142,000
(per month)

TGS 7 7
Reversionary yield
(%)

AEBETITEMEZAFEDERKRES
% UIRBBEONESWA - At RYE
R EREEEHERNE - AFEFEHR
FHHES MERHES 2 EMABBEARE
FHREERER R E 2 AARMEIEK

The fair value of the Group’s industrial properties is determined
using the investment method, by capitalizing the rental income
derived from the existing tenancy with due allowance for the
reversionary potential of the property. The fair value measurement
is positively correlated to the term rent and reversionary rent and
negatively correlated to term yield and reversionary yield.
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T —F=A=+—H 31 March 2022
16. 1 & 16.LEASES
AEBEREBAA The Group as a lessee
$§%5’dz?§%¢ﬁﬁﬁﬁ'ﬂ%?%% WANE The Group has lease contracts for certain of its properties, office
RERABTAHEAR - —XNERMZKE equipment and motor vehicles used in its operations. Lump sum
WARRTEL - DAW%IH&Eﬁ%ﬁ%im i | payments were made upfront to acquire the leased land from
HARATERATZF - H*ETFE%%ifﬁE the owners with lease periods of 50 to 52 years, and no ongoing
EER - BT eITHE—PFIE - WER payments will be made under the terms of these land leases.
%Z%ﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ—ﬂﬁﬁ¥—1£¢ » RAE Leases of properties generally have lease terms between 1 and 5
MECHERR—MNF—Z_F - PR years, while motor vehicles generally have lease terms between 1
=REER AEER - and 2 years. Office equipment is individually of low value.
(a) ERAEEE (a) Right-of-use assets
RERNAEEEAREENREDER The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and
BT the movements during the year are as follows:
AELH RE
Leasehold WE Motor et
(E¥TFT) (HK$°000) land  Properties vehicles Total
RZZE-_ZFMA—H At 1 April 2020 32,706 2,562 171 35,439
NE Additions - 411 233 644
wELH Depreciation charge (1,301) (1,366) (217) (2,884)
b 5 R Exchange realignment 1,808 53 15 1,876
RZZE-_—F=A=+—HBx% At 31 March 2021 and
—E-—FmA—H 1 April 2021 33,213 1,660 202 35,075
NE Additions - 5,103 - 5,103
TESH Depreciation charge (1,141) (1,433) (155) (2,729)
b 5 Exchange realignment 1,026 669 5 1,700
RZE-_—_F=ZA=+—H At 31 March 2022 33,098 5,999 b2 39,149
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—E-_—_F=ZA=+—H 31 March 2022
16.# &%) 16.LEASES (continued)
KEBEREBAGE) The Group as a lessee (continued)
(b) HEEE (b) Lease liabilities
FAHEGGEMNERENRESNT : The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements

during the year are as follows:

(B TT) (HK$°000) 2022 2021
R A—HZEREAEE Carrying amount at 1 April 1,968 2,813
g New leases 5,103 644
FANEHER Accretion of interest recognized

H B8 h0 during the year 212 205
INEN Payments (1,809) (1,763)
PE o % Exchange realignment 681 69
R=A=+—HZKRAEE Carrying amount at 31 March 6,155 1,968
DA Analyzed into:

mENE D Current portion 1,599 1,341

EmBNE Non-current portion 4,556 627
HEBGEMNIBHOMEERITERE The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 40
Bi5E40 © to the financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2022

16.LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(c) The amounts recognized in the income statement in relation
to leases are as follows:

(BBFT) (HK$'000) 2022 2021
HEEENA Interest on lease liabilities 212 205
FRAEEENESDN Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets 2,729 2,884
HEHEERENT T Expense relating to short-term leases

(RRABHERA - (included in cost of sales, selling

HERDHIT N and distribution expenses and

ARITE ST ) administrative expenses) 4,448 4,299
HIEKEEEAERESHENYE Expense relating to leases of low-value assets

(BAITE X ) (included in administrative expenses) 47 96
R R ER A FIARRE Total amount recognized in the income statement 7,436 7,484

(d) #RIEEERE

AEBRFAHRE SR IDEERENE
AR - - EEECHRTERRET
HE o WERMEEEEEEMAS -
WEAEENEBFRRIT - A
TIEARBSEEEHRRARK LE
BREMNTER N Z R PRMARB R

(d) Termination options

The Group has several lease contracts that include termination
options. These options are negotiated by management to
provide flexibility in managing the leased-asset portfolio and
they are aligned with the Group’s business needs. Set out
below are the undiscounted potential future rental payments
relating to periods following the exercise date of termination

WEPBIEARRB SR options that are not included in the lease terms:
(BIFor) (HK$°000) 2022 2021
FEEAS TR AR iR R Termination options expected to be exercised

AFERZT Payable within five years 821 840

(e) HEMBRE MO ABEWBERUBIRE

MFEr34(c)

EHEEEFR AT 2021/22 FR

(e) The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 34(c) to
the financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2022

16.# &%) 16.LEASES (continued)

AEEESHAA

AEBERBEEHELTHERFEARK
ME(HRED)EAETFBIEAMEK
HEWEMFTI4R%15) AT EME
A o HERR —REFFEBEAZMR
e URBERMSKATHAER
© o FAN - ARBEHNEEAESWAR
75 #30,799,000 (=T = —F : B
38,145,0007T ) + FEEHF BB WK M 5
7 o

R-ZE-_—F=ZA=+—8 ' "&EBIRIE
AT ART M Al BUE S B THE 2 R K
HARM AT R E 0B ¢

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases certain parts of its owner-occupied properties
and investment properties (notes 14 and 15) consisting of
industrial properties in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC")
under operating lease arrangements. The terms of the leases
generally require the tenants to pay security deposits and provide
for periodic rent adjustments according to the then prevailing
market conditions. Rental income recognized by the Group during
the year was HK$30,799,000 (2021: HK$38,145,000), details of
which are included in note 7 to the financial statements.

At 31 March 2022, the undiscounted lease payments receivable
by the Group in future periods under non-cancellable operating
leases with its tenants are as follows:

CEMFor) (HK$'000) 2022 2021
—F R Within one year 38,741 33,015
—F U EBEMFEAA After one year but within two years 36,727 30,351
PRE FB=ZFUR After two years but within three years 6,311 28,103
=FAEBEFAA After three years but within four years 746 656
WE EERFAA After four years but within five years 746 716
BEAF After five years 684 1,372

83,955 94,213

EEEEARAT 2021/22 F5)
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17. 58 17.GOODWILL

156

(BB TT)

(HK$'000)

R-ZE-ZTFPWA—A8
—E-—F=A=+—8 -
T —FHOA—HK
—E-_#F#=H=+—H

At 1 April 2020,
31 March 2021,
1 April 2021 and
31 March 2022

BN Cost 94,923

25TRE Accumulated impairment (43,018)
BRI FE Net carrying amount 51,905
EmERE AR Impairment testing of goodwill

AEBEHEECHEDE TAEE N
HIEE B AR - ERBSEESN -
WHERENHETBREEHER - 25
MEAR 2 T ElSEIRIEFEREES
FTEEE  FTEFAMNReRERANE
FHREEAER - WFEREBEENE
ZRABEEHERERFIAEER - B
EENGIERMTEFUARBEFENE
R RERNES  -BEeRETEAMAN
WIREEBL14% (ZT=Z—F 1 17%) (K
B - MR B AR 2 e R -
hEfEsRensg&gE2% (25
—4F 1 3%)HH -

EHEEEFR AT 2021/22 FR

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated to
the Group’s subsidiaries in Shunde, the PRC, which is a cash-
generating unit (“CGU") engaged in the manufacture and sale of
plastic injection moulding machines and related products. The
recoverable amount of the subsidiaries has been determined
based on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections
based on financial budgets covering a five-year period. The key
assumptions for the value in use calculation include the expected
growth rate and discount rate. The financial budgets are prepared
reflecting current and prior years performance and development
expectations. The discount rate applied to the cash flow
projections is 14% (2021: 17%) which is before tax and reflects
specific risks relating to the relevant subsidiaries. The cash flows
beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated using a growth rate of 2%
(2021: 3%).
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18. B EE 18.INTANGIBLE ASSET

—E-__F=-H=+—H

31 March 2022

H i
(GE#FoT) (HK$°000) Know-how
RZZE-—FMA—HEIKAE - Cost at 1 April 2021, net of accumulated
BNk 25T 5 R E amortization and impairment -
IN=T Addition 2,038
RE T HERE Amortization provided during the year (203)
PE 3 Ff & Exchange realignment (1)
KRB —F=ZA=+—HZEERHE Net carrying amount at 31 March 2022 1,834
WZZE-_—F=A=+—H At 31 March 2022
PR AR Cost 2,038
ZEHEE MORE Accumulated amortization and impairment (204)
FREFE Net carrying amount 1,834
19. REE QR ZRE 19.INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES
(B#For) (HK$'000) 2022 2021
B EEFE Share of net assets 28,529 26,458

ERBERRZERBREAZEZIEE - &
i 2ER—BR=ZF+XAZM - 5
I RZEZZF=A=+—H - ENH
BNEIRFE10,984,0000( — &2~ —
& 19,252,000 ERRAENE S K
SRERA - R REN 2687 o

FIBARSE B2 R EE AN B &
R RRELE 2 BEEA -

EEEEBR AR 2021/22 Fik

The balances due to the associates are trade related, unsecured,
interest-free and are normally settled on a term of 30 days.
Accordingly, as at 31 March 2022, the amounts due to associates
of HK$10,984,000 (2021: HK$9,252,000) are included in the
trade and bills payables, as disclosed in note 26 to the financial

statements.

All of the Group’s associates are corporate entities registered in

the PRC and operating in Mainland China.
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—E-_—_F=ZA=+—H 31 March 2022
19. REERT 2 RE(#E) 19.INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
BN E 2 ST ERIIT ¢ Particulars of the associates are as follows:
A EE B R4
EREOH
Percentage of
BEWFEMELX  ownership interest FTEEK
28 Paid-up attributable Principal
Name registered capital to the Group activities
Bl = EERAR AR @ 1,520,000% ¢ 25 BUERHEENEEEHERD
Foshan Fu Xiong Foundry Co., Ltd. @ @ US$1,520,000 Manufacture and sale of
iron casting products
BLTIEER R EEERATD @ 800,000% 7T 25 e K VR
Foshan Shunde Fu Xiong Machinery US$800,000 Dormant
Company, Limited @
Wit Notes:
(1) ERARA=ZA=+—HAEREHE - (1) The above companies use 31 March as their reporting date to
DLFAEEER AR ZREBS - conform with their holding company’s reporting date.
(2) ‘X EIRBEMER - (2) The English company name is translated for identification purposes
only.
TEIRAEERERN IEE AL QT The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information
MR & 4a %8 - of the Group’s associates that are not individually material:
CEMFor) (HK$’000) 2022 2021
BN B 7l Share of the associates’ profit for the year 777 2,737
R AR EMmEm Share of the associates’ other comprehensive
e income 1,294 2,111
HEEAREEZE Share of the associates’ total comprehensive
Weas income 2,071 4,848
AE BRI E QT Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s
KEREELRE investments in the associates 28,529 26,458
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2022

20. 78 20.INVENTORIES
(BEMFor) (HK$°000) 2022 2021
R Raw materials 299,049 342,762
TEEE Work in progress 289,374 226,258
BURY SR Finished goods 473,477 159,594
1,061,900 728,614
21. BB S REBERXR 21.TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
(EMFor) (HK$'000) 2022 2021
FEWE SRR Trade receivables 976,207 888,626
A Impairment (98,368) (92,035)
FEWE SR F5E Trade receivables, net 877,839 796,591
NSRRI Bills receivable 467,564 512,952
EUE 5 & BIE AR KB AT Total trade and bills receivables 1,345,403 1,309,543
oD IEAIERENID Portion classified as non-current portion (99,985) (57,832)
mENER D Current portion 1,245,418 1,251,711

BEFZEZHRF—RA/RERS  |RITER
BRERKE - AREREENEF 2B
XENRGEBRTEFPEEE  FEH—
BB=TRE—B/N\TX - REERIE
IR IR BIE B R M BURTR - 3R
EREBEERE

EREMNBHRASENERE S RE
BERXBAENREFAMER - B E
AHEREERK - AEBWERLZEE
R A R B At hog = A 2 ¥ ©
W FE UK 5 BR 715 15 128,268,000T (= F
——%F : #5#136,339,0007T ) LA F 15 4 F
K6.2% (ZEZ—F 1 6.2%)7t EREE
H—HA+-_EAE=+EAA(ZZT=
—E - @AE=F+XEAR)I - Rtk
ZEWE 5 K& IR KA RS, o

EEEEBR AR 2021/22 Fik

Trading terms with customers are either cash on delivery, bank
bills or on credit. The Group grants credit to customers based on
their respective business strength and creditability, with credit
periods of 30 days to 180 days in general. The Group adopts
strict control policies over credit terms and receivables that serve
to minimize credit risk.

In view of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s
trade and bills receivables relate to a large number of diversified
customers, there is no significant concentration of credit risk. The
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
over these balances. Except for the trade receivables of
HK$128,268,000 (2021: HK$136,339,000) which are interest-
bearing at an average interest rate of 6.2% (2021: 6.2%) per
annum and with credit periods of 12 months to 36 months (2021:
12 months to 36 months) in general, the remaining trade and bills
receivables are non-interest-bearing.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2022

21. BWES REBERM(E) 21.TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

160

N-E-_—F=A=1+—H  A&EBEEEZ
10 E U = IR BR 318 198,162,000 ( =&
— —4 : ##16,280,0007T ) B EHE R B
PAEFHERBITALIES » %SES
RAENE S REBERA o

RBERRZ BRE SERZEZAHRR
B IRR AT E 2 RRAONT

As at 31 March 2022, the Group has pledged bills receivable of
HK$98,162,000 (2021: HK$16,280,000) to secure the issuance of
bank acceptance notes, included in the trade and bills payables,
to suppliers.

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss

allowance, is as follows:

(E#Fr) (HK$’000) 2022 2021
N+XA Within 90 days 297,820 401,401
At+—ZE2—BNTX 91 to 180 days 159,723 146,159
—BANtT—ZE=ANRTEX 181 to 365 days 232,306 138,209
HBil—F Over 1 year 187,990 110,822

877,839 796,591

FEWE H R BB EEZINT

The movements in the loss allowance for trade receivables are as

follows:

(E¥For) (HK$’000) 2022 2021
REH] At beginning of year 92,035 85,963
BRUWERMNBRAREEERN Impairment losses charged to the income

FERE(HEE7) statement, net (note 7) 3,551 2,895
T REU Ol By & BB Amounts written off as uncollectible (115) (1,836)
bE 5 A% Exchange realignment 2,897 5,013
RERXR At end of year 98,368 92,035

RZT-_ZF=A=+—H - BEEEE
M EBHRAREE BN\ TROEK

B SRFIBIFTEL ©

RZZE-_—F=A=1t—H - BERKE

IPEEE-3::): S-S N

EIEEBEBR AT 2021/22 FiK

due over 180 days.

mainly due to the credit exchange realignment.

As at 31 March 2022, the increase in the loss allowance was
mainly due to the increase in trade receivables which were past

As at 31 March 2021, the increase in the loss allowance was
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2022

21. BWE S REBRR(E) 21.TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

REREBHRRABBBEEETRED
i UEHERHREEEE - BEXTIER
AEBABLUERRANZ @R P 2 a5l H
BHIABERE - Lt ERREREINELS
R BEERENRREE RSN ERE
EFE RO ORI AR FER
BERAEER -

TREIERBERET E A AREE K
BEERNEERBRER

R-E-_—F=ZA=+—H

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using
a provision matrix to measure ECLs. The provision rates are based
on days past due for groupings of various customer segments
with similar loss patterns. The calculation reflects the probability-
weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting date
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on
the Group’s trade receivables using a provision matrix:

At 31 March 2022

an
Past due
At-ZE ikl
PRAATR —BATR -BATX
B8 Less than 91 to Over w@st
Current 90 days 180 days 180 days Total
BHEEBEX Expected credit loss rate 0% 5% 6% 66% 10%
REELHEEETT) Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) 625,634 148,765 72,051 129,757 976,207
BHEEER(FETT) Expected credit losses (HK$'000) - 7,651 4540 86,177 98,368
RZE——F=H=+—H At 31 March 2021
s
Past due
AT-E ikl
PRATR -BATR -BATX
B8 Less than 91 to Over @t
Current 90 days 180 days 180 days Total
EHEEEER Expected credit loss rate 1% 4% 9% 74% 10%
REEEEEETT) Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) 577,457 153,502 52,794 104,873 888,626
BHEEBR(EETT) Expected credit losses (HK$'000) 4,272 5,692 4,564 77,507 92,035

EEEEARAT 2021/22 F5)
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—E-_—_F=ZA=+—H 31 March 2022
21. EWE S REBRR(EZ) 21.TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)
RIpEHR 2 EREBRRF ZHE AT The maturity dates of the bills receivable as at the end of the
mr reporting period are analyzed as follows:
(BE®FT) (HK$’000) 2022 2021
N+XA Within 90 days 167,299 188,025
N+—=—aN+XK 91 to 180 days 210,324 227,063
—BN\t+—ZEZ=ZBA~ATHEKX 181 to 365 days 75,230 97,864
il —F Over 1 year 14,711 -
467,564 512,952
RZEZZ_F=A=1+—8 ' FKEEE As at 31 March 2022, none of the bills receivables is either past
R mS e RE( T —F : #) - | due or impaired (2021: Nil). The financial assets included in the
MBI SR EEMREY MITEE O above balances relate to receivables for which there was no recent
R EmEAR T EWNEE ST - TEHIZEEE history of default and past due amounts. The ECLs are estimated
R EREE BT ERBISEABRERL by applying a loss rate approach with reference to the historical
fhEt o BB R B EE TR D R E ATk loss record of the Group. The loss rate is adjusted to reflect the
IR R R A AR TER o AN 52 B R 1 current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions,
EBiEEE  THRAEEEBENZ-ZZE == as appropriate. No loss allowance was provided because
F=f=4+—HAN=E-_—F=F=1+— management estimated that the ECLs as at 31 March 2022 and
HREHEEBEAS/ - 31 March 2021 were minimal.

22.57% - EFHIEE HAEWIES 22.DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(EMFor) (HK$’000) 2022 2021
HEINSENE V] Deposits and prepayments 120,682 73,303
H b fE YT BR X Other receivables 38,820 39,485
& RUE Less: Impairment (18,239) (17,614)
FEULFR IE Tax recoverable 18 51

141,281 95,225
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22.75]% c ANREREMEWEER(Z)  22.DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

$T4 T T AR DA TR A MR B AL B 8
BEBOT :

(continued)

The movements in impairment allowance for deposits and
prepayments and other receivables are as follows:

(E#For) (HK$'000) 2022 2021
REH At beginning of year 17,614 16,564
B R ERET AR EEE Write-back of impairment losses credited to the

BECIW SRR (Ha27) income statement, net (note 7) (86) (225)
PE A #E Exchange realignment 711 1,275
TAER At end of year 18,239 17,614

—MimE  AEEFERERHAMAERR
BN+ ZEAEREESENEERE -
AR EMN T2 EEBHAEERRETRE -
B E 4th I Uk BR 08 85 18,239,000 0 ( =&
——4F : B%17,614,0007T) 5 0 &R
KR EEME KoL R iR R E
HIEZ ERERR - R T —F=A=+
—BE-_E-—F=A=+—HNFIKBE
BMBEHEEBBHTE AR

£ bl B fh R BR SRR BB B P B 1E
¥ 2 VE 8 B R (E H i FE AR R RS
# 18,239,000 (=T = —F: B
17,614,0007T) * ERBEHRI2EEER
18,474,000 L( ZFEZ—F : B
17,757,0007T) °

EEEEARAT 2021/22 F5)

Generally, the Group measures the loss allowance equal to
12-month ECLs of other receivables. The recoverability was
assessed with reference to the credit status of the debtors. Except
for other receivables of HK$18,239,000 (2021: HK$17,614,000),
the financial assets included in these balances relate to
receivables for which there was no recent history of default and
past due amounts. The ECLs of the remaining balances as at 31
March 2022 and 31 March 2021 were assessed to be minimal.

Included in the above impairment allowance for other receivables
is an allowance for individually impaired other receivables
of HK$18,239,000 (2021: HK$17,614,000) with a gross
carrying amount before provision of HK$18,474,000 (2021:
HK$17,757,000).
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23. EWmERERMR 23.FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES

AEEHEE T IR TERF - %EHE
"*Eﬁmﬂé{fﬂif\&ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ}%ﬁu? f
ETMEA(ZE=_—%: —@AET
/\1Iﬁ ) EPFRBMEHEHRTHER
KBECHEZ T -

The Group leases certain of its injection moulding machines to its
customers. These leases are classified as finance leases and have
remaining lease terms ranging from 1 month to 14 months (2021:
1 month to 16 months). The customers shall purchase the leased
injection moulding machines at the end of the lease terms of the
finance leases.

(EMFT) (HK$°000) 2022 2021
B E T EIRA Finance lease receivables 10,501 14,663
B Impairment (5,819) (7,499)
el R & ERPUFEE Finance lease receivables, net 4,682 7,164
o RIEREE D Portion classified as non-current portion (371) (632)
mEhE D Current portion 4,311 6,532

AESRZBERERENRRRDE
Hﬂﬂ%?ﬁlﬁﬁ@%ﬁ&ﬁﬁiﬁfﬁm T -

The total future minimum lease receivables under finance leases
and their present values as at the end of the reporting period are
analyzed as follows:

BOENRETENRE
BOEWRETE Present value of
Minimum lease receivables minimum lease receivables

(B%Fr) (HK$'000) 2022 2021 2022 2021
JEUEA | Amounts receivable:

—FR Within one year 4,476 6,773 4,311 6,532

FoF In the second year 375 646 371 632
ROEWEEHETBE Total minimum finance lease receivables 4,851 7419 4,682 7,164
REREE U Unearned finance income (169) (255)
R ERE IR FRE Total net finance lease receivables 4,682 7,164
BrPERRBEE Portion classified as current assets (4,311) (6,532)
ERBLH Non-current portion 371 632

BE_Z-_—_F=ZA=+—HIEFEARAL
FERAWAEER(ZE_—F + 8) -

164 EHELEBRAR 2021/22 Fif

No contingent income was recognized during the year ended 31
March 2022 (2021: Nil).
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2022

23. EW R EHERAR(E) 23.FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (continued)

U REHERFEBRREZSHOT

The movements in the loss allowance for finance lease receivables
are as follows:

(BT T) (HK$'000) 2022 2021
REY At beginning of year 7,499 3,103
Bl R INBR AR E R R, Impairment losses charged/

(T AR BB EE#E ) (write-back of impairment losses credited)

B FRE (M 5E7) to the income statement, net (note 7) (2,023) 4,287
PE A2 Exchange realignment 343 109
TAER At end of year 5,819 7,499

REREEHRABBEBEEETRED
i U EREREEER - BEXTIER
AEBABLUERRANZ @R 2 a4 5 H
BHIABERE - At ERREREINELS
R - BEERENRREE RSN ERE
EEE B RIOR BRI TR
BERAEER -

TREIERBERE F AR EE K
MEEERANEERRER -

KRB —_F=A=+—H

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using
a provision matrix to measure ECLs. The provision rates are based
on days past due for groupings of various customer segments
with similar loss patterns. The calculation reflects the probability-
weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting date
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on
the Group’s finance lease receivables using a provision matrix:

At 31 March 2022

el
Past due

n-Z BA

PRATER -BAMFR -BAER
BE  Less than 91 to Over st
Current 90 days 180 days 180 days Total
HHEEEEX Expected credit loss rate 0% 26% 69% 100% 55%
EREREEYTT) Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) 3,725 1,152 286 5,338 10,501
BHEEBR(EETFT) Expected credit losses (HK$'000) - 305 196 5,318 5,819

EEEEARAT 2021/22 F5)
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—E-_—_F=ZA=+—H 31 March 2022
23. B ERERA(E) 23.FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (continued)
RZE-_—F=A=+—H At 31 March 2021
paal:t
Past due
-2 ikl
PRATE -BNHR -BAER
BI#  Less than 91 to Over @t
Current 90 days 180 days 180 days Total
BHEEBEX Expected credit loss rate 0% 4% 17% 9% 51%
REEEREETT) Gross carrying amount (HK$000) 4711 1,152 841 7959 14,663
RHEEBREETT) Fxpected credit losses (HK$000) - 41 141 7317 7,499
24 EARITER 24.PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS
(BE®FT) (HK$’000) 2022 2021
IIIRITIER » IERIE D Pledged bank deposits, non-current portion 2,851 -
IIIRITIER » mEED Pledged bank deposits, current portion 24,400 51,752
27,251 51,752
HEEBREETWEBRARFE ZEMIRITT Balances included pledged bank deposits of certain subsidiaries,
X Hep#3,082,0000(Z T = —%F ¢ including HK$3,082,000 (2021: HK$11,337,000) for securing
¥ 11,337,0007T ) A EVE R 72 A B K e bank loans granted by banks in Mainland China to customers
RITHE TEFPIEBEASEERMIRITE to purchase the Group’s products, and HK$24,169,000 (2021:
o B #24169,000L( —FE - —4F ¢ HK$40,415,000) for securing the issuance of bank acceptance
FEH540,415,0007T) ATEERE B4 T notes which are included in the trade and bills payables, to
ERERRITRALIESR - ZEEZZAREN suppliers.
B REBEFA °
EIRIRITE R A 3 B a8k 2 The pledged bank deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks
BEEWRIT © with no recent history of default.
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25. RERMBITHEF 25.CASH AND BANK BALANCES

CEMFor) (HK$’000) 2022 2021
Re MRITHERF Cash and bank balances 583,503 588,993
AT 3R BB B R A B Bank deposits with original maturity of

TR=MEAZRITHFER less than three months when acquired 88,408 557,195
IR e RIRTTHETT Total cash and bank balances 671,911 1,146,188

RZEZZF=-A=+—8H &x%E
UARBHEZRRRITEF AN
% 269,492000 (= F = —F : B
846,526,0007T) - AR THEERRLIKRA
EMEEE - AR A B K f NG E 12 (&
REE - SERNEEERE - ANEETF
FREELEINEER 2 RITEARE R
BRAEEMER -

RITEFRARTTE B FFOF E A R BRERA)
B -BReMRTHEFEEEHEIEE
110,877,0007T ° &% /& M7 KA L —F
EMFIENFY o RFIREZEBER
WESSHRH - ZERERFEZBH
TIENERREARE - RFAKEREH
TR MELRAELRE=@AA(ZT=—
FAERE—EA)AENERFR - X
A% B8 EBERERMIRAE - RTT
EEERNLEIRROREZBEER
7 °

EEEEARAT 2021/22 F5)

As at 31 March 2022, the cash and bank balances of the Group
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to approximately
HK$269,492,000 (2021: HK$846,526,000). RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies. However, under the Mainland
China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations,
the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies
through banks authorized to conduct foreign exchange business.

The cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Included in the cash and bank balances are
demand deposits of HK$110,877,000. The demand deposits
are made for varying periods of between 1 year and 2 years.
There is no penalty for or restriction on early withdrawal of the
demand deposits. The demand deposits are held for the purpose
of meeting short-term cash commitments. The time deposits
are made for varying periods of between 7 days and 3 months
(2021: 7 days and 1 month) depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective
time deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.
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—E-__F=HA=+—H 31 March 2022

26. ENEZREBERR 26.TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES
RIMERRCENE S REBIBRERIRESR The ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the end
BEIRTE 2R DT T ¢ of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:
(EETFor) (HK$'000) 2022 2021
N+XA Within 90 days 384,486 464,360
Nt+—=—FN+XK 91 to 180 days 225,315 190,516
—BANAT—E=AATEX 181 to 365 days 71,323 95,287
BiE—F Over 1 year 14,570 12,633

695,694 762,796

ERESREBERERLTHRER—K= The trade and bills payables are non-interest-bearing and are
EXREARNEE - FEH%%&?%?J?EEWES normally settled on terms of 3 to 6 months. Included in the trade
R B R E AT B 42 0 B R TEA H610,984,000 and bills payables are trade payables of HK$10,984,000 (2021:
T(ZEZ—F B %9,252,00077:) =t HK$9,252,000) due to associates which are repayable within 30
NRIERE=TRAZA - days.

27 HiES IR » BFrEEBREHNEMRE  27.0THER PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND CONTRACT

LIABILITIES
(E#For) (HK$'000) Kzt Notes 2022 2021
aHEaE Contract liabilities (a) 114,040 141,359
HaEMIRZ N EETAE  Other payables and accruals (b) 246,410 251,520

HiEERE - JEETB(E  Total other payables, accruals

REHE BB and contract liabilities 360,450 392,879
HoNEE Portion classified as non-current
FETRENEL portion (11,674) (9,952)
TENER Current portion 348,776 382,927
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27. HEN RN - BRtRERENEE 27.

(&

=

Hist

() AHEBEBEERXINERMERRK - ®
—E-TENA-—BHNANEEREE
48,864,0007T - @B BER =T =__FR
W ZEZ—F  BINETZHRRFLRH
HEERMRAEP WA TFERFUR D (=
TZ—F ) e

(b) BARMEMERRAES A EOSRAE
R NGEIIN

HipENERR R EEEE T RIERTA
ITHERABZERBRBBZAERE
©##12,330,000c( =T = —4F : B
11,832,0007T) » #BEHRARAR ZF
—NF+—AZTNBZRAER -

OTHER PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES (continued)

Notes:

(a) Contract liabilities include advances received to deliver goods. The
contract liabilities as at 1 April 2020 amounted to HK$48,864,000.
The decrease (2021: increase) in contract liabilities in 2022 was
mainly due to the decrease (2021: increase) in advances received
from customers in relation to the sale of goods at the end of the year.

(b) The financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals are
non-interest-bearing.

Included in the other payables and accruals is earnest money of
HK$12,330,000 (2021: HK$11,832,000) in relation to a framework
agreement for a possible land development plan as detailed in the
Company’s announcement dated 28 November 2018.

28.5TEERITEXK 28.INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS
ERAIE
Effective
interest rate EJ)
(B¥FT) (HK$'000) (%) Maturity 2022 2021
RITEREEE Bank loans repayable 11 2022
—FR - EEH within one year, unsecured (2021: 1.1)  (2021: 2021) 21,568 68,759

o

AEE 2 \BERRITERIAFEB A K5
g

EEEEBR AR 2021/22 Fik

The Group’s unsecured bank loans are at floating rates.
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29. EFEAGE 29.DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN

170

AEEEREZMBARRIES - 12
HR —_ZEZRFLA— ASTRAKEHD
EpcESEZHBARER &
DREE - REEE - BEBEESFIER
R EMFHERNEN - REFEMTIRR
BEHET - %ZR45H -BEERTT
EXNTRBRERFRE - R EHE
P& ANEA®FHAFHAE -

EfSIERAKEE ARZRKRERS M}
Ao RENERERZBEEE WNUER
BezaEF A —HERAIEESET
AZTRERE - ZEERETEARSE - &
AEENEEEBNIH - ZTECRRMET
T IR E KRS -

ZAEZFERRER RRESZHZANSED
R - BATSRBRREERBRHY
@,

R EEERTRENETRER
HiGE  DHAEREZERUZEER
BEMENEETEERMBRMBRARR
TR F=R=+—H#TT - TIATER
BAEHSBHEMGEETE -

RIERRZ TERERRWT ¢

The Group’s subsidiaries in Taiwan operate the Old Scheme,
covering substantially all of its employees who were recruited
by the Taiwanese subsidiaries before the implementation of
the Labour Act on 1 July 2005. Under the Old Scheme, the
employees are entitled to retirement benefits annually based
on an accumulated base point, which is determined by their
years of service, with a maximum of 45 points multiplied by the
average monthly salary for the final six months of employment on
attainment of a retirement age ranging from 55 to 65.

The Old Scheme requires the Group to make monthly
contributions to the retirement fund. The fund is administered by
the Committee and is deposited under the Committee’s name with
a government approved financial institution, which acts as the
trustee. The assets held by the trustee are separated from those
of the Group. The Committee is responsible for the determination
of the investment strategy of the scheme.

The scheme is exposed to interest rate risk, the risk of changes in
the life expectancy for pensioners, equity market risk and credit
risk.

The most recent actuarial valuations of the plan assets and the
present value of the defined benefit obligations were carried out
on 31 March 2022 by Greatfine Wealth Management Consulting
Inc., a qualified actuary recognized by the Actuarial Institute in
Taiwan, using the projected unit credit actuarial valuation method.

The principal actuarial assumptions used as at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

2022 2021
R = Discount rate 0.9% 0.4%
TEHEHSERE Expected rate of salary increase 1.0% 1.0%

EIEEBEBR AT 2021/22 FiK
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—E-__F=HA=+—H 31 March 2022
29. TR &I (E) 29.DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN (continued)
BEREBRTTEEENTERB The actuarial valuation showed that the market value of plan
¥ 13,526,000 L( — & = —F: B assets was HK$13,526,000 (2021: HK$21,514,000) and that the
21514,0007T)  BEEEEMBEEE actuarial value of these assets represented 109% (2021: 92%) of
HAFEBME TFHENEAR109% (= the benefits that had accrued to qualifying employees. The surplus
T-—1F :92%) - HerAB1,061,000 of HK$1,061,000 is expected to be cleared over the remaining
TCA T ER A RIGRARFS HR+ — G BBk - service period of 11 years.
TRAEREHRMEANENBRNES A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions as at
BRI DT the end of the reporting period is shown below:
2022
EERENER EERNER
#i/(HP) #i/(B)
Increase/ Increase/
HCEEM  (decrease) of WEHD  (decrease) of
Increase defined Decrease defined
in rate benefit in rate benefit
(B¥Fr) (HK$'000) % obligations % obligations
FEx Discount rate 05 (305) (0.5) 508
ARESER Future salary increase 0.5 504 (0.5) (306)
2021
EERENER EERNER
#m/(BP) #i,/(B)
Increase/ Increase/
FCEEM  (decrease) of WEHD  (decrease) of
Increase defined Decrease defined
in rate benefit in rate benefit
(B¥Fr) (HK$'000) % obligations % obligations
bR Discount rate 0.5 (529) (0.5) 1,396
FRESEE Future salary increase 0.5 1,381 (0.5) (528)
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T —F=A=+—H 31 March 2022

29. EBBRIGHEI(#) 29.DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN (continued)
iR ST - DIREERBER RS The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on a
HARREESBEHRYTERENETH method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligations
FENHE - SRS T HBBEEARR as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring
2F  ARAMEHMBRISESTIEmE at the end of the reporting period. The sensitivity analysis is
TE o MDA REW MR ERRAE based on a change in a significant assumption, keeping all
F2ERES - AABKRTAAREMNTR other assumptions constant. The sensitivity analysis may not
Hitn & MIREE) - be representative of an actual change in the defined benefit

obligations as it is unlikely that changes in assumptions would
occur in isolation of one another.

ERAREZRPERONEHEAEER The total expenses/(income) recognized in the consolidated
CONE: LN income statement in respect of the scheme are as follows:
(EMFor) (HK$’000) 2022 2021
g BIRIS A AR Current service cost 113 201
B AR Interest cost 8 21
OBz Was Gain on curtailment - (1,032)
FEMNER, (WA) Net benefit expenses/(income) 121 (810)
TREENEELTEEEN A FECEE) The movements in the defined benefit obligations and the fair
wmR value of plan assets are as follows:
022
REEZNBHERAR FARMAERENET BER/ (57
Pension cost charged to Remeasurement losses/(gains) in
the income statement ather comprehensive income
ADgit i
Rgl  RaRt
A I FARH
h&% FEED  RRAE 2R
i My Actuarial  Actuaril N i
t§-f 8% HaER Sublotal changes  changes Subtotal cEICE
MA-R Ak 7 included arising fom  arising from included ZR=1-8
M Curent Net HEzBE  inthe  BHEA changesin changesin  HEEE note  E3ER i Mt
Thpil  senice  inteest  Gainon  income  Benefit demographic  financial  Ewperience comprehensive Contrbutin  KIEER  Exchange 31 March
(5F7)  (HSOOO) 2021 cot  expense curtailment  statement paid ~ assumptions  assumptions  adjustments income by employer Derecognition  realignment 2022

TERH  Defined beneft

&ft Obligations 23306 113 10 - A8 (1149 7 (47 3 £9 - - % 12463
HEHEE  Faivaeof plan
0TE a55els (21514) - ) - 9 144 - - (1.430) (14300 (167) - (28) (13526

EH&E/  Beneft ity
(88 e 17 13 8 - 11 - m W 0% e - B (10600
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29. EREBRITEI (&)

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2022

29.DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN (continued)

2021

HEERIR/ () bRAsA

Pension cost chargedlcredited) to

TARMRARENER:EER/ (41

Remeasurement losses/(gains) in

the income statement

ather comprehensive income

AR BE
Bagh  EREL
A il HARM
hE% L E ) FANE
# gt Actuarial — Actuaril it i
otk 3 E8  HEER Subtotl changes  changes Subtotal 8-k
BE-B A 58 included arsing from arising from included ZA=t-
M Curent Net Bdz0E  inthe  BHEH  chamgsin  changesin  SREE  nohe  FifE Efng it
Thpil  senice st Gainon  income  Benefit demographic  financial  Ewperience comprehensive Contrbution  KI®E  Exchange 31 March
(E¥F7)  (HKSOOO) 2020 cost  empense  curailment  statement paid - assumptions ~ assumptions  adjustments income by employer Derecognition  realignment 01
TEE]  Defned beneft
Bft Wblgatons R4 A1 0 (103 (o7l)  (10978) 8 % 193 3 - 00 e 836
HEHAE  Fairvlieof plen
DYE sl (29,567) - (139) (13 1098 - - (354) () (1819 a7 (15 210
&k Beneft bty 391 0 a0 60 - 7 % (161) @ (180 36 B 1

AEEGFEHEERE LA TEETESEN
T~

The major categories of the fair value of the total plan assets of
the Group are as follows:

2022 2021
HeRESZEY Cash and cash equivalents 19% 14%
AT A Equity instruments 70% 75%
B TE Debt instruments 11% 11%
100% 100%

AEBETEHAN T EFBRFEANE ERREA
FTEIELHFEHE 1,498,000 (ZF = —
& ¢ #%1,419,0007T) °

RIFEHR - TRENETZFHEER
MAtF(ZZE=_—F: \F)-

EEEEBR AR 2021/22 Fik

The Group expects to make a contribution of HK$1,498,000 (2021:
HK$1,419,000) to the defined benefit scheme during the next
financial year.

The average duration of the defined benefit obligations at the end
of the reporting period is 7 years (2021: 8 years).
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

31 March 2022

30 EERIE 30.DEFERRED TAX
REAN - BEEHEEBEREEZSNT : The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the
year are as follows:
EEHEas Deferred tax liabilities
BERER
HREN
TERHEA
Provisions and
depreciation
allowance in
MESR excess of nEH
Revaluation of related  Withholding @t
(BEF) (HK$'000) properties  depreciation tax Total
R-E-ZENA-A At 1 April 2020 44 937 6,938 28,936 80,811
AEERNERNRZ Deferred tax charged to the income statement
ERBEFE (M) during the year, net (note 11) - 2,045 8421 10,466
NG EREp Withholding tax on repatriation of
new earnings from subsidiaries - - (70) (70)
I % Exchange realignment 3,641 597 1,854 6,092
WZE-Z—F#=ZA=+-HK  At31 March 2021 and
“Z--FMA—H 1 April 2021 48,578 9,580 39,141 97,299
KEERRERNG/ Deferred tax charged/(credited) to
(FIA) ZERHE the income statement
FB(ME1) during the year, net (note 11) 3,452 1,997 (13,293) (7,844)
WELARRERRMEL Withholding tax on repatriation of
e eamings from subsidiaries - - (14,834) (14,834)
fEH AR Exchange realignment 2,045 476 762 3,283
W-ZE-—%#=A=+—-H2 Net deferred tax liabilities recognized in the
RREGEBBARE consolidated statement of financial position
BRHEAEFE at 31 March 2022 54,075 12,053 11,776 77,904

174 EELBEBRAR 2021/22 F3f
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2022

30 EER IR (E)

30.DEFERRED TAX (continued)

EEHEEE Deferred tax assets
BN
BB BEE Deferred @t
(E%TFr) (HK$'000) Provisions Tax losses revenue Total
NZZ-TENA—H At 1 April 2020 30,924 3,205 132 34,261
KEERBERN Deferred tax credited/(charged) to the
(088 ZERHIE income statement during the year,
FE(WE1) net (note 11) 4,532 (3,465) (31) 1,036
BN R Exchange realignment 2,505 260 11 2776
WZE-—F=ZA=+—-HK  At31 March 2021 and
“Z--FMA—H 1 April 2021 37,961 112 38,073
REFRREEA Deferred tax credited to the
ZIEERE income statement during the year,
FE(ME1) net (note 11) 3,750 - 122 3,872
5 Exchange realignment 1,598 5 1,603
RZEZZF=A=1+—-Hz Net deferred tax assets recognized in
RREGEHBARE the consolidated statement of
EERERE A financial position at 31 March 2022 43,309 239 43,548

EHEBEAR AR 2021/22 F3R
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30 EEBIE(Z) 30.DEFERRED TAX (continued)

176

RAEBMBEBRERES - #H
KBE K& &5 B &S 305,297,000 7T
— T~ —fF: E%283,867,0007T)
17,787,000 ( ZFE = —F : A%
28,177,0007T ) & /& #30,116,00070( =
T~ — 4 B #33543,0007T) 0 A
HEBBZEBEBZ AR AR ERE S
Fl o HNZEARICIEHE —BER -
A fE T8 5T HE SR B A A AT R i AR A] R
MBREEE  WERZSEBERRAELT
MIEEE - EAERBIEERFR - 21
17,787,000 (= = —F B
28,177,0007T) & ##30,116,000t( =%
——4F 1 733,543,000 ) W EE D B
BREBEELEERAFRTFREE - i
Eian AR A RS -

BB EEMSRE - NP KERT
RISNE R EMINHIREE B IR SRR
10% &M - B =T \F—-—HA—HEE
BWEAR—_ZEELF+_A=+—H%
BREN A o fieHp B B HNE 4% & PR AE A
ERBETB BB - B EARER
MM E - REENFANERANRER
5%310% - REA - BRREB2ET
BB A R N A BB R BT R E B
HAEE R E ST R IEEIRTR A 28k
ZEBIEMS - FTAHBHEBR10% /=
5% °

EIEEBEBR AT 2021/22 FiK

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong, Mainland China
and Taiwan of HK$305,297,000 (2021: HK$283,867,000),
HK$17,787,000 (2021: HK$28,177,000) and HK$30,116,000
(2021: HK$33,543,000), respectively, that are available for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in which
the losses arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognized
in respect of these losses as they have arisen in those companies
that have been loss-making for some time and it is not considered
probable that taxable profits will be available against which the
tax losses can be utilized in the foreseeable future. Included in
unrecognized tax losses are losses of HK$17,787,000 (2021:
HK$28,177,000) and HK$30,116,000 (2021: HK$33,543,000)
that will expire within five years and ten years, respectively, from
the date the losses arose. Other losses can be carried forward
indefinitely.

Pursuant to the New Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the
foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland China.
The requirement was effective from 1 January 2008 and applies
to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax
rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between the PRC
and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group, the
applicable rate during the year was 5% or 10%. During the year,
the withholding tax rate reduced from 10% to 5% as certain
subsidiaries in Hong Kong meets the eligibility criteria under
the Arrangement between the Mainland of China and Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region for the Avoidance of Double
Taxation and the Prevention of Fiscal Evasion with Respect to
Taxes on Income.
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30. RAERIE (&) 30.DEFERRED TAX (continued)

BESN - IRIR A EMEBIRS - RFEANHE
REREIRZBEHREW21% (ZF =
—H 1 21%)MBH o Bt - AEE A
7R B B B L B % S B B 4 B R AR ek R
R3S - RFA - ARR
BB MB AR - R ML
ZEEEBRARNEHATR AR KGR
HeltRHESERENFRELPIEN
BERNLGHARGEBEETE ZEMR
ffF - FTABLE BR BB 2 B X A
21%FZE10% °

RZE__F=F=+—H  KEFAE
T A R B K BE B 2 B B B 2 B R kR BB
R F R E MBS ERETERIE - &
BERZEEANTREEZREELNE
#1,626,281,000L( =T = —F : B
1,334,481,0007T) - EERE - ZEMB
RAPKAIBER A R ARRDERZZEN
F—A—RERIZEF -

RZE-_—F=A=+—8  TEH#A
MEMEEZREERIOKBARRE
EENEREEEREMERNELEIE
BEAHABEES1,771,0000(ZF = —
4 B#51,563,0007T) °

AR A ERRIKE 2 B EER P
Mg -

EEEEARAT 2021/22 F5)

In addition, pursuant to Taiwan withholding tax regulations, a
21% (2021: 21%) withholding tax is levied on dividends declared
to non-resident shareholders. Therefore, the Group is liable for
withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries
established in Taiwan in respect of earnings generated. During the
year, the withholding tax rate on dividends distributed reduced
from 21% to 10% as the immediate holding company, which is
incorporated in the Netherlands, of the subsidiary established
in Taiwan meets the eligibility criteria under the Agreement
between the Taipei representative office in the Netherlands and
the Netherlands trade and investment office in Taipei for the
Avoidance of Double Taxation and the Prevention of Fiscal Evasion
with Respect to Taxes on Income.

As at 31 March 2022, no deferred tax has been recognized
for withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings of certain of the Group’s subsidiaries established in
Mainland China, of which the aggregate amount of temporary
differences has not been recognized totalled approximately
HK$1,626,281,000 (2021: HK$1,334,481,000). In the opinion
of the directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries will
distribute their earnings accrued after 1 January 2008 in the
foreseeable future.

As at 31 March 2022, the aggregate amount of temporary
differences associated with the investments in subsidiaries
established in Taiwan for which deferred tax liabilities arising from
withholding tax have not been recognized totalled approximately
HK$51,771,000 (2021: HK$51,563,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment
of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.
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31. & 31.SHARE CAPITAL
(BEMFor) (HK$°000) 2022 2021
VERE Authorized:
1,000,000,0000% & @ A% 1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of
AR ¥0.107T HK$0.10 each 100,000 100,000
EETREEHE Issued and fully paid:
630,531,6000% 630,531,600
—ZE——14 :630,531,600%) (2021: 630,531,600)
TR EAERE0.100T ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 63,053 63,053
32. B 32.SHARE OPTIONS

ARBEHEAERRRARAE T~
FAA-TMA(TRABEEDETZHRE
RS L 2 AR &I ([ B IrEsT
gl -

RIBBEETE - ARRESAINBEE
EAI2E AR NBIREARB AR BB
MR B - AR E AT G R
IR - RIFREAEST B 2 R A
T TFHAEARBE SRR RAE L&
RZHER -

B B 2 F BT

(a) BH

HAEEMZ2EANKEBREL S
AR BB T A SRRk Ee ) -

178 EIELEBRAR] 2021/22 Fif

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) approved by the shareholders at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 24 September 2014 (the
“Adoption Date”).

Under the Share Option Scheme, the directors of the Company
may, at their discretion, invite any participants to take up share
options to subscribe for fully paid ordinary shares in the Company
subject to the terms and conditions stipulated therein. Share
options under the Share Option Scheme do not confer rights on
the holders to dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

The particulars of the Share Option Scheme are as follows:

(a) Purpose

As rewards or incentives for the contribution or potential
contribution to the Group from the eligible participants.
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—E-_—_F=ZA=+—H 31 March 2022
32.[BRHEE) 32.SHARE OPTIONS (continued)
(b) BEA (b) Participants
(i) ANEBIAIRK S ST AE R R (i) (a) any director (whether executive or non-executive,
(WRIEERETE 2 &) AT including any independent non-executive director)
REAR RS 2 AR T2 and employee (whether full time or part time) of, or

(a) ERER(THINTHIEH
17 BREEFMBIINTE
F)hEE(TwmEZBER

B ok
(b) EREFZIEMA ¢ 3L (b) any individual for the time being seconded to work
for,
any member of the Group or any controlling shareholder (as
defined under the Share Option Scheme) or any company
controlled by a controlling shareholder; or
(i) AEEEM S SRR IR (i) any holder of any securities issued by any member of
SRR AR AR BRI I 2 (AT R R BT the Group or any controlling shareholder or any company
BII2AABEZEBA X controlled by a controlling shareholder; or
(i) ANE BT B ST A A% R (iii) (a) any business or joint venture partner, franchisee,
FHRERBRREG AT contractor or distributor of,

(a) EAIEBRAIERH - 5t
RERTEAN  ABEARS

(b) fEfAT A Sk {E S 1R fHhAf 5T - (b) any person or entity that provides research,
BRI EMBMN S E I EM development or other technological support or any
FhER -~ BER - HEEok H b advisory, consultancy, professional or other services
X EERE R in respect of business operations to,

(c) Emek R < (E I ER - (c) any supplier of goods or services to, or
57

(d) BERERIEZAEREBES o (d) any customer of goods or services of,

any member of the Group or any controlling
shareholder or a company controlled by a controlling
shareholder.
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32.FBHEE)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

)

BRAE)

(i) (#&)

SBRERTEIME 2EABRER—
I3 B R B A R RI 2 AP
22l Z (Efa] A &)

AFRITEBEREE LR

RARFHAEE - &% %1#63,053,160
fREBBR(ASENARRBEBITRA
10%) 7] T84T o

BUSRATERES LR

BRAR IR BB AT 8l 2 R B TR

s ERSEAEEFA T —EAR
(BERTBREE AL REBRE

AR R AR BEM A B AR 81
BEzBERE(BREEEE  21TER
W R AT 2 BB AR ) T PAAT (£ s P 3%

ThigETZERK ERTEHBAR
NAIEEITEBERAL% ©
REEREIBZER 2R

MR EBRE 2 ARG FR - 3R
RAEERRE NPT E R BRE S
B o

BREBTEALEAFAEZREHRR
(mH)

R HBRER - ARRIEZRBIE
TR EEI TR N ERE 2 &8 H
[R(A) -

EIEEBEBR AT 2021/22 FiK

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2022

32.SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

)

Participants (continued)

(i) (continued)

For the purposes of the Share Option Scheme, the participants
shall include any company controlled by one or more persons
belonging to any of the above classes of participants.

Maximum number of ordinary shares available for issue

A total of 63,053,160 ordinary shares are available for issue,
which represent 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of this annual report.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The maximum number of ordinary shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of share options granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company to any participant (including cancelled,
exercised and outstanding share options), in any 12-month
period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the
ordinary shares in issue unless otherwise approved in

accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme.

Period within which the ordinary shares must be taken up
under a share option

Within ten years from the date of grant of the share option or
such shorter period as the board of directors of the Company
determines at the time of grant.

Minimum period, if any, for which a share option must be
held before it can be exercised

At the time of granting a share option, the board of directors
of the Company will determine the minimum period(s), if
any, for which a share option must be held before it can be
exercised.
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—E-_—_F=ZA=+—H 31 March 2022
32.BRBE(E) 32.SHARE OPTIONS (continued)
(g) BEMEBREANESERMARZHR (g) Amount payable upon acceptance of a share option and the

period within which the payment must be made

FREBREZO, AR(B1EZE) An offer for the grant of a share option must be accepted
Wt+RARANBEZBBEZELY - N & within forty-five days inclusive of the day on which the offer
XEMEREZAR - BREKL00 was made. The amount payable on acceptance of the offer for
JT ° an option is HK$1.00.

(h) EEERETHEEZEE (h) Basis of determining the exercise price of a share option
TR ERERA TN 2 BRRMTT The exercise price per share payable on the exercise of a
FEHRARABESREE @ WITE share option shall be determined by the board of directors of
BAEEZLATIERSE the Company and shall be no less than the highest of:

() REEBEREZZHEBH(MLE (i) the closing price of the ordinary shares of the Company
BEER)ZARR L BRI S as stated in the daily quotation sheet issued by the Stock
B - Mz E Ty E AR B AT T Exchange on the date of offer of grant, which must be a
B HREK business day;

(i) REZRNERE 2 ZHHH8R (i) the average of the closing prices of the ordinary shares
RAEZEERAZARAIEBR Y of the Company as stated in the daily quotation sheets
W B - ez U B Th & B issued by the Stock Exchange for the five business days
RETPEZA®REK & immediately preceding the date of offer of grant; and

(i) ARARE B2 EE o (i) the nominal value of an ordinary share of the Company.

(i) BRESEZEMH (i) Life of the Share Option Scheme
BRERTE 2 B F RN A B The Share Option Scheme has a life of ten years commencing
ARBTFEFERR T MFNAAZT on the Adoption Date and will expire on 23 September 2024.
=HEW °

FR - ARRIER=ZE-__F—A=+ During the year, the Company has granted a total of 6,130,000

—H(ZZEZ=ZF8EHHDREER share options on 21 January 2022 (the “2022 Grant Date”) to

HEET B2 AR T4 $£6,130,0008 3% participants under the Share Option Scheme, amongst which

# - HE & 2500,000 8 KER T AR T 2,500,000 share options were granted to executive directors (one

PTEE(HP—UFABTERER) & of whom is also a substantial shareholder) of the Company and

3,630,000 IR ER TAEEEEES - 3,630,000 share options were granted to selected employees of

the Group.
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31 March 2022

32./8REE) 32.SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

TEBRERATIN 2SRRGB ITEER
BABEE249TC c ARRIEBBENEE T
T oFEREASA(AI - E-_—F—fF =
+R)ZWMEAEBE2.447T -

HE-_Z--—F=ZA=+—HItFRN ' K
REIERZZEZTF+—HA=-++tB(=
EoREREAH D BEERERETERZ
B AR A 11,520,000 i - Hp
3,400,000 R T AR B ITES (A
PRI mEZERR) - %8,120,0008 %
ERTAEEEERE

FEBRMEAT XN 2SRRGB TEE
BB 207 - AATEBRNEE =T
—EEEHABN(I 2 —2E+—
—+RE) 2B BB 225

RZBE-_—_F=A=+—H  ARAHE
—E - —F  E)ATERIBERETE
BRERBREmRITEER -

FA - RBBERETS - AT HRBRE M
RITHE -

The exercise price per share payable on the exercise of a share
option is HK$2.49. The closing price of the ordinary shares of the
Company immediately before the 2022 Grant Date (i.e. as of 20
January 2022) is HK$2.44.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company has granted
a total of 11,520,000 share options on 27 November 2020
(the “2020 Grant Date”) to participants under the Share Option
Scheme, amongst which 3,400,000 share options were granted to
executive directors (one of whom is also a substantial shareholder)
of the Company and 8,120,000 share options were granted to
selected employees of the Group.

The exercise price per share payable on the exercise of a share
option is HK$2.20. The closing price of the ordinary shares of the
Company immediately before the 2020 Grant Date (i.e. as of 26
November 2020) is HK$2.22.

As at 31 March 2022, no ordinary shares (2021: Nil) were issued
by the Company as a result of the exercise of share options
granted under the Share Option Scheme.

The following share options were outstanding under the Share
Option Scheme during the year:

2022 2021

MEFATRE MEFHTEE

(BREAREE) (BREFREE)

Weighted average Weighted average
exercise price BREHE exercise price BREHE
(HK$ per Number of (HK$ per Number of
ordinary share) share options ordinary share) share options
RER) At beginning of year 2.20 10,890,000 - -
RERRH Granted during the year 2.49 6,130,000 2.20 11,520,000
REREH Lapsed during the year 2.33 (800,000 2.20 (630,000)
RER At end of year 2.30 16,220,000 2.20 10,890,000

EIEEBEBR AT 2021/22 FiK
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—E-—F=A=+—H 31 March 2022
32.[BRE(E) 32.SHARE OPTIONS (continued)
REEER - MARITE 2 BARETTE The exercise periods and exercise prices of the share options
RATEEWT - outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
R-B-_—F=H=+—H
At 31 March 2022
TEE"
(7% R BIE)
Exercise price* BREZE
(HK$ per Number of
1T{EER Exercise period ordinary share) share options
—E-—F+—A=+tHZE 27 November 2022 to
—E=FF+—A=Z+AH 26 November 2030 2.20 2,930,000
—E-=F+—A=++EHZE 27 November 2023 to
—E=FF+—HA=+A 26 November 2030 2.20 885,000
“ZE-FE+—A-F++EHZE 27 November 2024 to
:’?’_?iJF A=+7<H 26 November 2030 2.20 2,930,000
ZEZRAF+—AZ=ZF++EHZ 27 November 2025 to
—E=FF+—HA=+H 26 November 2030 2.20 885,000
_’?’_/\EWL*H ++HZE 27 November 2026 to
Z=FF+—A=+7H 26 November 2030 2.20 1,640,000
=% _ti‘f’ AZ++tHBZ= 27 November 2027 to
—E=FF+—H=+"H 26 November 2030 2.20 1,180,000
7?7m$ A-+—H= 21 January 2024 to
—E=-"F—A=+H 20 January 2032 2.49 1,679,000
—E-RF—HA=Z+—H=E 21 January 2025 to
—E=_F—A=+H 20 January 2032 2.49 552,000
ZE-RF-HZ+—H=ZE 21 January 2026 to
e T e = 20 January 2032 2.49 1,679,000
—% fti A-+—H= 21 January 2027 to
—E=F—HZ+H 20 January 2032 2.49 552,000
2 )\F—HA=Z+—H= 21 January 2028 to
—E=_F—A=+H 20 January 2032 2.49 572,000
—E-NF—HA=Z+—H=ZE 21 January 2029 to
—ZE=-%—HA=+H 20 January 2032 2.49 736,000
16,220,000
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32./8REE) 32.SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

1T

Exercise period

R-B=-—F=A=+—H
At 31 March 2021
TREE"
(R EBRERE)
Exercise price* BREZE
(HK$ per Number of

ordinary share)

share options

—EF+—A=Z+tR=E

27 November 2022 to

—Z==#+—-A=+5H 26 November 2030 2.20 3,020,000
—E-ZF+—A=-+tHZE 27 November 2023 to
—E=FF+—H=+"H 26 November 2030 2.20 927,000
_7_E¢+ BA=++HZ 27 November 2024 to
—E=TF+—HA=+"H 26 November 2030 2.20 3,020,000
“E-RAF+—A=+tHZE 27 November 2025 to
—E=FF+—HZ+AH 26 November 2030 2.20 927,000
“E-XRF+—AZF+EHZE 27 November 2026 to
*EiﬁiJr*ﬂ —+XH 26 November 2030 2.20 1,760,000
—E-t+F+—A=-+EHZE 27 November 2027 to
—E=FF+—HA=+"H 26 November 2030 2.20 1,236,000
10,890,000

* HARBEHITRALBRZL

E(EAIFRE

fERAETT *

The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in the

event of any variation in the issued share capital of the Company.

FAREZBREZATEREE
1,993,0007t (& A E¥0.30 L 21 0.34
) (ZE=Z—F 5%%1%4,657,0007_5(%
B0 EER042T)) °

AEE N = ﬁﬁﬁwﬁﬁﬂﬂéiﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ
1,370,0007T( =& = — 4 : # 445,000
TT) e

The fair value of the share options granted during the year was
HK$1,993,000 (HK$0.30 to HK$0.34 each) (2021: HK$4,657,000
(HK$0.39 to HK$0.42 each)). During the year, the Group
recognized a share option expense of HK$1,370,000 (2021:
HK$445,000) in the income statement.
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32.BREE) 32.SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

HE_ZT__F=A=+—HILFERMH
RO Z AR 2 BREZAYE T
REFH BHERZBEABRER AR - &
At R R R 2 IR S MR o TRED

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during the
year ended 31 March 2022 was estimated as at the date of grant,
using a polynomial model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. The following

FTAEAL 2 F T A BUE - table lists the major inputs to the model used:

2022 2021
A B 2 (%) Dividend yield (%) 6.7 4.1
TEHAR 18 (%) Expected volatility (%) 29.6 29.7
E SR8 (%) History volatility (%) 29.6 29.7
A2 R R 2 (%) Risk-free interest rate (%) 1.5 0.5
A ETE EAE EA (R ) Expected life of option (year) 10 10
HIRE AR (E (GRS IE) Weighted average share price (HK$ per share) 2.49 2.20

BRAETR IR L RIR AT BEHIR 21T
B o TERRIR U [ R R 5L 18RI 38R R 2K
BEZRE - ETRBRRERER -

AEATERYEE AR DBEREH
AFIE -

RZEZ_F=ZA=+—8H " ' &ARA
RIFHEREFE R RITEOERER
16,220,000 ' G AR B RZBE BT B
f& 2 #92.57% o AR B B ATR B ANERE
T - BEATEEARITENBRIEGEER
N EEE1716,220,000 858N E AL - Wik
SEBINE AR E R 1,622,0007T & i 17 4 B
78 135,735,0007T (B44T73 1 AT ) °

FA - RIFE AR & 1 #9800,000/
MeiE( —F = —4F : 630,000 A% # ) 2 %
Moo B EXFARBEEIN  RFARALER
B REBEmMR O SEEERE( T
—F )

EEEEARAT 2021/22 F5)

The expected life of the share options is not necessarily indicative
of the exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatility
reflects the assumption that the historical volatility is indicative
of future trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual
outcome.

No other feature of the share options granted was incorporated
into the measurement of fair value.

As at 31 March 2022, the Company had 16,220,000 share options
outstanding under the Share Option Scheme, which represented
approximately 2.57% of the Company’s ordinary shares in issue as
at that date. The exercise in full of the outstanding share options
would, under the present capital structure of the Company, result
in the issue of 16,220,000 additional ordinary shares of the
Company and additional share capital of HK$1,622,000 and share
premium of HK$35,735,000 (before issue expenses).

800,000 share options (2021: 630,000 share options) granted
under the Share Option Scheme were lapsed during the year.
Save as disclosed above, no share option was granted, granted for
adjustment, or cancelled during the year (2021: Nil).
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32.FBHEE)

R BHMERE A - AR FIRIBEIE
T8I AR TTFE A BB AL HE £15,320,000 -+ 1h
ARAFIRZABRITEBR Z42.43% o

33. %

REEAFERBEFENEERLEE
REBRENZ G ARABHERTR 25 -

RIBGERRDE - DEEMBNERAT
NEEEWMBER N AR ARER 2D
BREMEEE—TARE ZENEET -
HEZENREEHEDZRREARN0%E -
AR BRTEAR  MZEANRHEIA
BERs R SR o

RETFEHIEFELERTINGERE
EERZED - ARBRPEAREZHER
BIEEBH OB EMNELERBULR
MR ER 2B EEXEREBERE
REEEHEMEARLS0% °

4. GERERERME

(@) TEHFREXH

() RER - BEWE  KBERRE
ZIEmENE] © A7 ¥ 23,093,000
TL(ZE=—% : B%6,452,000
T)EREYE - BERRE -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2022

32.

33.

34.

SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

As at the date of approval of the financial statements, the
Company had 15,320,000 share options outstanding under the
Share Option Scheme, which represented approximately 2.43% of
the Company’s ordinary shares in issue as at that date.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity of the financial statements.

In accordance with the Company Law of Taiwan, Asian Plastic
Machinery Company, Limited and Chen Hsong Machinery Taiwan
Company, Limited are required to transfer a portion of their profit
after tax to a capital reserve, which is non-distributable. When
the capital reserve has accumulated to 50% of their capital, up to
50% of the capital reserve may be capitalized. The capital reserve
may be utilized at anytime to offset any deficit.

In accordance with the Law of the PRC on Sole Foreign Investment
Enterprises and Sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprises, the
Company’s Mainland China subsidiaries are required to transfer a
portion of their profit after tax to the statutory reserve fund, which
is restricted as to use, until the accumulated total reaches 50% of
their registered capital.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS

(a) Major non-cash transactions

(i) During the year, non-current deposits for purchases of
items of property, plant and equipment of HK$23,093,000
(2021: HK$6,452,000) were transferred to property, plant
and equipment.
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4. BEERERMT(E) 34.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS (continued)

(a) EEBHBERF (&) (a) Major non-cash transactions (continued)

(i) RFEAN - AEBBEBEYWHE(ZZ (i) During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to
T PERAE)AELEN right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of HK$5,103,000
FRAEEENEEAGENIER S (2021: HK$644,000) and HK$5,103,000 (202 1:
mﬁn Bl A7 #5,103,00070( = HK$644,000), respectively, in respect of lease

——F : Be44, OOOTE))SZ?’% arrangements for properties (2021: properties and motor
@55 103,000c( = F =—%F : & vehicles).
#644,0007T) ©

(i) RFER - AEEF@E—HNBA (iii) During the year, the Group had a non-cash addition to
BISEIE AR R E ARG A ET & an intangible asset of HK$2,038,000 in respect of a
ERNIEERSRE AE¥2,038,000 capital contribution by a non-controlling shareholder of a
JC ° subsidiary.

(b) BETECIENEERE (b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

HEAE FFRRITERK

Lease Interest-bearing

(GEBFor) (HK$°000) liabilities bank borrowings
R-ZZ_TFWA—H At 1 April 2020 2,813 99,197
MEREREY Changes from financing cash flows (1,558) (30,000)
EviN=1 New leases 644 _
BhE R AR Finance costs 205 1,743
DERKEREREL Interest paid classified as operating

BEFE cash flows (205) (1,743)
N Foreign exchange movement 69 (438)

R-ZE-_—F=A=+—HK At 31 March 2021 and

—E-—FHm™A—H 1 April 2021 1,968 68,759
BEREREE Changes from financing cash flows (1,597) (45,000)
e New leases 5,103 -
BE KA Finance costs 212 1,094
NERKREREREY Interest paid classified as operating

BAFE cash flows (212) (1,094)
NG B Foreign exchange movement 681 (2,191)

R-E-—_F#=H=+—H

At 31 March 2022 6,155 21,568

EEEEBR AR 2021/22 Fik
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—E-__F=HA=+—H 31 March 2022

.G BERERMT(E) 34.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS (continued)

(c) HERSRHHAZ (c) Total cash outflow for leases
FARESRERNEERSMLATE The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement of
N cash flows is as follows:
(E#For) (HK$'000) 2022 2021
BRI Within operating activities 4,707 4,600
EEEB)A Within financing activities 1,597 1,558
6,304 6,158
35. &I 35.COMMITMENTS
REBRREIARNERNATENT - The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of
the reporting period:
NR-ZE-—F=A=+—H ' BREAEF As at 31 March 2022, the Group had capital commitments,
PARB KpEEE y TEESEY  BENE which were contracted but not provided for, in respect of the
REEH 2B ARFEES £ 475%1,089,000 construction of industrial buildings in Mainland China amounting
T(ZZ ——4 : B#1,934,0007T) ° to approximately HK$1,089,000 (2021: HK$1,934,000).
RZZBEZZF=ZRA=+—H  BRLTEE As at 31 March 2022, the Group had capital commitments,
BERNTBRAEREBZME BEM which were contracted but not provided for, in respect of the
B EENEBERBEZERERESHR purchase of property, plant and equipment in Mainland China and
HFEH11,692,000T(— B = —F : B Hong Kong amounting to approximately HK$11,692,000 (2021:
39,285,0007T) ° HK$39,285,000).
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—E-_—_F=ZA=+—H

36.BEALRS

36.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

FA - BRATBHRREGBHEMRENE
BN - REBEBUTHREALRS

In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in these financial
statements, the Group also had the following related party
transactions during the year:

(a) ZANEE LB 38,232,000 (2=
—¢ DB HEA41,770,0007T ) A — Bt
REIAE ST ENEREEREER

(@) The Group purchased raw materials amounting to
HK$38,232,000 (2021: HK$41,770,000) from an associate
at prices and on terms mutually agreed by the Group and the

(b)

ZE

ZBE_T-_—F=HA=t+—H
HEER > AEBER—BBERR -
BEEEARMCRIDERAR(ER
w1 ABEE ¥ 510,000t E R
P - I YCERE & W A B 294,000
T WERGNRAEE ZFERE
X5 o MEBRYIBERMEKUER
HEWARARNEEEBZEENAE
HRBZFRTETT »

BRAZLT(ARRARZES)ERH
T—BTBHAL AHRHEFERE
EBRARIKREARNGHIB0% 1% E
o BREREXBERARMHERAE
BRIz 2E AR - FTAER
RN RTER/RNEE 2 BERF A
BIEMBEEI4AZT T AR A MR E
AL e

AEEFZEBRASEHM

associate.

In addition, during the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group
purchased raw materials of HK$510,000 and received rental
income of HK$294,000 from a related company, Zhen Jian
Mould & Machinery (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (“CC-SZ"). These
transactions were also continuing connected transactions of
the Group. Purchases of raw materials and rental income
from CC-SZ were on terms mutually agreed by the Group and
the related company.

Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG (being a director of the Company)
together with parties acting in concert with her, controls the
exercise of more than 50% of the voting power at general
meetings of Chen Chien Holdings Limited, which indirectly
holds the entire equity interest of CC-SZ. CC-SZ is therefore a
related company of the Group and also a connected person of
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

(b) Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:

(E#TFor) (HK$'000) 2022 2021
HHREREREF Short-term employee benefits 14,345 8,908
XIRBEF Post-employment benefits 36 36
PARRRE S ST RO BE R AE S Equity-settled share option expenses 591 181

14,972 9,125

TEEBABHFMDH2RBATREMN
RRBEARRERRMEE -

EEEEBR AR 2021/22 Fik

The compensation of key management personnel was
determined by reference to the Company’s performance as
well as individual performance and contribution.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

31 March 2022

37.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

N instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
EREE Financial assets
D EEN RN EZ
EMEE
Financial assets at
amortized cost
(BEMFor) (HK$°000) 2022 2021
JEUWE 5 Kk BRI Trade and bills receivables 1,345,403 1,309,543
AR ® - FBFHUR Financial assets included
R E Ath fE U AR SR in deposits, prepayments
TREE and other receivables 22,989 25,427
e E EHE RN Finance lease receivables 4,682 7,164
EIRERITIE K Pledged bank deposits 27,251 51,752
Re MIRITETF Cash and bank balances 671,911 1,146,188
2,072,236 2,540,074
=R Financial liabilities
DB R AT EZ
tMmEE
Financial liabilities at
amortized cost
(EBFor) (HK$°000) 2022 2021
ERE 5 RERERHN Trade and bills payables 695,694 762,796
O AE M E T BR R Financial liabilities included in
ErrRAENTSRAEE other payables and accruals 183,710 172,928
STEIRITE Interest-bearing bank borrowings 21,568 68,759
HEBE Lease liabilities 6,155 1,968
907,127 1,006,451
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and bank
balances, the current portion of pledged bank deposits, the
current portion of trade receivables and finance lease receivables,
bills receivable, financial assets included in deposits, prepayments
and other receivables, trade and bills payables, the current portion
of financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals
and interest-bearing bank borrowings approximate to their
carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these
instruments.

The fair values of the non-current portion of trade receivables and
finance lease receivables, the non-current portion of pledged bank
deposits, the non-current portion of financial liabilities included in
other payables and accruals and lease liabilities are estimated by
discounting the expected future cash flows using rates currently
available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and
remaining maturities and approximate to their carrying amounts.

The Group’s finance team is responsible for determining the
policies and procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. At each reporting date, it analyzes the movements in
the values of the financial instruments and determines the major
inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and
reported to directors.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2022

39.TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

(a) Transferred financial assets that are not derecognized in

their entirety

Bills endorsement under the Law of Negotiable Instruments of
the PRC

The following table provides a summary of bills receivable
that have been transferred in such a way that part of the

LB BE transferred financial assets do not qualify for derecognition,
together with the associated liabilities:
(E¥FT) (HK$°000) 2022 2021
BHEEEREE Carrying amount of assets that continued
BRTEE to be recognized 100,236 79,417
B aERmEE Carrying amount of associated liabilities 100,236 79,417

M-EBE-—_F=A=+—8 » K&EE
MEETHERSECEETHEMD
ERITESNE TRRER(EE
B EEEMNLEHERNE
NEZER - AAKEERBERRAR
RER  BESEZEMENRR
Mt - B ERRASEZBNMBER
EEIAENEEERNE SRR
EER  AREHEEERFERTE
FEF - BREREAEME =

& HERIEREERE -
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As at 31 March 2022, the Group endorsed certain bills
receivable accepted by certain local banks in the PRC (the
“Endorsed Bills”) to certain of its suppliers in order to settle
the trade payables due to such suppliers. Since the Group
has retained the substantial risks and rewards, which include
default risk relating to the Endorsed Bills, it continued to
recognize the full carrying amounts of the Endorsed Bills
and the associated trade payables settled. Subsequent to the
endorsement, the Group does not retain any rights on the use
of the Endorsed Bills, including sales, transfer or pledge of
the Endorsed Bills to any other third parties.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22




ISR MIEE 2

—E-_—_F=ZA=+—H

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2022

D.ERERMEEE)

39.TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued)

(b) FERILEANCERESHEE

(b) Transferred financial assets that are derecognized in their

WRIETERR X2 REEE

MR-EBE-—F#=F=+—0H  ~A&EE
MEATHENEEFHEAELAS
#111,208,0007T( =& = —4F : B
58,679,0007C ) B EXR THEEFE
HIRITES A E TRIER ([ KL
REEZR])  UEBEM L ESMHE
HHENESERER - RIEBRREEER
BERBEHAFKRIPEA—EAE
+tEA(ZE=_—F: —@AZ+—
@A) - BEFEEEE - HR1TX
FoARIEREEZBERBEAGRE
MASEER(FEL2HE])  c AA&E
ERERERIIEREEREEAN
BRI RER KB - B - HER
IR IEREER BN ERE
BEREEENE SRR - NEBERES
BR2ERIIEREERZELRBEZSE
RIEEREERBENRTRESRS
HEANEERBIESHNEREE - A
I AEENRFELHAKIIERE S
EENAFELTERK

RER » AEERERKLERSE
S AW RER T g A -
W EW B ENF AR R ERE
SESHE ZEENEBEFTHHE
4o

AR AR 2021/22 F3R

entirety

Bills endorsement under the Law of Negotiable Instruments
of the PRC

As at 31 March 2022, the Group endorsed certain bills
receivable accepted by certain reputable banks in the PRC (the
“Derecognized Endorsed Bills”) to certain of its suppliers in
order to settle the trade payables due to such suppliers with a
remaining carrying amount in aggregate of HK$111,208,000
(2021: HK$58,679,000). The Derecognized Endorsed Bills
have a remaining maturity of 1 month to 7 months at the
end of the reporting period (2021: 1 month to 11 months).
In accordance with the Law of Negotiable Instruments in the
PRC, the holders of the Derecognized Endorsed Bills have a
right of recourse against the Group if the banks default (the
“Continuing Involvement”). Since the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards relating to the Derecognized
Endorsed Bills, it has derecognized the full carrying amounts
of the Derecognized Endorsed Bills and the associated trade
payables. The maximum exposure to loss from the Group’s
Continuing Involvement in the Derecognized Endorsed
Bills and the undiscounted cash flows to repurchase these
Derecognized Endorsed Bills is equal to their carrying
amounts. Thus, the fair values of the Group’s Continuing
Involvement in the Derecognized Endorsed Bills are not
significant.

During the year, the Group has not recognized any gain or
loss on the date of transfer of the Derecognized Endorsed
Bills. No gains or losses were recognized from the Continuing
Involvement, both during the year or cumulatively. The
endorsement has been made evenly throughout the year.
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POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash and
bank balances, pledged bank deposits, trade and bills receivables,
finance lease receivables, other receivables, trade and bills
payables, other payables, accruals and interest-bearing bank
borrowings.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The risks associated with these financial instruments and
the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
Management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented in a timely and effective
manner.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s bank loans carrying floating
interest rates. The Group monitors its interest rate exposure closely
and considers to take measures to reduce significant interest rate
exposure, if any.

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s foreign exchange risk arises from commercial
transactions, recognized assets and liabilities and net investments
in operations in Mainland China, Taiwan, Brazil and the
Netherlands.

The Group has transactional currency risk exposures. Such risk
exposures arise from a substantial portion of the Group’s sales
and purchases transactions denominated in United States dollars
(“US$”), RMB, JPY and New Taiwanese dollars (“NTD”).

Management closely monitors foreign exchange exposure in
transactions denominated in US$, RMB, JPY and NTD and
its investments in Mainland China, Taiwan, Brazil and the
Netherlands and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.
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40. iR EEBERBEE) 40.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)

ShEE B (4F) Foreign currency risk (continued)

T 3RO TR AN & B BR B BT s AR H o AR The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
(EMEEMEHRFTENBRAT)EE the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in US$,
T ARE BRI A KERNEGIET RMB, Euro and NTD exchange rates, with all other variables held
HEHNHRE(HREEEERABED constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (due to changes in the

ATEED) -

fair value of monetary assets and liabilities).

SR BRI R
@,/ (8) i Ord)

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in foreign in profit
(CEMFor) (HK$’000) currency rate before tax
2022
WA REEBTHE If RMB strengthens against HK$ 5% 7,981
M ARBEBTI(E If RMB weakens against HK$ (5%) (7,981)
M AREEETAE If RMB strengthens against US$ 5% (491)
M ARBHZETIE If RMB weakens against US$ (5%) 491
WBUT S B T AHE If Euro strengthens against HK$ 5% 9,709
W& TS iz (B If Euro weakens against HK$ (5%) (9,709)
mET e EETAE If NTD strengthens against US$ 5% (5,097)
fiwh & BT (E If NTD weakens against US$ (5%) 5,097
MAREEERERHRAE If RMB strengthens against Brazilian Real (“R$”) 5% (3,681)
MARBEERERREE If RMB weakens against R$ (5%) 3,681
WETHEAEDRRAE If US$ strengthens against R$ 5% (3,443)
fWETHEAEGEMREIZE If US$ weakens against R$ (5%) 3,443
2021
M ARBE B THE If RMB strengthens against HK$ 5% 17,046
W ARBE B TIE If RMB weakens against HK$ (5%) (17,046)
M ARBEZETHE If RMB strengthens against US$ 5% 5,258
M ARBEETIE If RMB weakens against US$ (5%) (5,258)
MBS BT A E If Euro strengthens against HK$ 5% 10,050
BT E Bz E If Euro weakens against HK$ (5%) (10,050)
mET e EETAE If NTD strengthens against US$ 5% (4,221)
W¥r e EEEITiZE If NTD weakens against US$ (5%) 4,221
WMARBEHEREZBRAE If RMB strengthens against R$ 5% (2,093)
MARBEERERREE If RMB weakens against R$ (5%) 2,093
WETHERE =R AE If US$ strengthens against R$ 5% (2,969)
WETHEAEERIE If US$ weakens against R$ (5%) 2,969

EEEEBR AR 2021/22 Fik
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k

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

risk for the financial guarantee contracts.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

40.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which
is mainly based on past due information unless other information
is available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
classification as at 31 March. The amounts presented are gross
carrying amounts for financial assets and the exposure to credit

RZE-_—_F=A=+—H At 31 March 2022
T={8A
BHEERR
12-month 2HEAEEFR
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
BlLAz
E-Ra E-RE F=KR  Simplified fit
(EETFT) (HK$'000) Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
EWE ZHET Trade receivables* - - - 976,207 976,207
ERFEER Bills receivable
—-ER - Normal** 467,564 - - - 467,564
LA BEFER Financial assets included in deposits,
HipRYEETNeREE prepayments and other receivables
—-ER - Normal** 22,754 - - - 22,754
—RE - Doubtful** - - 18,474 - 18,474
EHRERERR Finance lease receivables* - - - 10,501 10,501
BRETER Pledged bank deposits
—REH - Not yet past due 27,251 - - - 27,251
Be MR Cash and bank balances
—REE - Not yet past due 671911 - - - 671,911
REARINER @ FAHE - Guarantee given to a bank, at the maximum,
RIEERETEPIERE for a bank loan granted to a customer to
FEEERNRTER purchase the Group's products
-KEH - Not yet past due 4180 - - - 4,180
REARITNER @ FAHE - Guarantee given to a bank, at the maximum,
RIEERETEP for guarantee provided to a customer
— R - Not yet past due 171 - - - 171
1193831 S 18474 986708 2199013
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2022

40. iR EEBERBEE) 40.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)

FERRE(E)

Credit risk (continued)

ARG R FRAEER (4E) Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)

RZE-_—F=ZA=+—H

At 31 March 2021

t=fEA
BHEERR
12-month 2HESEERR
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
LR
S-K& E-RB FZRE  Simplified @t
(EEFI) (HK$'000) Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
BB &N Trade receivables* - - - 888,626 888,626
EUZEER Bills receivable
8" - Normal** 512,952 - - - 512,952
LATE - BARER Financial assets included in deposits,
AW e REE prepayments and other receivables
—EE* - Normal** 25,284 - - - 25,284
—RE” - Doubtful** - - 17,757 - 17,757
EYEERERR" Finance lease receivables* - - - 14,663 14,663
BRETER Pledged bank deposits
—REH - Not yet past due 51,752 - - - 51,752
R RFTER Cash and bank balances
- REH - Not yet past due 1,146,188 - - - 1146188
RELFITNER  ZFAHE - Guarantees given to banks, at the maximum,
BIEERGTRPERE for bank loans granted to customers to
TREERMBITER purchase the Group’s products
—-RaH - Not yet past due 715 - - - 715
1,736,891 - 17,757 903,289 2,657,937

EEEEBR AR 2021/22 Fik
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2022

40.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)

* For trade receivables and finance lease receivables to which the
Group applies the simplified approach for provision for impairment,
information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in notes 21
and 23 to the financial statements.

**  The credit quality of the bills receivable and the financial assets
included in deposits, prepayments and other receivables is
considered to be “normal” when they are not past due and there is
no information indicating that the financial assets had a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit
quality of the financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using recurring
liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both
its financial instruments (e.g., trade and bills payables) and
financial assets (e.g., trade and bills receivables and finance lease
receivables) and projected cash flows from operations.
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40. iR EEBERBEE) 40.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

KBESRRE) Liquidity risk (continued)
rEENeRBE(BERABE)RRE The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities (including
IR (LB R ARITIB O 3REE) M 25 B contingent liabilities) as at the end of the reporting period, based
DT on the contractual undiscounted payments, was as follows:
2022
ZEANLER

AR +=EAR
FRER More than

Less than 3 months and —-Z1F
3 months or less than 1to @t
(BEFT) (HK$'000) on demand 12 months 5 years Total
EOEGEES L Trade and bills payables 578,958 116,736 - 695,694
AR ERRRK Financial liabilities included in
E:rBEMERERE other payables and accruals 175,552 - 8158 183,710
BERRE Lease liabilities 608 1,420 5,287 7315
STRRTER Interest-bearing bank borrowings 21,568 - - 21,568
REARTHOER ZSAZ®E © Guarantee given to a bank, at the maximum,
AEERGTREPIEEBE for a bank loan granted to a customer to
AEBERMBITER purchase the Group's products 4,180 - - 4,180
REABTHOER  ZAZE © Guarantee given to a bank, at the maximum,
REERETEP for guarantee provided to a customer 171 - - 171
781,037 118,156 13,445 912,638
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40. iR EEBERBEE) 40.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

HRBESEM(E) Liquidity risk (continued)
2021
SEANLR
=Rk TZERAR
FEER More than
Less than 3 months and —-Z21F
3 months or less than 1to @t
(B¥TFT) (HK$'000) on demand 12 months 5 years Total
ERESREERER Trade and bills payables 667,020 95,776 - 762,796
TAEMENERR & Financial liabilities included in
[EArEERNSRHEE other payables and accruals 166,527 - 6,401 172,928
MEERE Lease liabilities 429 1,016 649 2,094
FERTER Interest-bearing bank borrowings 68,759 - - 68,759
IRARTHER HAZE © Guarantees given to banks, at the maximum,
REERGETRPIERE for bank loans granted to customers to
FEEEGMBITER purchase the Group’s products 715 - - 715
903,450 96,792 7,050 1,007,292
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40. iR EEBERBEE) 40.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
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POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and
to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business
and maximize shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and make adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 March
2022 and 31 March 2021.

In addition, the Group monitors capital using the position of net
current assets of HK$2,042,490,000 (2021: HK$2,024,300,000),
which is total current assets minus total current liabilities. The
Group’s policy is to maintain a positive balance of the net current
assets.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

31 March 2022

41.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY
RRARRBERROYBARRLEZE R W Information about the statement of financial position of the
T Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:
CEEFor) (HK$’000) 2022 2021
FRBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
KRB AR ZIKE Investments in subsidiaries 770,214 792,361
RENEE CURRENT ASSETS
HES& Y- Deposits and other receivables 759 844
Be MIRITHETE Cash and bank balances 20,763 28,876
BB ELRET Total current assets 21,522 29,720
REEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
HiENER R IETBE Other payables and accruals 10,623 13,687
FTBIRTTEN Interest-bearing bank borrowings 21,568 68,759
BB ERET Total current liabilities 32,191 82,446
REBEEFEE NET CURRENT LIABILITIES (10,669) (52,726)
EEFE NET ASSETS 759,545 739,635
= EQUITY
21T Issued share capital 63,053 63,053
() Reserves (note) 696,492 676,582
e AT TOTAL EQUITY 759,545 739,635

202 EHEEEARAR 2021/22 F5H
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2022

41.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

Bt - Note:
AARZHEREBNT - A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:
&1 BEXRE
RER e
Share Capital -eN-1 REREA
premium  redemption Capital Retained @t

(EETFr) (HK$'000) account reserve reserve profits Total
RZZZZTFNA—A At 1 April 2020 509,580 29 - 130,897 640,772
AERRT R Profit for the year and total

AEEBREANE comprehensive income for the year - - - 98,418 98,418
MARRIES ‘J‘E’J%Hﬁ%? Equity-settled share option arrangements - - 445 - 445
HE-Z-TF=-A=+—HL Final dividend for the year ended

EFZEEHEH 8(Miz12) 31 March 2020 (note 12) - - - (23,960) (23,960)
HE2-T-ZF=-A=1—HLt Special final dividend for the year ended

FEZBIRERE(H12) 31 March 2020 (note 12) - - - (10,719) (10,719)
RERRR B (AYiE12) Interim dividend (note 12) - - - (28,374) (28,374)

RZE-—F=A=+—-HkK At 31 March 2021 and

—E-—-FpMA—H 1 April 2021 509,580 295 445 166,262 676,582
AEERTIR Profit for the year and total

AEEHZENE comprehensive income for the year - - 123,839 123,839
PARRIE S (T Ry R AR i 2 Equity-settled share option arrangements - 1,370 - 1,370
HE-Z--f#-A=+-HIt Final dividend for the year ended

FEZRERE(HHI2) 31 March 2021 (note 12) - - (72,511) (72,511)
RS (HiE12) Interim dividend (note 12) - - (32,788) (32,788)
R-E-—F=F=1+—H At 31 March 2022 509,580 29 1,815 184,802 696,492

AR

oz B BEE - SRE

42. BB REFM

HHBHRERE R

EEEEBR AR 2021/22 Fik

BREEROEMRITENEREZ R
FE - TRHBRRMEIANERBREN N
o B RN ARR
BREETERREEROEE
PR fE SRR R I SR B

AT —FRNAZTNH
REEREMRIERE -

H A EREEE

related share options expire or are forfeited.

42.APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

by the board of directors on 28 June 2022.
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The capital reserve comprises the fair value of share options granted which
are yet to be exercised, as further explained in the accounting policy for
share-based payment transactions in note 3 to the financial statements.
The amount will either be transferred to share premium when the related
share options are exercised, or be transferred to retained profits when the

The financial statements were approved and authorized for issue



TEMNBEAF

R-ZE-_—_F=ZA=+—H

TR Z AR REER /Y AFEREE
EEAFEIERASEEEFELTZH N Z
MEAR - EFAIRR - JIHEKHERF

ZFHERBRITE -

Principal Subsidiaries

As at 31 March 2022

The table below lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion
of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or formed a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

TAEEE
B S EEEIL
kggihE Percentage
Place of BRITRA of equity
incorporation/ BERER attributable
AFERE registration Issued share/ to the FEEK
Company name and operations paid-up capital Company Principal activities
BERE
Held indirectly
DGO R AR ag Tk 100 SHE B
Asian Plastic Machinery Taiwan Ordinary Sale of
Company, Limited® ¥4 #50,000,0007T plastic injection
NTD50,000,000 moulding machines
Chen Hsong Europe B.V. Gl 1 Tk 100 SHE T B
Netherlands Ordinary Sale of
100,0008x 7T plastic injection
Euro100,000 moulding machines
EHIEE ORY) R, 3,000,000 7T 100 REYE
BRAED A B K BE US$3,000,000 Property holding
Chen Hsong Industrial Park PRC/
(Shenzhen) Company Limited® Mainland China
EEREERAR AR B TRBEE2T 100 SHE TR
Chen Hsong Machinery Company, Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Sale of
Limited BN ERRERR W - plastic injection
7 #550,000,0007T moulding machines
Non-voting deferred®
HK$50,000,000
B (ZR)BERRFNO hEl, 8,010,000% 7T 100 BUERHE T
Chen Hsong Machinery (Ningho) A B K BE US$8,010,000 Manufacture and sale
Company, Limited® ® PRC/ of plastic injection

EHEEEFR AT 2021/22 FR

Mainland China moulding machines
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FEMB AT @)
R-ZE-_—_F=ZA=+—H

Principal Subsidiaries (continued)
As at 31 March 2022

NG ]
B R EEE L
& E Percentage
Place of BRITRA of equity
incorporation/ BERER attributable
IR registration Issued share/ to the FTEER
Company name and operations paid-up capital Company Principal activities
MiERE(E)
Held indirectly (continued)
BIEBRMORIDERATD e, 17,130,000% 7T 100 BUE R IHE T
Chen Hsong Machinery (Shenzhen) FeIEipN G US$17,130,000 Manufacture and sale
Company Limited® ® PRC/ of plastic injection
Mainland China moulding machines
BRI AR A A ag T 100 FUERIHE T
Chen Hsong Machinery Taiwan Taiwan Ordinary Manufacture and sale
Company, Limited® ¥4 #165,000,0007T of plastic injection
NTD165,000,000 moulding machines
EIEREREORI) g, 5#24,000,0007T 100 BUiE R IR E AT
BRAGWLO AR B K B HK$24,000,000 Manufacture and
Chen Hsong Mechanical and PRC/ sale of tie bars
Electrical Equipment Mainland China
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.?®
EREHORIDERAAD® FhE, 7#110,000,0007T 100 THE B
Chen Hsong Sales & Marketing ESEipN G HK$10,000,000 Sale of
(Shenzhen) Company, PRC/ plastic injection
Limited® ® Mainland China moulding machines
Chen Hsong South America B BEmEombS,721,000 100 THE T
Importacéo, Exportacdo e Comércio Brazil R$5,721,000 Sale of
de Equipamentos Ltda. plastic injection
moulding machines
b L T B 2 TR AR 2R R AR hE, 7,300,000 7T 100 BUE RIHE T B
ERARWO H B K US$7,300,000 Manufacture and sale
Foshan Shunde Chen De Plastics PRC/ of plastic injection

Machinery Company Limited® ©

EEEEBR AR 2021/22 Fik

Mainland China
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moulding machines
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WZZEZ—_F=A=+—H

Principal Subsidiaries (continued)
As at 31 March 2022

VNS ]
B B
R Percentage
Place of BRITRA of equity
incorporation/ BEWER attributable
AEER registration Issued share/ to the FTEER
Company name and operations paid-up capital Company Principal activities
BERE(E)
Held indirectly (continued)
BT B R BT h B, 7,900,000 7T 100 SUENIHE T
BRAR® AR B A B US$7,900,000 Manufacture and sale
Foshan Shunde Chen De PRC/ of plastic injection
Precision Machinery Co., Limited®®  Mainland China moulding machines
Il IEE R B R E hEl, 3,000,000% 7T 100 BUERHERESE
ERARDO AR K RE US$3,000,000 Manufacture and sale
Intra-ltalia Hydraulics PRC/ of hydraulic motors
(Foshan Shunde) Co., Ltd. V' ® Mainland China
A BERERFHEERAF@O hE 12,000,0003 7T 100 SERHEREN
Shenzhen Chen Hsong Precision PR K US$12,000,000 Manufacture and sale
Equipment Limited® ® PRC/ of casting parts

Mainland China

Bt Notes:

(1) ERBRINEGEEDRE - (1) These companies are wholly foreign-owned enterprises.

(2) It AR RFINGELEDE - (2) This company is a Sino-foreign equity joint venture.

(3) ERRRINEGREDRE - (3) These companies are foreign invested enterprises.

(4) RIS ERIEER D B R I WIS - (4) The non-voting deferred shares carry limited rights to dividends, no
EREREART FRERBZRAENRE rights to vote at general meetings and limited rights to receive any
RRFWIERER R 2R o surplus in a return of capital in a winding-up.

(5) RXNEATEEAEER (5) English company names are translated for identification purposes only.
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AT AREaAKEATAEYRFES AH

Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets,

liabilities and non-

MikE I MEMRNES - BE - BEM&  controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as

FEPERRAE RS o extracted from the published audited financial statements, is set out
below.

iy RESULTS
HE2=HA=1+—HIFE Year ended 31 March
(BEFoT) (HK$'000) 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
g Revenue 2,728,763 2,360,553 1,513,363 1,635938 1,667,879
"iEm Profit from operating activities 239,097 270,013 150,855 124,918 127,025
BMENAE Finance costs (1,306) (1,948) (2,583) (1,954) (1,248)
=N Share of profits less losses

S IR0 B 18 of associates 777 2737 738 1,043 3,366
G Nz0pl Profit before tax 238,568 270,802 149,010 124,007 129,143
e Income tax expense (24,574) (65,977) (55,962) (34,778) (26,312)
REREF Profit for the year 213,994 204,825 93,048 89,229 102,831
BER Attributable to:

RRFIERRFBA Equity holders of the Company 213,309 203,021 93,651 90,279 101,877

IR R Non-controlling interests 685 1,804 (603) (1,050) 954

213,994 204,825 93,048 89,229 102,831

BE  BERFERER

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

R=Hg=+—H As at 31 March

(EETFIT) (HK$'000) 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

BEHSE Total assets 4,429,327 4,378/438 3,442,573 3,451,745 3,695,700

BE%LE Total liabilities (1,200,865) (1,365,392) (764,263)  (685,669)  (812,720)

FEER IR Non-controlling interests (19,413) (16,514) (13,559) (14,144) (15,153)
3,209,049 2996532 2,664,751 2,751,932 2,867,827
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REYEFE Particulars of Investment Properties

WZZEZ—_F=A=+—H As at 31 March 2022

i B REAR iR SEEidl

Location Existing use Type of lease

A T h HA
B R AR Industrial Medium
P #Fr
M ER
ARFBE315% - 50%% - 5257
EHTEE
12-BiE - 13-BiE MBERE KIE

Block 12-B, Block 13-B and
canteen building in District B
Chen Hsong Industrial Park
No. 31, No. 50, No. 52 Renmin Middle Road
Kengzi office
Pingshan New District
Shenzhen, Guangdong Province
The PRC
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Artisan

MIKEE.E5 || e
N

60ZFHFIN—, 2022F = 7 MK6.6/ATE U B —IE A B2
Still going strong after 60+ years with the 6th-gen MK6.6/A "Artisan" in 2022

REKBERARALE
Chen Hsong Holdings Limited

BERFEAEIRIBPAEEH13E155
13-15 Dai Wang Street, Tai Po Industrial Estate,
Tai Po, New Territories, Hong Kong

|5 / Tel: (852) 2665 3222

{8E / Fax: (852) 2664 8202

#8iit / Website: www.chenhsong.com
EEHf / E-mail: comm@chenhsong.com
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